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ABOUT US
EAR M

Founded in Hong Kong in 1998, Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are a global leader in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. By adopting an innovative
design manufacturer (“IDM”) business model and building on a
diverse technology matrix with three core technologies: computer-
aided mold design and production, 3D compression molding, and
seamless bonding, Regina Miracle is able to develop and produce
market-leading products for its long-standing world-renowned
brand partners which cover various key sectors comprising intimate
wear (including bras, panties, shapewear) and bra pads, sports
products (including sports bras, functional sports apparel), consumer
electronics components, and footwear, and facilitate cross-sector
and cross-category applications.

The Group is committed to multi-regional production capacity
deployment. It has two strategic strongholds — its research and
development (“R&D") and production bases in Shenzhen, China to
promote the expansion of the domestic PRC market, and its major
production base in Vietnam, which the Group has expanded into
since 2016 to support the growth of its export business. The Group
also continues to enhance production efficiency and core competitive
advantages through automation and digital management.

In addition, Regina Miracle endeavors to promote environmental and
social sustainable development. Based on the United Nations’ 2030
Sustainable Development Goals, the Group has established four
goals for 2030 covering four key aspects, namely carbon reduction,
waste management, sustainable innovation, and people and
community, with a view to creating long-term value for stakeholders
and assuming social responsibility with a responsible attitude.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MHHE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Regina Miracle WP BB () BR AR ([#B R k Z
International (Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the AR NEZS((EEG)MAEHALE R
“Company”) is pleased to announce the annual results of the HEWB AR (GBI AER|)EHZE202243A4
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the 3MBIEFE([20228 F )W E2FX4E - &R
year ended 31 March 2022 (“Fiscal 2022"), together with the 20214FRIEA([ 202184 & ) BULL BB T o

comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2021 (“Fiscal
2021").

COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL

TEVHREREMBLERY

INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RATIOS 3%
Year ended 31 March
HZEIAMALEFE
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 % HK$'000
BETT BO BT
Revenue ON 8,346,728 1000 5,974,290 100.0 39.7%
Gross profit EF 2,045,440 245 1,237,953 20.7 65.2%
Profit attributable to owners AR A H AE(GHF
of the Company 520,694 6.2 125,515 2.1 314.8%
Earnings before interest, SR E REHATE
taxes, depreciation and ([EBITDA])#
amortisation (“EBITDA" ) 1,333,812 16.0 820,593 13.7 62.5%
Profit attributable to owners AR AR AE(EHF
of the Company (excluded (M RIESHERAR)
restructuring costs)* 581,779 7.0 175,253 2.9 232.0%
Earnings before interest, SR E RS
taxes, depreciation and (P RIESHERAR)
amortisation (excluded
restructuring costs)* 1,394,897 16.7 870,331 14.6 60.3%
HK cents HK cents
Al Il
Earnings per share BRET
— basic and diluted —EXREE 425 10.3
Dividend per share BRAZE 14.0 4.8
~ Interim dividend —HHRE 6.8 -
— Proposed final dividend —EEAHRE 7.2 3.3
- Proposed special dividend — — 2z 45RI% 8 - 15

# These are not measures of performance under Hong Kong Financial #
Reporting Standards ("“HKFRS"), but is widely used by management
for monitoring business performance of a company from operational
perspective. It may not be comparable to similar measures presented by
other companies.

ZEBBWFFEBWEREER ([ BBHBR
HER D TAHERRNER  EEEERZE
AEERAREBRRBREZER - ERHBA
EHAMNR 2R BHERELLE o
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On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company
and the Group, | hereby present to our shareholders
the annual report of the Group for Fiscal 2022.

ANERRARREZTERAKE  ARFIERZAEHE
2022 FH B FREWRS ©

YY Hung
AthEZE

Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TR BEMITERNTEE

During the year under review, coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19" or the “Pandemic”) continued to repeatedly wreak
havoc around the world. Although the economies in Europe
and the United States recovered vigorously, brand partners still
had to seek a balance between logistical risks and inventory
pressure. Considerable uncertainties remain in the international
community, and the era of black swans marks a watershed in
the polarization of industry competition. To counter this uncertain
macro environment, both brand partners and enterprises in their
supply chain are strengthening their own development measures.
Over the past few years, we have endeavored to adhere to
the Innovative Design Manufacturing (“IDM") business model.
Through innovation, we have been able to expand our business
both vertically and horizontally, working with our brand partners to
overcome challenges and achieve growth, as well as solidify our
technological advantages in addition to our position and reputation
as an industry leader. Additionally, we have continued to optimize
the multi-regional production capacity layout, which has allowed
the release of capacity and contribution of improved efficiency to
fully bloom.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EREE

EEFA - 20198 K% Z % ([ COVID-19 |3k
[BREDERARBZESE  BIEEBEHEY
1Ba% - BRERBLDFEEY R RR M EFE
NHRENRFE - BRASNEFERSTEE
WEZE @ BRIGAZER B TKATTER
FRGEDKE - BERERIENXE &
PRt R EEE S TR(LRE R 5 &
BTN - HRELF  BA—BERLEE
BIFTRETRE([IDM ) B EEIER - RiRA
FEREFHRRERNER  BFREBYT
SHPkE  RSER FEREETRITESH
SEAITEMMA B O - HXBRFIEHEN
ZRIGERKRE - EfREREREEREN
B#RE o
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

We focused on improving the present as well as building a
better future. Benefiting from investment and work over the
past few years, the Group not only achieved a historical level of
success in the first half of the year, but also recorded sustainable
growth in the second half of the year, with the annual revenue
increasing year-on-year by 39.7% to approximately HK$8,346.7
million and the net profit reaching approximately HK$520.7 million.
The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK7.2 cents
per share, together with an interim dividend of HK6.8 cents per
share; total dividend amounted to HK14.0 cents for Fiscal 2022,
which was in line with the Group’s policy of paying no less than
30% of its net profit as dividends each year, so as to share the
achievements with our shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR PLAN (FISCAL 2022-2026):
DIVERSIFICATION FOR LONG-TERM GROWTH,
INNOVATION FOR GOLDEN DEVELOPMENT

The Pandemic has further reshaped the global landscape,
and industry leaders with strong R&D capabilities, large
scale, rapid response and multi-regional production capacity
layout are much more favored by the market, reflecting the
corroboration that the strong gets stronger. Furthermore, highly
viscous brand partners have fully resumed their businesses
and there is a greater demand for innovative designs that
can appeal to consumers. The emphasis on continuous
innovation, delivering speed and consistent quality of supply
chain partners is gaining importance, while the approach to
innovation-led services is increasingly valued and favored.
Through six years of investment in innovation, automation and
digital production, as well as the refinement of its production
capacity layout, Regina Miracle has established a solid business
foundation and formulated a five-year plan for Fiscal 2022-2026
tapping multiple favorable factors to fully capitalize on this golden
period of growth. The synergy of these sales targets for the
next five years, as well as the increased production efficiency
and operating leverage will effectively enhance the Group's
profitability, so as to fully promote a virtuous cycle of cash flow
and support future business expansion with a sound financial
position. In the face of the diversified product needs driven by the
user's changing lifestyles, and increasingly flexible supply chains
and production cycles, the Group will continue to focus on various
business segments to provide appropriate integrated solutions for
different needs.

BARERARZET » TTREEZRRK -
BERBTERFRAEBE  AEETER
FH¥FEAFRLEE  TLAEERTH
FRBEHRAFHELE  2FRAKRF L
F39.7% =X B 346.7 B E T » 41K IR
EAEEB07EETL c EEEEHRER
B20228 FEIR AR ETAR7 28 - &
R HIRR B FR%6.881 1l - BB AE14.0
B ERAERSIRMBEELERHT IR
30% MM BIE - B D ZRR o

BIBE—SEBRNMGRE - MBE AT
BENEE - BERE  RERERZEST
ERMBMNITRNELLE  BEEBRAB
AR B—HHE RAESTHREREEK
ZEREER - HEeTEEEENEIFR:
ERERRY  HAMEEENEFEAR
oRBRRH - BEREER NSRS
HE AN AENREERARERRLS
BE o 4R FARE AR - B REB LA
E TEEEMREIENEA  #E2EE
EFERNERER  ALGEAZEBENRE
EHTE2022E 2026 FHRFHRE - BkE
TEREESHEY - 2SR RAFHEN
BiZ REESXRREEERENES AT
R 155 R U HE B U FH A S B B R A

RMESEBRSTORMEREER - UBED
MR IERRNERER - AHAFP A
EAANNEESERERERZ T - HE
BEREEAPAREE  AEEBEERS
EEBRILEE T - BTRE KR HBETN
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We have always judiciously taken the impact on the long-term
development of the business as the basis of consideration for our
business strategic planning. The formation of our five-year plan
for Fiscal 2022-2026 has been designed to enable sustainable
growth for the Group in a timely and orderly manner in each fiscal
year, on the premise that the Pandemic remains under control.
The Group's revenue for the current reported year has reached a
record high and the pace of growth and various key indicators are
also in line with the five-year plan. The Group will take stock of the
situation, keep abreast of the dynamics of the market and marco-
environment, and comprehensively achieve the established goals
of Fiscal 2023 to 2026 by leveraging the tailwind from advantages
of the environment and itself, to drive steady rise in the Group's
businesses.

GLOBAL-LEADING IDM CAPABILITIES ENABLE
MULTI-SEGMENT BUSINESS EXPANSION

The Group has been committed to technological innovation
and has built a diverse technology matrix with the three core
technologies that are continuously upgraded and iterated. Such
strengths have enabled us not only to steer the direction and
pace of industry development in our core intimate wear product
segment, but also to achieve cross-sector and cross-category
applications, forming a growth matrix covering intimate wear,
sports products and consumer electronics components. This
allows us to create high value-added, diversified and innovative
products that appeal to the market with top brand partners in
the industry in a swift and seamless manner. For example, our
proprietary injection foam cup patented technology has led to
the launch of multiple market-leading products with our various
intimate apparel, sports and consumer electronics brand partners
through development and marketing of the technology over
recent years.

Our core intimate wear product market has always been regarded
as a burgeoning market. As such, the capability to lead and grasp
the mainstream trends in a timely manner is particularly essential.
Owing to the business recovery of our long-standing brand
partners and the Group’s focus on business development in the
PRC market during recent years, more orders were received for
the segment than in previous years. We have also stepped up
our efforts to develop specialty products and sub-categories of
products in this segment to drive and uncover demand through
innovative merchandise, such as sanitary panties, nursing bras,
girls” bras, light exercising outfits and so forth. The products
designed and produced with both functionality and aesthetics will
continue to bring steady upward momentum to relevant business
segments.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

On the other hand, the strong performance of the sports products
segment, driven by the growing trend of an “all-around healthy”
lifestyle, has been a key growth engine for the Group, as its
contribution to the Group's business continues to increase. We have
taken the opportunity to expand our market share with superior
craftsmanship by upgrading the technologies of our existing
sports bra products, well planning and positioning to capitalize
on the sports legging segment and developing promising sports
accessories. As such, the Group is able to fully capture the
opportunities arising from the burgeoning sports trend.

In addition, the concept of the “Metaverse” and the consumer
electronics segment with high value-added features has a
promising future in the long run. As the trend of using textiles in
electronic softgoods products becomes mainstream, the Group
introduces domestic leading brand partners in addition to its
existing international brand partners, bringing opportunities for
expansion of cross-product categories to the Group’s consumer
electronics components segment. The Group actively plans and
flexibly responds to the changing high technology product market
through a wide range of strategies of collaboration with brand
partners and products, and supports its brand partners to create a
more comfortable and skin-friendly consumer electronic products
experience to achieve long-term healthy growth in the consumer
electronics components segment. All in all, the differentiated
product workmanships and strong technological barriers enable
the Group to develop products that can create demand for the
brand partners in a booming market, and achieve win-win results
for all parties while advancing at full speed to scale new heights
of business development.

F—hE  [REEINEETAFAKE -
TEHEHEMRBRIRRE  KRAREE
BIERSIE  RBGLLRERTT o RAIFER
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R AR R R R LR TEARR
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BAFREBHMERNS TR - EiR
MEABLEESEHEMRTISAHARDN
AE - BAREBHITEEREE  BEN
HEBEFEMBRR  BRHBEBEFRARR
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CONTINUE TO IMPROVE MULTI-REGIONAL
PRODUCTION CAPACITY DEPLOYMENT TO
SAFEGUARD BUSINESS GROWTH

In a volatile operating environment, the Group places great
emphasis on sustainability and internal control of business
operations, and spares no effort to disperse production risks.
Thanks to years of painstaking effort, we have strategically
positioned ourselves to aptly focus on both domestic demand
and exports respectively. Against the backdrop of the increasing
complexity of global competition and cooperation, Vietnam
has recently become a highly sought-after production base by
global manufacturing enterprises due to its status as a member
state of various trade agreements, its advantages in terms of
population, labor costs and cultural standards, as well as the
local government’'s commitment to ensuring stable operations
for supply chain companies. The Group initiated its Vietnam
production capacity plan as early as 2015, with six factories now
in place. Currently, the Vietnam production base accounts for
approximately 80% of the Group's total production capacity,
combining scale, power, agility and high quality output to
effectively cater to the rapid recovery and the large number of
orders from our brand partners in overseas markets. At the same
time, the Vietnam base has also become a precious resource in
the supply chain which brand partners are vying to secure, due to
its improving core indicators of cost, efficiency and profitability.

Meanwhile, the Group has an R&D center and production base in
Shenzhen, which is to be relocated to Zhaoging in phases from
mid-2023 onwards, with the relocation expected to be completed
by the end of 2024. With its highly intelligent production line, the
Group will strive to improve the production capacity of intimate
wear, sports apparel and consumer electronics components, so
as to fulfill the buoyant domestic demand for “Made in China”
products, and explore opportunities with emerging online brands
and other sectors in the PRC market.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

Despite the globally tight production capacity, our flexible and
scalable multi-regional production capacity layout, complemented
by a digital management system, shall enable us to formulate
plans for our inventory resources and accurate schedules,
continuously improve product quality and operational efficiency,
and swiftly respond to the critical needs of our brand partners in
both domestic and overseas markets over the next few years.
On the other hand, thanks to the solid relationships with our
brand partners and the unwavering support of our suppliers, the
Group has achieved a virtuous cycle of business and production to
ensure profitability.

In addition, as a leading global intimate wear manufacturer and
global corporate citizen, Regina Miracle is committed to fulfilling
social responsibilities. We incorporate sustainability into our
management and production decisions, and work with our brand
partners and suppliers to drive sustainable development across
the industry. The Group has set its 2030 sustainability goals,
including reducing carbon dioxide emissions by 30% between
2020 and 2030, maintaining zero landfill, developing sustainable
materials, processes and technologies, and caring for people and
communities where we operate to create long-term value and
assume social responsibilities for all stakeholders in a responsible
manner.

INTEGRATE TECHNOLOGICAL INNOVATION
WITH DIGITAL INTELLIGENCE TO ACCELERATE
PENETRATION IN THE PRC MARKET

The intimate wear market in China is characterized by low brand
concentration, with most of the existing brands offering a single
or relatively narrow product range, while consumer demand is
growing rapidly across product segmentation and functional
specialization. This industry trend, coupled with the rapid
development of e-commerce in the PRC, provides an excellent
opportunity for all brands with potential to expand their market
share. In order to better serve our brand partners that make
sales in the PRC and to more quickly identify and address the
latest market trends and consumers’ needs, the Group entered
into a strategic partnership with Tmall Intimate Wear and Tmall
Innovation Center (“TMIC"”) on 20 May 2022. By combining
the digital intelligence of Tmall Intimate Wear and TMIC with
the industry-leading and innovative R&D capabilities of Regina
Miracle, we believe we can achieve the goals of incubating new
trendsetting items, creating innovative technology and content IP,
and jointly establishing industry standards for specific categories,
thereby promoting the healthy and orderly development of the
intimate wear market in the PRC.
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It is worth mentioning that during the year under review, the
Group establish a joint venture with its close partner, Victoria's
Secret & Co. (“Victoria’s Secret”), by invitation, to operate
Victoria’s Secret and its brand-related stores and online
businesses in China. The Group is confident that this joint venture
partnership constitutes a win-win collaboration — Victoria's
Secret, the world’s largest international intimate wear brand,
also has strong consumer brand awareness and mature brand
operation and marketing capabilities in the PRC market; coupled
with the Group's expertise in product innovation, research and
development and manufacturing, as well as its deep insights
of the PRC market and consumers, creating synergies for both
parties in the expansion in the PRC market. With a stringent set
of five-year growth plan and profitability targets formulated, the
joint venture will focus on three main dimensions encompassing
product, supply chain and business operations, strengthening
the brand in all aspects to better cater for the PRC market. The
current range of products we have developed with VS China for
the PRC market has been well-received. The first stage of the
transformation to brand’s online business has already yielded
remarkable results, in which the first launch of the “Double-
Size 'Jelly-Striped’ Bra Top” has seen cumulative sales of over
250,000 units within four months, while the brand’s impact and
performance has gradually become more consistent, which
clearly demonstrated the synergies between VS China and Regina
Miracle to lead the market trend.

OUTLOOK: LEADING MARKET TRENDS,
GRASPING PRODUCT NEEDS AND SCALING
NEW HEIGHTS

The word “innovation” has always been etched in the DNA
of Regina Miracle. A number of patented technologies
have underscored our advance on the path of research and
development. In addition, our keen insight into market trends and
user needs has enabled the Group to establish long-term solid
relationship with brand partners. During the year under review,
the European and American markets have passed through the
most challenging period, and the volume of overseas orders from
our brand partners has returned on track, far better than expected.
While uncertainties in the market remain, we are still cautiously
optimistic about the overall business prospects and are confident
in successfully implementing the five-year plan. In response to the
current situation, we have further shortened operational cycles,
fully implemented our commitment to fast delivery, and created
early-mover opportunities for overseas brand partners.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ER®E

BEES—REN2 ASERODEFTFAZE
2= % 4 {E § £ Victoria's Secret & Co.
('Victoria's Secret|) XL & & A A * A
#% & Victoria's Secret & & T fa h& 48 B8 /5
I AR EEETS o REEE RIS TF 7em
{2 0> — Victoria's Secret & 2 Bk fx K H) B B
NRMHE  NRBETSREESRANEE
EMERANE - KA REESETISH
BEae M ERSEEREMREF - HERE
ENER  UREPETZREEENFZ
Rif - AEFEPEMISNRERGHIERRR
fE o BERRSIE T RENAFRREASR
BNERZ - HLAEmM - fHERE  XBEZ=
REBRAED 2 ENBREAREELS
FEITE o BATFKMEEVS ChinaFT 7 8 &Y
—RIEEPETENEMTSRERZ
FEBBRITHR I EBNEIEISEER
o RS EIREHEERTEHER &
RE R ERBRRIENE L] RE
EIE AR EERIB2EHF - R
2R EERBZ BN —E - EIZEVS China
HEIE AR S| BTTS BN RET

REAR : EH BB - 1
EERER BEEUAE

[BIFT | —F—HBACEHRZRNERRN - %
HEAN MR ERMETEAR LKL
¥ MzEmHEBE MR F KNSR
2 SAREERY T RAMEFES @B
FR - MEBEFEA > BXMSEMCKE AR
AUBHEY  REEHNEIIERES
BIES - BRI - KRB RIS INFEE—
LUENEERE - BRMDEBEBEBFASR
FEELE  THEELEELFRE - BM
REERRS  E—THEEAY  2EAR
TR HAREGE  RIEBINmIEREHRIE ST -

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 13



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRHE

The PRC market is also experiencing rapid growth. During the
year under review, the Group was pleased to see its existing
brand partners gradually consolidating their e-commerce channels
while maintaining a stable physical retail business. Meanwhile, the
emergence of local fashion and e-commerce brands also offers
a variety of possibilities for the Group’s business expansion. We
are confident that the Group can replicate its valuable experience
and growth trajectory in other business segments, strengthen
cooperation with different domestic brands to expand our
domestic business fueled by rapid market responses. Regina
Miracle has always spearheaded the development of the industry,
and we also firmly believe that the only way to excel in the ever-
changing market and user needs is to maintain innovation and
adopt a comprehensive approach while remaining relevant.

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to the Board, the management team, and our colleagues
for their steadfast dedication and commitment to the Group's
achievements over the years, even under the challenges imposed
by the Pandemic. In addition, thanks to the long-term trust and
support of our brand partners, suppliers partners and business
partners, as well as our shareholders, the Group is currently
progressing along the best track in its history. In the future, the
Group will continue to pursue a sustainable business model and
work closely with our brand partners and suppliers partners to
seize market opportunities, bring a wide range of diversified
products to our customers, create long-term value for our
shareholders and stakeholders, and grasp the opportunities of the
golden development period following the direction of our five-year
plan.

YY Hung
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBHWR DM

MARKET REVIEW

During the year under review, coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19" or the “Pandemic”) was not fully contained
around the world, but its impact on global economic sentiment is
gradually decreasing. With the relaxation of pandemic prevention
measures, the retail markets in Europe and the United States are
getting back on track, with overall recovery progressing better
than expected, including a particularly strong rebound in order
book of traditional intimate wear products, which were harder
hit last year. As for the Chinese market, new consumption
trends born out of the Pandemic, such as online shopping and a
sports craze, are still prevalent. The overall market landscape is
undergoing adjustment and at a stage of rapid growth, making
China increasingly important as one of the key strategic markets
for retailers.

The Pandemic has lingered for more than two years, during
which the entire industry has faced various unanticipated macro-
environmental challenges, such as strained supply chains,
surging raw material prices, fluctuating freight costs and cyclical
changes. Such challenges, however, have been a watershed in
the polarization of industry competition. With the competitive
industry edges that the Group has gained including its world-
leading innovative design manufacturing (“IDM") capabilities,
the optimized strategic layout of its production capacity in China
and Vietnam and highly viscous relationships with top brand
partners at home and abroad, the Group has been able to flexibly
respond to the ever-changing product trends and increasing order
demands. These competitive edges have been particularly evident
in the consolidation of the industry and are key factors in the
successful acceleration of Regina Miracle’s growth momentum,
even in such a challenging market environment.

During the year, Regina Miracle was pleased to see the business of
its long-term brand partners returning to normal with sustainable
order book growth. Consumer demand for comfort-based wear
rose during the Pandemic, and sales of innovative intimate wear,
sports products and consumer electronics components remained
strong, with sales of sports bras and consumer electronics
components, in particular, showing considerable growth during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Thanks to a golden era of development for various business
segments, the Group’s annual revenue hit a historic high and
grew at a pace in line with its five-year plan. The Group believes
that it will continue to achieve healthy growth by building on its
existing foundation. In addition to the international markets that
the Group has cultivated for years, the domestic market, which
has huge growth potential, will also be an important arena for
the Group's future development, where the Group continued to
strengthen its cooperation with existing domestic brand partners
during the year. In order to grasp the growth opportunities in the
domestic market more comprehensively and precisely, in January
2022, the Group announced that it had established a joint venture
(“VS China”) with Victoria's Secret & Co. (“Victoria’s Secret”)
to operate Victoria's Secret brand stores and online businesses in
China. The transaction was completed on 6 April 2022.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Regina Miracle holds
49% of the equity interests and Victoria’s Secret holds the
remaining 51% of the equity interests in the joint venture. The
joint venture will integrate the strengths of both parties, i.e.
Regina Miracle's world-leading IDM capabilities and its deep
insights of the PRC market and consumers, together with
Victoria's Secret’'s unparalleled brand leadership and strong sales
and marketing network, creating synergies for their expansion in
the PRC market and empowering the Group to make a strategic
move for its long-term growth in the PRC.

Since its listing, the Group has strived to improve the deployment
of its production capacity layout and production efficiency to
support the pace of order growth, while realizing the strategic
layout for China and Vietnam, aptly focusing on domestic demand
and exports, respectively. At present, the Group has completed its
factory layout in Vietnam. The production capacity layout will now
move from the investment stage to the efficiency enhancement
stage, strengthening its efforts in automation and digitalization.
Against the backdrop of strained global production capacity,
Regina Miracle’'s flexible and large-scale production capacity
layout is a significant advantage. In order to support international
brand partners in pushing forward with their strategies to develop
the PRC market, and as part of its own key layout for business
development in Mainland China, the Group will relocate its
production base in Shenzhen to the High-Tech Industrial Park in
Zhaoging New District in the Greater Bay Area, with a view to
satisfy the keen demand for innovative intimate wear, sportswear
and consumer electronics products in the PRC market with a
more efficient, automated and digital production system. The
domestic production base is expected to be relocated to Zhaoging
New District in phases from mid-2023 onwards, with the
relocation expected to be completed by the end of 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Financial Performance

During the year, even though the impact of the Pandemic
continued to linger and the macroeconomic environment remained
volatile, the Group’s revenue hit a historic high of approximately
HK$8,346.7 million (Fiscal 2021: HK$5,974.3 million), representing
a year-on-year increase of 39.7%, in line with the expected
progress of the Group's five-year plan. Gross profit grew
correspondingly by 65.2% to approximately HK$2,045.4 million,
with the gross profit margin up by 3.8 percentage points to 24.5%
(Fiscal 2021: HK$1,238.0 million and 20.7%, respectively). As the
satisfactory revenue growth and effective cost control measures
resulted in enhanced operating leverage, earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) increased by 62.5%
to approximately HK$1,333.8 million, with the EBITDA margin
up by 2.3 percentage points to 16.0% (Fiscal 2021: HK$820.6
million and 13.7%, respectively). The Group recorded a net profit
of approximately HK$520.7 million for the year, representing a
year-on-year increase of 314.8%, with the net profit margin up
by 4.1 percentage points to 6.2% (Fiscal 2021: HK$125.5 million
and 2.1%, respectively). Basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company were HK42.5 cents (Fiscal 2021:
basic earnings per share of HK10.3 cents). Excluding the one-off
expense item arising from the surrender of parts of the leased
factory in Shenzhen during the year, net profit was approximately
HK$581.8 million with a net profit margin of 7.0%.

The Group is in a healthy financial position, with cash and cash
equivalents increasing to approximately HK$995.0 million during
the year (Fiscal 2021: HK$828.0 million). It has undrawn banking
facilities of approximately HK$2,371.0 million in total as at 31
March 2022 (31 March 2021: HK$2,391.0 million).

In order to share the fruitful results with shareholders, the Board
has resolved to declare a final dividend of HK7.2 cents per share
for Fiscal 2022 (Fiscal 2021: HK3.3 cents per share), together
with the interim dividend of HK6.8 cents per share, making a total
dividend of HK14.0 cents, in line with the Group’s dividend policy
of distributing no less than 30% of its net profit for the financial
year. The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders at the annual general meeting to be held
on Friday, 16 September 2022. The final dividend is expected to
be paid on or around Thursday, 6 October 2022 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Monday, 26 September 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Over the past few years, the Group has continued to launch new
products through craftsmanship innovation alongside automated
production equipment development, as well as expanding its
product ranges across industries and product categories to form
a diversified product matrix. To provide a clearer picture of the
performance of its different business segments, the Group has
regrouped its business into the following six major segments with
effect from the current financial year.

Intimate wear
Intimate wear products include bras, bra tops, panties, shapewear
and swimwear.

During the year, this segment contributed approximately
HK$4,716.0 million in revenue (Fiscal 2021: HK$2,886.0 million),
a year-on-year surge of 63.4%, accounting for 56.5% of the
Group’s total revenue, and remained the main source of revenue
for the Group. The segment’s gross profit grew by 94.1% to
approximately HK$1,189.2 million, with the gross profit margin up
by 4.0 percentage points to 25.2% (Fiscal 2021: HK$612.6 million
and 21.2%, respectively).

As a result of the better-than-anticipated recovery of the European
and U.S. markets during the year, and the strong rebound in
orders from the Group’s largest U.S. partner, the segment
revenue hit a record high, with orders for traditional intimate wear
rebounding and surpassing pre-Pandemic levels. Drawing on its
industry-leading R&D capabilities and innovative craftsmanship,
Regina Miracle was able to fully capture the opportunities arising
from the easing of the Pandemic, and to work with its major brand
partners to seize market opportunities whenever and wherever
they arose through flexible production capabilities. In addition, the
Group added a number of new emerging PRC e-commerce brands
during the year, making its brand partner portfolio more diversified
and paving the way for future business growth.

Sports products
Sports products include sports bras, sports leggings, sports shorts
and sports tops.

This business segment contributed approximately HK$2,190.7
million in revenue during the year (Fiscal 2021: HK$1,596.4
million), a 37.2% year-on-year increase, accounting for 26.3%
of total revenue. Segmental gross profit was approximately
HK$513.9 million and the gross profit margin was 23.5% (Fiscal
2021: HK$298.9 million and 18.7 %, respectively).
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As the Pandemic eased and the sports craze continued, related
products maintained a strong performance, with the order
momentum for sport bras from international brand partners being
especially strong and thus serving as the main growth driver
of this business segment. During the year, the sports leggings
product category also showed great momentum through an
enriched brand partner portfolio and represented a promising
incremental growth point to the sports products segment.

Consumer electronics components
Consumer electronics components encompass virtual reality (VR)
headsets, keyboards, laptops and tablet PC accessories.

Revenue from this business segment amounted to approximately
HK$496.2 million (Fiscal 2021: HK$291.4 million), representing
a significant year-on-year increase of 70.3% and accounting for
5.9% of the Group's total revenue. The segment’s gross profit
increased by 79.5% to approximately HK$125.0 million, with the
gross profit margin up by 1.3 percentage points to 25.2% (Fiscal
2021: HK$69.7 million and 23.9%, respectively).

The demand for consumer home electronics continued to rise
amid the Pandemic during the year, and with the rapid emergence
of the “"Metaverse” concept, demand for 5G and related products
grew considerably and continuously during the year. As consumer
electronics are high value-added products and there is ample
room for market development, the segment will continue to
generate a new growth impetus for the Group in the future.

Bra pads and moulded products
Bra pads and moulded products mainly include bra pads and other
moulded products.

Revenue from this business segment amounted to approximately
HK$416.9 million (Fiscal 2021: HK$264.4 million), representing
a significant year-on-year growth of 57.7% and accounting for
5.0% of the Group's total revenue. Gross profit of the segment
increased by 66.9% to approximately HK$97.9 million, with the
gross profit margin up by 1.3 percentage points to 23.5% (Fiscal
2021: HK$58.7 million and 22.2%, respectively). The segment'’s
revenue growth primarily stemmmed from the increasing demand
for traditional intimate wear products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Footwear
Footwear mainly refers to shoes.

Revenue from this business segment amounted to approximately
HK$363.0 million (Fiscal 2021: HK$286.5 million), representing a
year-on-year increase of 26.7% and accounting for 4.3% of the
Group's total revenue. The revenue increase was attributable
to a single U.S. casual footwear brand partner maintaining solid
sales growth. Gross profit of the segment grew by 37.2% to
approximately HK$83.3 million, while the gross profit margin
was up by 1.8 percentage points to 23.0% (Fiscal 2021: HK$60.7
million and 21.2%, respectively), mainly benefited from the
gradual improvement in production efficiency during the year
under review following the shift of footwear production to
Vietnam.

Fabric masks
Fabric masks are mainly fabric sports masks.

This segment contributed revenue of approximately HK$164.1
million (Fiscal 2021: HK$649.6 million), representing a decrease of
74.7% against the previous year and accounting for 2.0% of the
Group's total revenue.

With the Pandemic coming under control and the subsequent
relaxation of pandemic prevention measures in countries around
the world, the revenue of the fabric mask segment declined as
anticipated. As the Group mainly produces fabric sports masks
and its major partners are renowned sports brands, leveraging the
Group's unique craftsmanship and technology, it developed and
manufactured masks for a well-known international sports brand
partner themed specifically for the Tokyo Olympics during the
year, which resulted in a strong market response.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Production capacity

As an important production base of Regina Miracle, Vietham
provides a solid foundation to support the continuous growth of
the Group's export business. As of 31 March 2022, the revenue
from production in Vietnam rose to 80% of the total revenue
of the Group. During the year, the Group completed its factory
layout at the Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park in Hai Phong City
("VSIP Hai Phong”), Vietnam. It is worth mentioning that the
Group’s recruitment and staff stability in the region have been
satisfactory, enabling the Group to benefit to the maximum
extent from the increasing proportion of mature employees, long
service of employees and the master-apprentice model, ensuring
that the production capacity and efficiency of each factory will
increase year on year. To meet the robust demand of domestic
and overseas brand partners as the market resumes, it will be the
Group's top priority to continuously enhance the efficiency and
effectiveness of its five factories in the Park. Through the increase
of production lines and further implementation of automation and
digitalization, the overall production capacity of the factories will be
further increased. Among which, the current operation and labour
efficiency as well as the single factory gross margin of the three
factories which were first put into operation in Vietnam, after four
to six years of integration, have outperformed the three factories
which were put into operation subsequently. According to the
rigorous technological authentication conducted by the Company,
there is still room for continuous growth and optimization of these
factories. Meanwhile, leveraging the actual operational experience
of the first three factories in Vietnam, the Group will accelerate
the production efficiency of the other factories in Vietnam so as
to enhance the consolidated gross margin. The first phase of
the facility in Hung Yen Province, Vietnam, which mainly applies
seamless knitting technology, officially commenced operation in
April 2021 and active recruitment is still in progress. As of the end
of March 2022, the total number of employees at the factory was
approximately 2,100, where the planned maximum number of
employees will be 4,500.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As for domestically in China, to enhance operational efficiency
and optimize its cost structure, the Group surrendered parts of
the leased factory in Shenzhen and made a write-off of fixed
assets of approximately HK$61.1 million during the year. The
aforementioned relocation of the Shenzhen production base
to Zhaoqging will further help the Group achieve an optimized
production capacity allocation in the long run. At the end of the
year, the Group had a total of approximately 39,000 employees
in Vietnam and approximately 6,200 employees at the Shenzhen
factory in the PRC, which serves as the research and development
("R&D") center and production base.

The vaccination rates of eligible employees at the Group’s
production bases in Shenzhen and Hai Phong reached
approximately 95% and 90%, respectively, which, to a large
extent, protected the health of employees and the safety of
the working environment, and maintained stable production
operations. From the end of 2021 to the beginning of 2022, there
were temporary closures and lockdown measures implemented
in Shenzhen and Vietnam respectively due to the resurgence of
the Pandemic. Thanks to the rapid response of the Shenzhen
and Vietnam governments, the Pandemic was soon brought
under control. The flexible deployment of human resources by
its local managerial team also enabled the Group to minimize the
impact of the Pandemic on its production capacity and avoided
compromising its ability to fully capture the strong order demand
from international and domestic brand partners.
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THE GROUP’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue

We derive our revenue primarily from direct sales of our products.
Our total revenue increased by 39.7% from approximately
HK$5,974.3 million in Fiscal 2021 to approximately HK$8,346.7
million in Fiscal 2022. A comparison of the Group's revenue for
Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2021 by product categories is as follows:

REENEERE

WA

BMIOBAZZRREMERNEZEHEE -
A MBEEFR2021 Bf R 4048M65,974 38 8L b
F+39.7% 220228 F 4 %%8,346. 7B BT ©
REE202201 F K 2021 B iR E m BRI 2D
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For the year ended 31 March
BZ23A3MALEE

2022

20224
% of
Revenue
L ON: ]
Aol

HK$'000

ki

2021
20216
% of
Revenue
SN
Aot

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT

Intimate wear BEEMR 4,715,950 56.5 2,886,006 483 1,829,944 63.4
Sports products EHER 2,190,683 26.3 1,596,354 26.7 594,329 37.2
Consumer electronics HES T
components 496,162 5.9 291,392 49 204,770 70.3
Bra pads and moulded B REBER
products 416,855 5.0 264,379 44 152,476 57.7
Footwear HIE 363,001 43 286,543 48 76,458 26.7
Fabric masks mos 164,077 2.0 649,616 10.9 (485,539) (74.7)
8,346,728 100.0 5,974,290 100.0 2,372,438 39.7

Revenue generated from sales of intimate wear, sports products
and bra pads and moulded products increased by 63.4%, 37.2%
and 57.7% respectively from Fiscal 2021 to Fiscal 2022. The
increase was primarily due to rapid rebound in orders, as brand
partners adapted to the new normal of the late-Pandemic era.

Revenue generated from sales of consumer electronics
components increased by HK$204.8 million, or 70.3%, from
approximately HK$291.4 million in Fiscal 2021 to approximately
HK$496.2 million in Fiscal 2022. The increase was primarily due to
strong demand for the entertaining consumer electronic products.

Revenue generated from sales of footwear increased by HK$76.5
million, or 26.7%, from approximately HK$286.5 million in Fiscal
2021 to approximately HK$363.0 million in Fiscal 2022. The
increase was primarily due to the increase in demand from our
casual footwear brand partner.

Revenue generated from sales of fabric masks decreased by
HK$485.5 million, primary due to the decrease in demand for
these products with the rollout of vaccines that helps curb the
effects of the Pandemic.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR D

Cost of sales SHER A
Cost of sales primarily consists of costs of raw materials, employee HEXATEBERMEBAA EEL2HE
benefit expenses for personnel directly involved in our production EFSEIMNESENAS £ERBIE
activities, depreciation of our production equipment and others. LA R EoAh ©

For the year ended 31 March

BZ3ANALEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
% of % of
HK$'000 Revenue  HK$'000  Revenue  HK$'000
T ON ] TEHR AR
BETRT BAk  BETT Aok BB
Costs of raw materials R R AR 3,050,049 36.5 2,140,905 359 909,144 425
Employee benefit expenses  EERFIFX 2,264,780 27.1 1,812,967 30.3 451,813 24.9
Depreciation nE 395,145 4.8 389,903 6.5 5,242 1.3
Others Hith 591,314 71 392,562 6.6 198,752 50.6
6,301,288 755 4,736,337 79.3 1,564,952 33.0

Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue decreased HER MG ABZEN B 9 b R2021 1 F 8
from 79.3% in Fiscal 2021 to 75.5% in Fiscal 2022. This was 79.3% T[4 E 202201 F8975.5% ° LT+ &
primarily attributable to improvement in production efficiency and HREERERS RIKABEER - KR
remarkable increase in revenue leading to economy of scale. TRACBEPTEL o

Cost of sales increased from approximately HK$4,736.3 million SHE XA R2021 BF G 408%4,736. 3B B TIg
in Fiscal 2021 to approximately HK$6,301.3 million in Fiscal 2022 INE202281 F47%5#6,301.35E L TEMA
primarily due to increase in costs of raw materials and employee PR EK A I B B 48 F 7 2 B U A S hn i
benefit expenses as a result of the increase in revenue. BTG
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

EMNRERNR

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3RA3MBLEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Gross Gross
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Profit margin Profit margin Change
E EfE EH EF% 2
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000
BETT BAl ot ABntt BT
Intimate wear B AKX 1,189,190 25.2 612,602 21.2 576,588 94.1
Sports products EPEM 513,923 235 298,885 18.7 215,038 71.9
Consumer electronics HEETERM
components 125,033 25.2 69,664 23.9 55,369 79.5
Bra pads and moulded M R ERER
products 97,866 235 58,651 22.2 39,216 66.9
Footwear B 83,316 23.0 60,747 21.2 22,569 37.2
Fabric masks mOE 36,112 22.0 137,404 21.2 (101,292 (73.7)
Gross profit EH 2,045,440 245 1,237,953 20.7 807,487 65.2

Our overall gross profit increased from approximately HK$1,238.0
million in Fiscal 2021 to approximately HK$2,045.4 million in
Fiscal 2022. The gross profit margin in Fiscal 2022 increased by
3.8 percentage points to 24.5%, as compared to 20.7% in Fiscal
2021.

Such increase was mainly due to improvement in production
efficiency and remarkable increase in revenue leading to
economies of scale.

Other income

Our other income consists primarily of government grants and
scrap sales income. It decreased from approximately HK$48.1
million in Fiscal 2021 to approximately HK$25.9 million in Fiscal
2022, primarily attributable to decrease in government grants
subsidies, which depend on the government grant policies and
criteria during different time periods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses primarily consist of freight and
transportation expenses, employee benefit expenses for our sales
personnel, travelling expenses, declaration charges, marketing
and promotion expenses and others.

For Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2021, the Group's distribution and
selling expenses as a percentage of total revenue remained
relatively stable at 2.2% and 2.3% respectively.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from approximately
HK$139.5 million in Fiscal 2021 to approximately HK$180.8
million in Fiscal 2022, primarily due to the increase in freight and
transportation expenses as a result of the increase in revenue.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of
employee benefit expenses for our administrative personnel,
depreciation and amortisation, other taxes and surcharges,
building management fee, insurance, office and administrative
expenses, bank charges and others.

General and administrative expenses as a percentage of total
revenue decreased from 10.6% in Fiscal 2021 to 9.8% in Fiscal
2022, mainly due to the Group’s streaming of operation and
operating leverage as a result of increase in revenue.

General and administrative expenses increased from
approximately HK$630.9 million in Fiscal 2021 to approximately
HK$817.7 million in Fiscal 2022, mainly due to increase in
employee benefit expenses.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs consist of employee benefit
expenses for our research and development personnel, raw
materials and consumables used and others.

Research and development costs as a percentage of total revenue
decreased from 3.3% in Fiscal 2021 to 3.0% in Fiscal 2022, due
to operating leverage as a result of increase in revenue.

Research and development costs increased from approximately
HK$200.0 million in Fiscal 2021 to approximately HK$253.0
million in Fiscal 2022, mainly due to increase in employee benefit
expenses.
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Other operating expenses
To achieve a better human resources and production capacity
allocation between the PRC and Vietnam in the long run:

1)  the Group surrendered parts of the leased factory in
Shenzhen to better utilize its production capacity and
improve operational efficiency, and the write-off of fixed
assets of approximately HK$9.6 million and HK$61.1 million
were recognised in Fiscal 2021 and Fiscal 2022 respectively;
and

2) in Fiscal 2021, the Group decided to implement human
resources restructuring to streamline its manpower
deployment during the period. As such, severance payment
in compliance with applicable PRC and Vietnamese rules
and regulations of approximately HK$40.1 million was
distributed to approximately 506 staff. No such expense
was recognised in Fiscal 2022.

Finance income
Finance income represents interest income on bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interest expense on borrowings, net of
interest expenses capitalised. Our finance costs as a percentage
of total revenue decreased from 2.1% in Fiscal 2021 to 1.8%
in Fiscal 2022, primarily due to more efficient use of banking
facilities and operating leverage as a result of increase in revenue.

Finance costs increased from approximately HK$123.6 million in
Fiscal 2021 to approximately HK$149.1 million in Fiscal 2022 was
primarily attributable to global trend of rising interest rate; partially
offset by saving arising from decrease in net debts.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses represent our total current and deferred
tax expenses under the relevant Hong Kong, PRC and Vietnam
income tax rules and regulations.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits in Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2021.
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group was
25% in Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2021.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietham were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2021: 20%). In
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, preferential tax
rates and tax holidays will be granted to new investment projects
based on regulated encouraged sectors, encouraged locations,
and size of the projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
holding the production facility at VSIP Hai Phong in Vietnam, is
subject to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive years,
commencing from the first year of making revenue. In addition,
the subsidiary is entitled to full exemption from corporate income
tax from Fiscal 2018 to Fiscal 2021; and a 50% reduction in
corporate income tax for the next nine years from Fiscal 2022,
which is offered by the Vietham Government and is stipulated in
the subsidiary’s investment license.

Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
holding the production facility at Hung Yen Province in Vietnam, is
entitled to full exemption from corporate income tax from Fiscal
2022 to Fiscal 2023; and a 50% reduction in corporate income
tax for the next four years from Fiscal 2024, which is offered by
the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the subsidiary’s
investment license.

The Group’s income tax expense was approximately HK$96.8
million in Fiscal 2022 (Fiscal 2021: HK$21.2 million).

Net profit

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, our net
profit increased from approximately HK$125.5 million in Fiscal
2021 to approximately HK$520.7 million in Fiscal 2022. Our net
profit margin increased from 2.1% in Fiscal 2021 to 6.2% in Fiscal
2022.

Excluding the one-off restructuring costs (included in other
operating expenses), our net profit was approximately HK$581.8
million in Fiscal 2022, with a net profit margin of 7.0%.

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings
The current ratio (calculated as current assets/current liabilities)
increased from 1.4 as of 31 March 2021 to 1.7 as of 31 March
2022, primarily due to a greater increase in current assets than
current liabilities.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's net debt (represented by bank
borrowings less the cash and cash equivalents) was approximately
HK$3,269.0 million (31 March 2021: HK$3,540.9 million). Net
gearing ratio, which was calculated as net debt divided by total
equity, improved from 115.3% as at 31 March 2021 to 89.9% as
at 31 March 2022, mainly due to improvement in net cash inflow
and net profit in Fiscal 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Working capital management

FEM IR [E5E A 28
NEASEVSEEISE

Receivables turnover days
Payables turnover days

The receivables turnover days and payables turnover days have
remained healthy and stable at 49 and 28 days respectively as at
31 March 2022.

Capital expenditures

For Fiscal 2022, the total addition to property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets amounted to
approximately HK$511.6 million (Fiscal 2021: HK$604.8 million),
which was mainly attributed to additions of production lines and
construction of our Vietnam facilities to cope with the Group’s
overall business expansion.

Pledged assets

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, insurance policy
investments in the amount of approximately HK$67.5 million and
HK$66.7 million respectively was pledged for financing related
insurance premium.

Foreign exchange risk

We mainly operate in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Most of
our operating expenses are denominated in RMB and VND, while
most of our sales are denominated and settled in U.S. dollar.
As the HK dollar is pegged to U.S. dollar, our foreign exchange
exposure in respect of the HK dollar is considered minimal. Our
management will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take prudent measures to minimize the
currency translation risk.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Material acquisitions and future plans for major
investment

Save for the investment in the construction of the production
facilities in Vietnam, during Fiscal 2021, the Group did not
conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In
addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections
headed “Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 September 2015 (the
“Prospectus”), and the framework construction agreements
disclosed in the announcements dated 24 July 2017 and 24
April 2018 respectively, the Group has no specific plan for
major investment or acquisition for major capital assets or other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed a total of approximately
45,385 full-time staff (31 March 2021: 43,710). The total staff
cost of the Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances,
provident funds and share incentive schemes) amounted to
approximately HK$2,895.1 million, representing 34.7% of the total
revenue of the Group.

We believe our success depends heavily upon our employees’
provision of consistent, quality and reliable services. In order to
attract, retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and quality
of our employees, we place a strong emphasis on training our
employees. We provide on-site training periodically and across
operational functions, including introductory training for new
employees, technical training, professional and management
training, team-building and communications training.

We enter into individual employment contracts with our employees
to cover matters such as wages, employee benefits, safety and
sanitary conditions in the workplace, and grounds for termination.
We have designed an evaluation system to assess the
performance of our employees. This system forms the basis of
our determinations of whether an employee should receive salary
raises, bonuses or promotions. Most of our technical personnel
are trained and promoted internally, leading to greater employee
stability and loyalty.
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Events after the balance sheet date

On 6 April 2022, the Company’s indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
Regina Miracle Fung Ying Limited (“RM Fung Ying"), acquired
49% of the equity interest in VSCO Holdings (the “Target
Company”) from ASLA US Holdings LLC (the “JV Partner”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Victoria's Secret & Co. ("VS"),
at a total consideration of US$45 million.

Upon completion of the acquisition, the Target Company will
become a joint venture owned as to 49% by RM Fung Ying and
51% by the JV Partner and will operate the PRC Business through
its subsidiaries. RM Fung Ying and VS will also provide the Initial
Capital Contribution amounted US$20 million to the Joint Venture
as agreed in proportion to RM Fung Ying and the JV Partner’s
respective equity interest in the Joint Venture. The Joint Venture
will be accounted for as an associate in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

Market Trend Analysis

In the post-Pandemic era, while the economies in Europe and the
United States have recovered vigorously, brands are still to seek a
balance between logistical risks and inventory pressure. With the
frequent occurrence of black swan events and the uncertainties
in the international social and economic environment, enterprises
are confronted with unprecedented challenges, but are also
presented with opportunities not seen before. The intimate
wear industry has shown a trend of polarization, as brands and
supply chain enterprises seek to safeguard business stability, the
strong getting stronger phenomenon has become increasingly
prominent. Over the past few years, Regina Miracle has been
dedicated to its IDM business model and driven its business
expansion through innovation. It has not only worked with its
brand partners to overcome challenges in achieving growth,
but has also consolidated its technological barriers and industry-
leading position. Meanwhile, it has insisted on optimizing its multi-
regional production capacity layout, which has shown promising
initial results in terms of both production capacity and efficiency.
The Group endeavors to address the immediate challenges while
also actively planning for the future, laying a solid foundation for
long-term development.
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Comfort and health remain mainstream elements in the underwear
sector, and with the resumption of social activities, growth of
demand for aesthetic products has started to return. In addition,
as women become more discerning in their choice of specialized
intimate wear, sub-categories such as plus size bras, nursing bras,
sanitary panties and light exercising outfits, are gaining attention.
Furthermore, the sports underwear market has been developing
at a rapid pace in recent years, and leggings, which complement
sports underwear, are also growing popular among consumers.
The technologies and craftsmanship developed by the Group
can effectively provide different product solutions targeted to
address needs for different occasions and various functions, etc.
On the other hand, the rise of the “Metaverse” concept has led
to increased demand for consumer electronic softgoods products
offering a comfortable, skin-friendly wearing experience that is
suitable for prolonged use, conducive to the increasingly prevalent
trend of using textiles for many different types of consumer
electronic products in the tech industry. Although market trends
vary by product segment, the stringent demand for well-fitting
and comfortable attributes is universal across intimate wear,
sports underwear and leggings, as well as consumer electronics
products. With a high degree of flexibility in its R&D capabilities,
Regina Miracle's three core technologies can be broadly applied
to various categories of products, enabling the Group to make
significant progress across multiple industries by leveraging its
unigue strengths.

With the relaxation of pandemic prevention measures in most
countries in Europe and the United States, the market is returning
to normal. In terms of the PRC market, health, comfort and online
shopping under the new retail era have become a lifestyle and
consumption habit. As people has spent proportionately more
time at home and home exercise has become a new form of
exercise, it is forecasted that there will be an increasing demand
for sports products and consumer electronics products in the
future. The Group has actively expanded its presence in the PRC
market on various fronts and expects this market to provide
important growth drivers in the future.

Insist on innovation-driven development, to thrive

on vast experience, and expand multiple business
segments to usher in a golden era of development
Faced with a combination of various factors, the industry is
confronted by challenges such as tight supply chains and rising
raw material costs, and is undergoing a reshuffle. In this context,
Regina Miracle's comprehensive competitiveness in terms of
technological barriers, world-leading product innovation capabilities
and highly viscous brand-partner relationships accumulated over
the years will be further highlighted, laying a solid foundation for
future growth and ushering in a golden era of development.
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Continuous upgrading of core technologies and
formation of a win-win and mutually beneficial
strategic cooperative relationship with loyal brand
partners

Over the years, Regina Miracle has adhered to its IDM business
model, conducing to its global industry-leading product innovation
capabilities. The Group has formed a diversified technological
matrix based on three core technologies: computer-aided
mold design and production, 3D compression molding, and
seamless bonding, with applications spanning various fields
such as intimate wear, sports and consumer electronics. The
uniqueness, leadership, malleability and versatility of the core
technologies allow for a high degree of cross-use by different
brand partners in different categories, as well as the ability to
cater to the different positioning and needs of each brand and
to continue to develop unique and innovative products for our
brand partners. This, coupled with the Group's insistence on a
mutually beneficial win-win strategy, consistent quality and a
high degree of flexibility, has won the trust and viscousness of
various brand partners to Regina Miracle IDM'’s positioning, which
will help strengthen the Group’s market position in the long run
after the industry reshuffle. The Group has also strived to foster
and steer the industry trends by continuously strengthening
and upholding its technological barriers, registering patents and
trademarks for its unique technologies, defining new standards
for the industry and providing consumers with a more direct and
in-depth understanding of high value-added products, leading the
development trend and demand of the market.

Building solid foundation to promote stability and
diversified growth with the launch of the Five-Year
Plan for Fiscal 2022-2026

After several years of significant investment, Regina Miracle
has laid a solid foundation for its future development. In order to
lead the Group to a new chapter of development and a brighter
future, after giving careful consideration to and conducting a
comprehensive review on the market and the businesses, the
management has formulated a brand-new five-year plan for Fiscal
2022-2026 focusing on the following areas:

L. Drive steady revenue growth: Adhere to the IDM business
model to drive steady growth in sales through innovation
and R&D, and accelerate the expansion into the PRC
market;

Il. Margin expansion: Continue to develop high value-added
and innovative products with better margin, while enhancing
management and production efficiency, improving operating
leverage as revenue grows, effectuating faster growth in
target earnings than in revenue; and
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lll. Sound financial position: Maintain healthy operating cash
flows and control capital expenditures through the above
measures in order to gradually lower gearing ratio in the
medium and long terms, following the completion of the
Group's capex intensive investment phase in Northern
Vietnam over the last few years.

During the year under review, the Group was successful in
realizing its target blueprint for Fiscal 2022 set out in its five
year plan, and on the basis of achieving high sales growth, its
efficiency and profit margin increased, laying foundation for the
Group’s medium- and long-term healthy financial position. Based
on currently foreseeable orders, the Group remains optimistic that
the business will continue to perform well in the first half of 2023.
Looking forward, despite numerous uncertainties in the marco-
environment, the Group will endeavor to comprehensively achieve
the established goals in the five-year plan for Fiscal 2023-2026,
fully utilize tailwinds from the advantages of the environment and
itself, take stock of the situation and remain flexible to respond,
and drive steady rise in the Group's business.

At the business level, the Group’s future growth will be driven by
the four business segments of intimate wear, sports products,
consumer electronics components products and footwear:

- The intimate wear business is expected to continue
growing steadily. The growth in the intimate wear
segment is mainly attributable to the expansion of individual
brand partners and the increase in market share of key brand
partners, underpinned by the development of innovative
craftmanship products and the product expansion into
several sub-categories.

- Growing share of the sports business, with innovative
craftsmanship leading the rapid growth in industry
demand. In recent years, international brands are
increasingly appreciating the importance of female sports
market, of which sports bras are a core product with huge
development potential still. Owing to its foresighted planning
several years ago, the Group’s strategic partnerships with
several leading global brands have become increasingly
steadfast and the addition of a number of fast-growing
new brands has formed an ideal brand partner portfolio
and helped the Group to grasp the growth momentum
of the sports intimate wear industry. Meanwhile, Regina
Miracle’s innovation and R&D capabilities have led to the
evolution and upgrading of leggings in the sports segment,
significantly enhancing their functionality and comfort, etc.
Demand for products in the sports leggings segment is
growing significantly and is expected to replicate the growth
trajectory of sports bras.
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- The consumer electronic components business is
showing a trend of diversified development for the
coming years to build a more stable product and brand
partner portfolio. \With the emergence of the “Metaverse”
concept, more emphasis is being placed on the use of
skin-friendly materials for consumer electronic products
to give users a better and more comfortable experience
when using the products for long time. The Group is well
positioned to apply its innovative craftsmanship and three
core technologies in the consumer electronics segment,
conducive to develop market-leading products. In addition
to the existing international brand partners, the Group
introduced domestic leading brand partners during the year
with the opportunities for expansion of product categories,
driving the growth of consumer electronics components
segment of the Group in the coming years. Relevant brand
partners have been promptly deploying in this field as well
as lengthening their product cycles, resulting in relatively
high sales visibility. The Group actively plans and responds
to the changing high technology product market through
implementing a strategy to diversify its brand partners and
product portfolios, laying a flexible and stable foundation
for the development of consumer electronic components
business.

= The footwear business will continue its steady growth
on the current basis. The Group is currently focused on
working with the American casual sportswear brand. With
years of joint development, the partners will continue to go
hand in hand and maintain the growth momentum in the
foreseeable future.

A maturing multi-regional production capacity layout,
with advantages of Vietnam as a production base in
the global supply chain becoming more prominent

In order to enhance its core competitive advantages, the Group
is committed to multi-regional production capacity deployment,
bolstering the growth of its export business with its production
bases in Vietnam, while promoting the development of the PRC
market by leveraging the production bases in China.

Against the backdrop of the increasing complexity of global
competition and cooperation, Vietnam has become highly sought
after by global manufacturing enterprises due to its status as
a member state of various trade agreements, its advantages
in terms of population size, labor costs and cultural standards,
and the local government’'s commitment to ensuring stable
operations for supply chain enterprises. After around six years
of strategic deployment for overseas production capacity layout
and team cultivation, the Group's production capacity in Vietnam
now presents multiple advantages in terms of scale, power,
agility and high-quality output. Meanwhile, the implementation of
digital management has enabled the Group’s deployment of its
production capacity to be more coordinated and agile. In addition,
Regina Miracle has gradually refined its supply chain localization,
including driving its core suppliers partners to accelerate the
deployment or expansion of local production capacity in Vietnam,
thereby shortening the delivery cycle, improving response time
and forming an efficient local problem-solving mechanism, and
ultimately optimizing integrated cost efficiency. The Group's
competitive advantages are more evidently manifested as the
industry supply undergoes consolidation.
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In respect of its business development in the PRC, the Group
has also improved production efficiency by promoting automation
and digitalization to address the needs of production capacity,
strengthen supply chain management, develop local suppliers
and ensure fast delivery as well as plan production capacity
deployment in advance. With the relocation of the Group's
R&D center and production base from Shenzhen to the new
industrial park in Zhaoging New District in the Greater Bay Area
in phases during the period starting from mid-2023 to end of
2024, to produce mainly intimate wear, sports apparel and
consumer electronics components with its leading and innovative
craftsmanship, the Group will be better positioned to collaborate
with international brand partners in tapping the PRC market and to
step up efforts to explore new opportunities with emerging online
brands in the domestic market and other channels.

Integrating technological innovation and digital
intelligence to accelerate penetration into the PRC
market

The intimate wear market in China is characterized by low brand
concentration, with most of the existing brands offering a single
or relatively narrow product range, while consumer demand is
growing rapidly across product segmentation and functional
specialization. This industry trend, coupled with the rapid
development of e-commerce in the PRC, provides an excellent
opportunity for all brands with potential to expand their market
share.

In order to better serve our brand partners that make sales in the
PRC and to more quickly identify and address the latest market
trends and consumers’ needs, the Group entered into a strategic
partnership with Tmall Intimate Wear and TMIC (Tmall Innovation
Center) on 20 May 2022. TMIC has gained insights into consumer
aspirations and feedback from mass purchase activities, forward-
looking trend data analysis and its understanding of consumers’
behaviours, which helps the Group to carry out specialised and
precise R&D, translate consumers’ demands into concrete
technological solutions and integrate them into end products.
Through the joint efforts of the three parties, the Group hopes to
achieve the goals of incubating highly reputable and consistently
best-selling products that could set new trends, creating
innovative technology IP, and establishing industry standards for
specific categories, thereby promoting the healthy and orderly
development of the intimate wear market in the PRC.
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The establishment of a joint venture between Regina Miracle and
Victoria's Secret also marks a strategic move towards the Group's
layout in the PRC market. As the world’s largest international
intimate wear brand, Victoria’s Secret boasts strong consumer
brand awareness and mature retail operation and marketing
capabilities in the PRC market, which highly complement with the
Group’s strength in product innovation, research and development
and manufacturing, as well as its deep insights of the PRC market
and consumers. With a stringent set of five-year growth plan and
profitability targets, the joint venture will focus on three main
dimensions encompassing product, supply chain and business
operations, strengthening the brand in all aspects to better cater
for the PRC market. Recently, the range of products we have
developed with VS China for the PRC market has been well-
received. The first stage of the transformation to brand’s online
business has already yielded remarkable results with considerable
brand sales growth compared to pro partnership period, in which
the first launch of “Double-Size ‘Jelly-Striped’ Bra Top” has seen
cumulative sales of over 250,000 units within four months, while
the brand'’s impact and performance has gradually become more
consistent, which clearly demonstrated the synergies between VS
China and Regina Miracle to lead the market.

In Fiscal 2022, Regina Miracle officially incorporated ESG into
the supervisory responsibilities of the Board, and established
an environmental, social and governance committee (the ESG
committee), led by the Group’s Chief Operating Officer, to
strengthen the Board's role in overseeing ESG policies, and
facilitate better planning for the management and achievement
of the Group’s sustainability goals. During the year, the Group
decided upon six key issues of concern, including climate
action, life on the land, clean water and sanitation, responsible
consumption and production, decent work and economic
growth, and gender equality, based on the United Nations’ 2030
Sustainable Development Goals. In response to these six major
directions, the Group has set itself four goals for 2030, namely
carbon reduction, waste management, sustainable innovation,
and people and community. Regina Miracle will continue to be
committed to promoting environmental and social sustainable
development, creating long-term value for all stakeholders and
assuming its social responsibility with a responsible attitude.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For information on the Group’s 2021 Sustainability Report, please
click the link below or scan the QR code:
http://reginamiracleholdings.com/sustainability_report_2021/

Conclusion

With years of perseverance in innovative design and manufacturing,
Regina Miracle has successfully established solid technological
barriers and developed market-leading products. In the future, the
Group will continue to give full play to its advantages in various
aspects and pursue win-win situations with its brand partners.
At the same time, the Group will continue to be committed
to fulfilling its social responsibilities and contributing to the
enhancement of the environment, employees and the community,
thereby achieving sustainability and delivering long-term value for
shareholders and stakeholders.

The Group’s encouraging performance during the year can be
attributed to the tireless efforts and dedication of the management
team and colleagues. The Group would also like to express its
sincere gratitude to the brand partners, suppliers partners and
business partners as well as the shareholders for their unwavering
support in overcoming the challenges created by the Pandemic.
The management is confident that the Group can sustain its
growth momentum in the future, further achieve the goals set
out in its five-year plan, and move closer towards a golden era of
development.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

ES SAREEERAAUENEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (33 %) (also known as YY Hung (H5725)),
aged 59, is the founder of the Group and has been a Director of
the Company since its incorporation on 21 September 2010. He
is also the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall development strategies and business plans
and overseeing the operations of the Group. With over 22 years of
experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry, Mr. Hung
has been the key driver of the Group's business strategies and
achievements to date and continues to oversee the management
of its operations and business. Mr. Hung is also a director of each
of the BVI, PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hung has been the executive vice president of Shenzhen
Underwear Association (OFIITTARAKITERE) since 2012,
the president of Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity
Association (RYITILEAFTIREEZE) since January 2015 and a
council member of South China Athletic Association (FZEREE =).
Mr. Hung received the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong

2007 from the Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Hung is the uncle of Ms. Sze Shui Ling, senior management
and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior
management of the Company, is a cousin of Mrs. Hung.

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (#kZ8), aged 46, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. Mr. Yiu
joined the Group as a financial controller on 17 June 2002 and
was promoted to the Chief Financial Officer of the Group in 2005.
Mr. Yiu is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management, internal control, legal and compliance matters of the
Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Yiu has over 24 years of experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yiu worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong in the tax department
from August 1998 to June 2002 and held the position of senior
consultant from July 2000 to June 2002. Mr. Yiu graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a first class honors
degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in November 1998.
He is a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Yiu is a
cousin of Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior management of the Company.

HITES

BB (X BHITZE) 4 - 5957 - BAEME
BlEE A - BARRAFIN201059 A21 B Mk
URBEEARARESE c BFIMAARTEE
BHEWITE  REZESIRERTIEZES
KE - BEBAERITEEEERERER
B UREBALEEE R ERY
ARELEXFEERBRERS 2504 H
)AL EEBRIE IR NERKE - Wi
BEBHBEREBKER - KAt MARE
ERABEXES  FRERESSHBEAR
MWES -

A B2012F RIEARYIMAKRITERS
BEEeR - B2015F1 ARETRIIT
PEEEgeRk  RAREEESES -
G RBE BT X AEEE2007FEEETF
TERE-

HEERRRBSREBRERNTESHTE
BUEWER - ARBISREREHRMES
HERHRRERS

PREER L4 - 4657 - M2015F6 220 EZ
EABERABNITES i ERR200296 A
17BIMARSE BTG BBE - WH2005F
EAAASEERUEE - AEFERE
ERALEMNRBYKEE - NEPEE &
BRAEREE - BITIRARFZEHE AR
EIEERG - hEEBEBBUFETKE
IRACER o MINAARSEER] - B 1998F8 A%
200246 A B BB & LB KB EFTRIERS
PRS0 T4E - W 20004E7 8 200246 A
HIRE T S AR EER - k£ 199811 A&
ERBEBBIRE  DERRLEGTEE
T4 - FAREFTARSTMATER
GEAD C BACHAAEE RS HIRES
EXB2gERLE - hAEARRABRE
BREPIMPL AR ES o

40 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 1REIM (1) AR A 5



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
EE SAREEERAAUENEE

Mr. LIU Zhenqgiang (2I7E5#), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015 and has
been the chief research and development and design officer of
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd since April
2008. He is primarily responsible for product design, research
and development management of the Group. He also serves as
a director in a number of the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Liu
joined the previous bra processing facilities in February 1999 and
held the positions as manager of the research and development
department from February 1999 to September 2003 and chief
research and development and design officer from September
2003 to April 2008. From August 1998 to February 1999, Mr. Liu
served as a supervisor of quality assurance department at Shun
Cheong Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. He has over
22 years of experience in intimate wear design and research and
development management and contributed in a number of utility
model patents and invention patents on intimate wear design.
Mr. Liu graduated from Wuxi College of Light Industry (£E$5&8 T
KE) (later renamed as Jiangnan University ((T & A£2)) majoring
in textile design in June 1998 and a degree of executive master
of business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (T B ZF%) in September 2013.

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (BR& ), aged 45, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group on 22 June 2015 and 30 November
2015 respectively. He was appointed as the chairman of the
environmental, social and governance committee of the Company
on 13 September 2021. He has been the general manager of
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“RMIA
Shenzhen”) since April 2008. He is primarily responsible for
production management of the Group. He is also a director of
both RMIA Shenzhen and Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Ltd. Mr.
Chen joined the previous bra processing facilities in October 2000
and held the following positions: production supervisor from
October 2000 to June 2001, production manager from June 2001
to September 2003, senior production manager from September
2003 to June 2006 and general manager from June 2006 to
April 2008. He has over 20 years of experience in intimate wear
manufacture management. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree
in shipbuilding engineering from East China Shipbuilding Institute
(FEHMA T EZP7) (later renamed as Jiangsu University of
Science and Technology (T &k fH AE)) in July 1999 and a degree
of executive master of business administration from Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business (KT EZt) in September 2013.
Mr. Chen is the Committee Member of the 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Zhaoging.
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Ms. SZE Shui Ling (#5&1%), aged 50, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015 and a
member of the environmental, social and governance committee
of the Company on 13 September 2021. She has been the sales
and marketing director of Regina Miracle International Limited
since 24 June 1999 and Regina Miracle International (Group)
Limited since 18 September 2006. She is responsible for the
sales and marketing affairs of the Group. Ms. Sze has over 23
years of experience in the sales and marketing of intimate wear.
She is also a director of a number of the Company’s subsidiaries.
Ms. Sze holds a certificate in tourism management program in
Camosun College in Canada in December 1996. Ms. Sze is the
niece of Mr. Hung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. OR Ching Fai (#;5#), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is the chairman of the audit committee. Dr.
Or was appointed as a member of the environmental, social and
governance committee of the Company on 13 September 2021.
Dr. Or is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and
guidance on the business development of the Group.

Dr. Or received a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics
and psychology from the University of Hong Kong in July 1972
before joining The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited as a management trainee. Dr. Or worked in a variety of
positions in personnel, securities, retail and corporate banking
divisions. Dr. Or was appointed as general manager and group
general manager in 2000 and became an executive director in
2005. Dr. Or was then appointed as vice-chairman and chief
executive of Hang Seng Bank Limited (B4 $#R71TER A7), a
banking company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), in 2005 and retired in
May 2009.
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Dr. Or holds the following positions in companies listed on the B TREBB T LA A BEE TS
Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 7 :

Company and its Principal Business

NAREEFEEH

Stock Exchange
BERXZ

Position

By

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Hong Kong Stock Independent non-executive
(ARBHELEEEGR AT, ajewellery company Exchange director
AREHREEEERAT - B—HKEAQT BIEBEAZ P BUIFHITES

China Strategic Holdings Limited (F 5 £ B HR A R]), Hong Kong Stock Chairman and non-executive

an investment and metal trading company Exchange director
HEREEBRAR > R—HRERECBEEAR BB P TEFRENTES

Playmates Holdings Limited (¥ 2B AR A 7)), a Hong Kong Stock Independent non-executive

property investment and toy marketing company Exchange director
(effective date: 21 May 2021)
FEEBEERAR  n—EMERER BIBBEAZ P BWIFNTES

AEMBHEAR (EXBE - 2021F5H218)

Dr. Or has been appointed as independent non-executive director
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited in
December 2018. He ceased to act as non-executive chairman and
non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited on 1 January
2021, ceased to act as independent non-executive director of
Television Broadcasts Limited on 1 January 2020 and ceased
to act as independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited on 31 October 2018. He was
the vice-chairman and independent non-executive director of
G-Resources Group Limited until his retirement on 30 June 2017.
He was also an independent non-executive director of Hutchison
Whampoa Limited (a2 & AR A 7)) and Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited (BlZ=MZz= AR A R]), from February 2000 to May 2009
respectively. All these companies are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Dr. Or was the deputy chairman and non-
executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited, a company
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, until his retirement
on 31 December 2017.

LT R2018F 12 AEZEATR TR
T(EMNBRARNBYIENTES - BE
20211 A1 BT HEEERRRIERER
NAIMIENITEERIENITES - H20204F
1TATHRBR T BEETERERERARNBEL
JEITEE N B2018F 10 A31 HE NHBET
FREIERITROERATNBILIERNITE
2o HEEMHEERERERERAAMNEE
BB IERITEETEE2017F6A30HE
T o FINE 200042 A £200945 A Hifk o
FIEEMCERERAREEZMEARA
RIMBYIENITES - ZER AR EBH
RRT_ET o fAfE = EE{TAquis Entertainment
Limited(—RIRBRMNES R S ETEHAR])
MBI EFERIENITESES2017F12H31H
BT o

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 43



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY

ES SAREEERAAUENEE

Dr. Or is a vice patron of the board of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong. He was also the chairman of the Hong Kong
Association of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was vice chairman
of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and
2005. He was also the chairman of the Financial Services Advisory
Committee and a member of the Services Promotion Programme
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He
was a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, vice president and a
council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member
of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee, the chairman
of Executive and Campaign Committee of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong, the deputy council chairman of the Council of City
University of Hong Kong, a council member of the University of
Hong Kong, an adviser of the Employers’ Federation of Hong
Kong and a member of the Planning Committee of the bth East
Asian Games.

Dr. Or was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Honorary University Fellow
from the University of Hong Kong in 2009. He was conferred an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong
Kong and an Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng Management
College in November 2014 and May 2017 respectively. Dr. Oris a
Justice of the Peace.

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie (B8E ki), aged 66, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 11 September 2015 and is primarily responsible
for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business
development of our Group. She is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mrs. To has extensive
experience in the garments trading industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mrs. To was employed by Mast Industries (Far East)
Limited, the sourcing arm of LBrands, as the president from
January 2007 to May 2013 and the executive vice president from
September 1996 to December 2006. From April 1995 to August
1996, she served as a director of Li & Fung (Trading) Ltd., a
Hong Kong based global sourcing company. From January 1991
to February 1995, Mrs. To was the executive vice-president of
Bonaventure Textiles Limited, a garment manufacturing company.
From June 1979 to December 1990, Mrs. To held various
positions from executive trainee to assistant managing director of
Swire and MacLaine Limited, the trading division of John Swire &
Sons Limited. Mrs. To obtained a bachelor degree of arts from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1979.
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Ms. TAM Laiman (FEEX), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the business development of
our Group. She is also a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Tam has extensive management experience
in the consumer products marketing, distribution and retailing
industry. Ms. Tam retired from the office either as a manager
or an executive director of the following six group companies in
Swire Pacific Limited on 1 October 2018: SRM Holdings, Inc., a
holding company of brands investment; United Sheen Limited,
a holding company of brands investment; Columbia Sportswear
Commercial (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (M @tk i@ SRERE (L8 A
R/ 7)), a sales and distribution company of branded outdoor and
sports clothing and footwear; SCCH Limited, a holding company
of brands investment; Swire Brands Limited, a holding company
of consumer brands investment, and Swire Industrial Limited, an
investment holding company in cold storage, waste management,
environmental services, painting and sugar businesses, and
distribution and sales of motor vehicles in PRC and Hong Kong.

From January 1990 to July 2013, Ms. Tam served the positions
as managing director, director and general manager of Swire
Resources Limited, a marketing, distribution and retail company of
branded clothing and footwear product, where she was primarily
responsible for the company’s overall development and operation.
From October 1987 to December 1989, Ms. Tam was the general
manager in charge of the overall operation of Reebok Hong
Kong Ltd., a sports brand company of clothing and footwear.
From December 1983 to May 1987, Ms. Tam worked at Plough
Consumer Products (Asia) Ltd., a consumer products marketing
and distribution company, as the regional marketing manager
responsible for the Southeast Asia market. From May 1978 to
November 1983, Ms. Tam worked at the group companies of
Fung Ping Fan Group, a diversified company involving in consumer
brands distribution and real estate businesses.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor degree in administration from
University of Ottawa in May 1976. Ms. Tam has been an
executive committee member of Benji's Centre (EBRFRZEH
I[») and the vice chairman of the supervisory board of Macao
International Brand Enterprise Commercial Association (8 P9I
B ) since 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YIU Ka So (kin#t), aged 48, has been the general manager
of operation of the Group since he joined the Group on 3 March
2004. He is primarily responsible for operations management of
the Group. Mr. Yiu is also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen,
a director of RM Shenzhen, the legal representative and general
director of Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd and of
Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd. Mr. Yiu has over
17 years of experience in enterprise and operations management.
Mr. Yiu served at Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited), a
solar company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as an
executive director from October 2010 to December 2013. Mr. Yiu
obtained a bachelor degree in engineering and a master degree
of science in civil engineering, both from the University of Hong
Kong, in December 1997 and November 2001, respectively. Mr.
Yiu is a cousin of Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony and Mrs. Hung.

Ms. AU, Wai Ting Jennifer (EZ1%), aged 36, is the Investor
Relations & Strategic Development Director of the Group. She
joined the Group in May 2016 and is primarily responsible for
overseeing and managing the Group's investor relations function
as well as involving in the development of corporate strategy,
and business development. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Au
specialized in equity research covering consumer discretionary
sector at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited and Mizuho Securities Asia
Limited, as well as risk advisory at Ernst & Young Global Services
in Hong Kong.

Ms. Au holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Finance and
Accounting of the New York University Leonard N. Stern School
of Business. She has been a CFA charterholder since March 2015.

Ms. LEUNG, Mai Ling Connie ($%%), aged 56, has been the
general manager of business division of the Group since she
joined the Group on 3 September 2003. She is responsible for
sales management of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in the clothing industry, of which over 18 years in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Leung worked at PLH Fashion Group, a trading company,
as a divisional manager primarily responsible for merchandising
and management from November 2002 to September 2003.
From 1995 to 2002, Ms. Leung worked at Mast Industries (Far
East) Limited, a garments and accessories trading company, as
a merchandising manager and regional merchandising manager,
where she was primarily responsible for the regional market
management. From October 1993 to June 1995, she served as a
sourcing manager in charge of material sourcing, purchasing and
development in Lion-Redcliffe & Company Limited, an embroidery
manufacturer. In addition, Ms. Leung served as an assistant
merchandiser overseeing sample development, production and
shipment in Texunion Garment Co., Ltd., a garment manufacturer,
from July 1985 to June 1986.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND COMPANY SECRETARY
EE SAREEERAAUENEE

Ms. Leung obtained a diploma in clothing in Hong Kong Vocational
Training Council in July 1985, a national diploma in clothing in
Hong Kong Business and Technical Education Council in March
1986, a diploma in clothing design and production management
from the Clothing and Footwear Institute in 1993. Ms. Leung
completed the modular post-graduate diplomas in textile and
clothing and clothing studies in October 1995 and November
1996, respectively, and obtained a master of arts degree in
clothing studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 1999.

Mr. ZHANG Wenbo (&3 1H), aged 42, has been the deputy
general manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen since December 2017. He is responsible
for coordinating and promoting intimate wear and product
development of the Group. He was also the senior manager of the
research and development department of RMIA Shenzhen from
April 2008 to February 2012 and the sample development deputy
general manager of the intimate wear division of RMIA Shenzhen
from February 2012 to December 2016. He was the sample
development deputy general manager of the sportswear division
of RMIA Shenzhen from December 2016 to November 2017. Mr.
Zhang joined the previous bra processing facilities in September
2002 and held the positions in the research and development
department as supervisor from September 2002 to May 2004 and
manager from May 2004 to April 2008. Mr. Zhang has over 18
years of experience in the research and development of intimate
wear products. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in thermal
engineering from Jiamusi University (fE/RHTAZ2) in June 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAW Kwan Chuen (£#J%), aged 43, joined the Group on
15 December 2011 as our group financial controller and was
appointed as company secretary of the Company on 22 June
2015. He is primarily responsible for financial reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Law
has approximately 21 years of experience in auditing, financial
reporting and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Law worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers from October 2004 to
December 2011 with the last position as manager. From July
2001 to October 2004, he worked at Moore Stephens as an
auditor.

Mr. Law obtained a bachelor degree of business administration
majoring in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (/& X AE) in November 2001. He has been
an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute
since February 2004 and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute since September 2004. Mr. Law has also been a
Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA") charterholder of the CFA
Institute since September 2006, a fellow member of Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants since July 2009 and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since September 2014.

R TH1985F 7 AT BB IR B E
REZEUS - N1986F 3K ST B
Rtz A Z 82 (Hong Kong Business and
Technical Education Council) 8% IREE B
SR WN1993F ER K R E B g H
KR REEEE R - 2T 5 7R
1995410 B F 1996 4F 11 B FE Ak 4 4 2 AR 2
N AREMITRESTR - WH1999F 12 ABE
HEBTRERE A REATTICEB AL ©

RXERE @ 425% 0 B2017F 12 AREE
RMIA Shenzhenfft 2 # L3 2 38R 81 48
KIE BERENEHAEERNKKER
B - 5 IRER20084F4 A £201242 A HAMS
ABRMIA Shenzhenffi B E M A4S - I
201292 A E2016412 A HiE ARMIA
Shenzhenfh & AR mAE IR EI4E4E
JRE20165F12 A £2017F11 A I AES
AR 1% A 2 EP B AR AT IR - SR 20024
ORAMARIME N T - WH2002F9A8 =
200445 A BRI EE P E (T £ B & 12004
58 2£2008F 4 A BRI ELACIE o sSREER
A B AKERFEEEBBISFLR - R
A 2002456 A ERET KEBEEFE TR
B8] o

REWE

EHEEHE - 4358 0 R2011F12 8158 10
AREE - EEREBRE - WR20154F
6A2ZAEZAAARRTINARMWE - HE
ZEEAEENTBRE DEMERAA
MWESH - BUEETER - PHHREA LD
ERMESEZBA2FREER - NINARER
Al > B A HM2004F10 A E2011F12 A 8
BRE LRGBS A E/R AT TR - BERLAT
B A4SIE - ;2001497 A 22004410 A £
M BN EHEES AN E AT AR EED

ZE A R2001F 11 BEVSEBEP X KEM T
EEIEB LB - HHEEEGET o [ EH20044F
2ARKARBESFARNAEASHKE © A
M E2004F9ARK AT B ARAEAEH
K8 o B4 INE 200699 A K AIFHFE
BOHTERH & (CFA Institute) BV F &R
HER([CFAL) - F120094E7 A Rl 14 /4 5 B 4
HFARSTMATHEFE 8 XA20144F9
AR AR SSHMAENEREE -

FFIR4E2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 47



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 194 to
195 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended to pay to the shareholders of
the Company a final dividend of HK3.3 cents per share for
the year ended 31 March 2022. Subject to the approval of the
proposed final dividend by the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Friday, 16
September 2022, the final dividend is expected to be paid on or
about Thursday, 6 October 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 9
September 2022 to Friday, 16 September 2022, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the annual
general meeting, shareholders should ensure that all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company's
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Thursday, 8 September
2022. The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Friday, 16 September 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement for
the final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Thursday, 22 September 2022 to Monday, 26
September 2022, both days inclusive. To qualify for the final
dividend, shareholders should ensure that all properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Wednesday, 21 September 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 14 and pages 15 to 39
of this annual report respectively. Discussions on the Group's
relationships with its key stakeholders are also set out in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 14 of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Group's
Financial Information Summary on page 284 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five years ended 31 March 2022
are set on page 284 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,830.5 million (2021: HK$1,772.0 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2022 amounted to HK$1.9 million (2021: HK$0.7 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company approved and adopted a share
option scheme on 11 September 2015 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme took effect on 8 October 2015
(the listing date of the Company), and no option has been granted
up to the date of this report.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Who may participate

Subject to the terms of Share Option Scheme, the Board
(including any committee or delegate of the Board appointed
by the Board to perform any of its functions pursuant to
the rules of the Share Option Scheme) may, at its absolute
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of shares of the Company (“Shares”) as the Board
may determine to an employee (whether full time or part-
time) or a director of a member of the Group (the “Eligible
Person”).

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any options granted under any other share
option scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the listing date of the
Company unless the Company obtains a fresh approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible
Person under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of options under the Share Option Scheme shall
be open for acceptance for such period (not exceeding 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board
may determine and notify to the Eligible Persons concerned
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the duration of the Share Option Scheme.
An offer of options not accepted within this period shall
lapse. An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance
of the grant of an option and such payment shall not be
refundable and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of
the exercise price.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer
of the option; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Time for Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by the Board at the offer date when making
an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to exceed
the period of 10 years from the offer date of such option.

Duration of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the listing date of
the Company, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior
thereto which are at that time or become thereafter capable
of exercise under the rules of the Share Option Scheme, or
otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2022 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, sales to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 45.2%
of the Group's total sales for the year (of which sales to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 18.1%).
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 36.7% of the Group's total purchases for the year
(of which purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 17.7%).

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or
any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2022.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LIU Zhengiang

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. SZE Shui Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. OR Ching Fai

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie

Ms. TAM Laiman

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Liu Zhengiang, Mr. Chen Zhiping and Ms. Sze Shui Ling will retire
as Directors in accordance with Article 84 of the amended and
restated Articles of Association of the Company (”Articles of
Association”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY'’S PROFILE

Profile details of the Directors of the Company, the senior
management and company secretary of the Group are set out on
pages 40 to 47 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 11
September 2021.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2021.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
terms of service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including the Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Our
employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may distribute
dividends to its shareholders by way of cash or by other means
that the Company considers appropriate. The recommendation of
the payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion
of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the shareholders.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time in
light of the following factors in determining whether dividends are
to be declared and paid:

o Results of operations of the Company;

° Cash flows of the Company;

° Financial condition of the Company;

° Shareholders’ interests of the Company;

° General business conditions and strategies of the Company;

. Capital requirements of the Company;

° The payment by subsidiaries of the Company of cash
dividends to the Company; and

° Other factors the Board may deem relevant.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March
2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director and/or any of
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at
anytime during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

56

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited (“Le Ying”, together
with its subsidiaries collectively, the “Le Ying Group"”) is
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), a controlling shareholder and an executive
Director of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into a new agreement with Le Ying
on 9 May 2018 to regulate the sales of intimate wear and
sport wear products of the Company to Le Ying Group (the
“New Le Ying Sales Agreement”) in place of the previous
agreement entered on 11 September 2015. Pursuant to the
New Le Ying Sales Agreement, price of the sales of intimate
wear and sport wear products by the Company to Le Ying
Group shall be determined on an arm’s length basis with
reference to (1) the cost of production and the expected
gross profit margin, (2) the average selling price of the
products of comparable nature and scale and accepted by an
independent third party in the twelve-month period prior to
the relevant transaction, (3) where there is no such average
selling price available, any most recent available sale price
of products of comparable nature and scale offered by the
Group and accepted by an independent third party, the latest
available market data, and (4) the prevailing market price for
the sale of products of comparable nature and scale, which
should be in any event no less favorable to the Group than is
available to independent third parties.
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The New Le Ying Sales Agreement became effective on 1
April 2021 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a term on
31 March 2024 or (ii) the date on which Le Ying ceases to
be the connected person of the Company, whichever comes
earlier. The parties to the New Le Ying Sales Agreement
may negotiate to extend the agreement for a further term
of three years within two months before the expiry of the
three-year term of the agreement unless the agreement
is terminated due to Le Ying ceasing to be the connected
person of the Company.

On 31 March 2021, the Company entered into a new
sales agreement with Le Ying (the “2021 Le Ying Sales
Agreement”) with effective date on 1 April 2021, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to supply and procure its
subsidiaries to supply to Le Ying Group intimate wear
products, sport wear products and pandemic prevention
products for a term of three years expiring on 31 March
2024. The price determination terms are the same as the
New Le Ying Sales Agreement and was determined on an
arm'’s length basis.

The proposed annual cap for aggregate annual purchase
amount payable by the Group for the years ending 31 March
2022, 2023 and 2024 will be HK$60.0 million, HK$80.0
million, and HK$100.0 million, respectively. Details of
the 2021 Le Ying Sales Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2021.

During the year, the annual cap for revenue from sales to
Le Ying for Fiscal 2022 was HK$60.0 million, the actual
transaction amount for Fiscal 2022 with Le Ying was
HK$34.3 million and the annual cap has been kept.

The transactions contemplated under the New Le Ying Sales
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory (Shenzhen)
Limited (“Shun Cheong”) is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a controlling
shareholder and an executive Director of the Company, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 27 March 2020, Shun Cheong entered into a property
leasing agreement (the “Property Leasing Agreement”)
with Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(BR#EZRAKXORY) R 2 F) ("RMIA Shenzhen”),
a company incorporated under the laws of the People's
Republic of China and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to which Shun Cheong agreed
to lease RMIA Shenzhen the Building located at Redstar
Community, Gongming Subdistrict Office of Shenzhen
Guangming District, Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China
(the “Premises”) for a term of three years. Pursuant to the
Property Leasing Agreement, the rent was determined on
an arm'’s length basis with reference to (i) the market rent
of the Premises according to a fair rent letter issued by an
independent property valuer (the “Valuer”); and (i) various
conditions of the Premises, including but not limited to
the location of the Premises as well as the management
services associated with the Premises. The Valuer assessed
the market rent of the Premises, based on the prevailing
market conditions and the rental level of similar properties in
the vicinity.

The Property Leasing Agreement became effective on 1
April 2020 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a period
of three years or (i) RMIA Shenzhen may terminate the
agreement before the expiry of its term by giving a six
months’ notice to Shun Cheong. RMIA Shenzhen may by
giving Shun Cheong a three months’ notice before the
expiry of the agreement, request for the renewal of the
lease.

The maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by RMIA
Shenzhen to Shun Cheong under the Property Leasing
Agreement for each of the years ending 31 March 2023
is RMB15.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$18.8
million). The actual amount paid in Fiscal 2022 was HK$18.8
million.

The transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Float Limited (“Float”) is a limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong, wholly-owned by Ms. Hung Cheuk Man,
daughter of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a
controlling shareholder and an executive Director of the
Company, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

On 27 March 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
(the "Float Sales Agreement”) with Float, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to supply and procure its
subsidiaries to supply to Float intimate wear and sportswear
products for a term of three years. Pursuant to the Float
Sales Agreement, the price of the sales of intimate wear
and sportswear products by the Company to Float shall be
determined on an arm’s length basis with reference to (1)
the cost of production and the expected gross profit margin,
(2) the average selling price of the products of comparable
nature and scale and accepted by an independent third
party in the twelve-month period prior to the relevant
transaction, (3) where there is no such average selling price
available, any most recent available selling price of products
of comparable nature and scale offered by the Group and
accepted by an independent third party with reference to
the latest available market data, and (4) the prevailing market
price for the sale of products of comparable nature and
scale, which should be in any event no less favorable to the
Group than is available to independent third parties.

The Float Sales Agreement became effective on 1 April
2020 and is valid until 31 March 2023. The parties to Float
Sales Agreement may negotiate to extend the agreement
for a further term of three years within two months before
the expiry of the three-year term of the agreement.

The proposed annual cap of the sales to Float is HK$10.0
million and the actual aggregate sales amount for the year
ended 31 March 2022 was HK$1.9 million.
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Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) is a controlling
shareholder and an executive Director of the Company, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 12 November 2021, the Company entered into a sales
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell and Mr. Hung agreed to buy the entire
share capital of Regina Miracle International Technology
Limited (“Target A") and a piece of land in Guangdong
Zhaoqing Industrial Park (SQ-LG2201) (the “Land”) at a total
consideration of HK$120,000,000.

Completion has taken place on 12 November 2021. Upon
the completion, the Company ceased to hold any interests
in Target A and its subsidiaries and the financial results
of them ceased to be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group.

The consideration was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and Mr. Hung with
reference to (i) unaudited combined net asset value of
Target A and its subsidiaries as of 12 November 2021 of
approximately HK$120,000,000; (i) the registered share
capital of each of Target A and its subsidiaries; (iii) the
purchase price of the Land; and (iv) the valuation of the Land
of RMB49,350,000 as at 30 September 2021, valued by an
independent professional valuer engaged by the Company.

The transaction will lower the Group’s capital expenditure
and improve the Group's liquidity. As such, the Group will
enjoy a better financial position and the proceeds from the
transaction will further strengthen the cash flow of the
Group.
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Annual Review of the Continuing Connected
Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 "“Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which are required
to be disclosed by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022
in accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure of
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which are set out in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
56 to 61, have complied with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2022, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did
the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEEFBETHRAERAAT
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HAEMEEEBHRG - 1HE8
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND BROREEENERRAR

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2022, the Directors and the chief executives of M2022F3A31H  EFRARRAESITH
the Company had the following interests and short positions in ABRARR REEESEE (FE A ES M
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company BIEGEXVE)EERBEZ AL EERNE
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of 2N A NFRATFENELMA
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the ARG F AR B SR 10FTE E BT AES
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise EITHERRZZMEESFABESITHAEART]
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange REBEZATEIRD - BHERD R EREE
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by MR AR ¢

Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules were as follows:

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares (%)

(R SNG )

BABES

EEnE EmtE R5EE (BZEE)

Hung Yau Lit Beneficial owner; Interest in 836,023,000 68.29%
(also known as YY Hung) controlled corporation (Long position)
aidia Em=BEAA (Note)
(X&HHZE) Ry EEER (478)
(Ff$3E)

Yiu Kar Chun Antony Beneficial owner 305,000 0.02%
ka8t EmEEA (Long position)
(578)

Liu Zhengiang Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
2= EmEB A (Long position)
(#FE)

Chen Zhiping Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
PRETF EmEA A (Long position)
(478)

Sze Shui Ling Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
i S EmEEA (Long position)
(5&)

Note: Amongst these 836,023,000 shares, 648,000,000 shares are beneficially M3t - 7£ 7% 836,023,000 % A% 17 &+ 648,000,000 A%
owned by Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited which is wholly % 5 £5 Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the Limited (R HEMFE (X BHANE) t £ 2 EH
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent BIERHEE - BEIFHFRAEKRE - HEE
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Hung is also the beneficial 17 AF Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
owner of 188,023,000 shares. Limited FT A KR (D R A R o HAENA

188,023,000l RNV E B A ©
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, according to the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to the Directors, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest

BRRER HA EEtE

TERRAE QTR K
& )53

iy
MERDPHERE KR

202243 A318 - $E%§m3a‘<&ﬁﬁfwﬁu
BEARFBAETFTHFEMNZLZM k&2

IEREEEFTA - TﬁlJAi%ﬁl(%%Wlﬁ
Al EITEA BBRIN) AR R AR 15 sk 48
BARR 1D R B AR IR B H MR E KA SEXVED S
2 M35 BRI SZR R AN A R IR BE MO R 2 ok

B

Approximate

percentage of

shareholding in

Number of the Company
Shares (%)
{h2A 1 R R AE

N R

R EE (AZL)

Regent Marvel Investment Beneficial Owner 648,000,000 (L) 52.93%
Holdings Limited BREAEA (Note 1)
(BF=ET)
Choy King Ngor Interest of spouse 836,023,000 (L) 68.29%
IR At B s (Note 2)
(BF=E2)
Hui Ching Lau Interest in controlled 98,419,000 (L) 8.04%
FEm corporation (Note 3)
Ry EE R (BH5E3)
King Terrace Limited Beneficial Owner 98,419,000 (L) 8.04%
BEmEA A (Note 3)
(BF=E3)
Yiheng Capital, LLC Beneficial Owner 99,056,280 (L) 8.10%
BEmEAA
L — Long Position L—f&
S — Short Position S—KE

64 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # 2 REIR(IZR)ER QR



Notes:

1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited.

2. Ms. Choy King Ngor is the wife of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are interested
by Mr. Hung under Part XV of the SFO.

3. King Terrace Limited is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Hui Ching
Lau. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hui is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by King Terrace Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, the Directors
were not aware that there is any other party (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who, as at the date of this
annual report, had an interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there has been
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued
shares up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on
pages 67 to 85 of this annual report.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE
SHEET DATE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant events affecting the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries after the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022 requiring
disclosure in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
(the “Corporate Governance Report”) in the Group’s annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2022.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, a healthy corporate culture, successful business
growth, enhancing the Company's value and bringing value to
the shareholders. The corporate governance principles of the
Company emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has implemented and applied the principles
contained within the recommended best practices of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”), including reflecting
those principles in the Company’s relevant policies. The Board has
reviewed the Company's corporate governance practices and is
satisfied that save as disclosed below, the Company has complied
with all code provisions of the CG Code contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2022.

According to code provision C.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company has
appointed Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) as both
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same individual would enable
the Company to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and
effectiveness when formulating business strategies and executing
business plans. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced
and high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises five
executive Directors (including Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung)) and three independent non-executive Directors
and therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its
composition. The Board will nevertheless review the structure and
composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries being made with all Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2022.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, led by the Chairman, Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), determines and monitors the overall strategy
and policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates the
performance of the Group, and supervises the management of
the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of
the corporate and financial policies, review and assessment
of the Company’s financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group’s business and affairs. In addition, the Board has also
established five Board committees, namely the audit committee,
the nomination committee, the remuneration committee,
the environmental, social and governance committee, and
the executive committee, and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities set out in their respective
terms of reference.

While the Board is collectively responsible for the management
and operations of the Company, the Chairman of the Board
provides leadership to the Board in carrying out its duties. The
Executive Directors, together with the senior management of the
Company, are delegated with responsibilities in the day-to-day
management of the Company and make operational and business
decisions.
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Composition

The Board currently has eight Directors comprising five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs"). The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2022 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang

Mr. Chen Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Or Ching Fai

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie

Ms. Tam Laiman

The members of the Board represent a wide background and rich
industry experience with appropriate professional qualifications.
Please refer to the section headed “Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” of this annual report for
the profiles of the Directors. Save as disclosed in the section
headed "Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary”, the Directors have no other financial, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are served by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and have not been segregated as required under code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board is of the view that
such arrangement provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership to the Company and allowed for more effective and
efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long term business strategies.
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Independence of INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board had three
INEDs, representing more than one-third of the Board, and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualification of
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the three INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the INEDs are independent parties in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independence judgements.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Each of the executive Directors has renewed the service contract
with the Company for a further term of three years commencing
on 11 September 2021. Each of the INEDs has renewed the letter
of appointment with the Company for a further term of three
years commencing from 11 September 2021.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Members after his
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Liu Zhengiang, Mr. Chen Zhiping and Ms. Sze Shui Ling will
retire as Directors in accordance with Article 84 of the Articles
of Association and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. Their biographical details will be set out in the circular
to be dispatched to the Shareholders with the notice of annual
general meeting.
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Meetings

The Board meets on a regular basis, and on an ad hoc basis,
as required by the business needs. During the year ended 31
March 2022, the Board convened six board meetings and one
annual general meeting (the “2021 AGM") to approve the final
and interim results announcements and financial reports, and to
discuss the overall strategy and monitor financial and operation
performance of the Company.

Attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings and
the 2021 AGM during the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out in
the following table:

Number of
Board
meetings
attended
HEEEE
Name of Director =E PN
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Hung Yau Lit Vi 6/6
(also known as YY Hung) (RBEHRE)E
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (LTEREFEHTE)
Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony =k 6/6
(Chief Financial Officer) (BEHEE)
Mr. Liu Zhengiang EREE 6/6
Mr. Chen Zhiping BREFEAE 6/6
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEEEE)
Ms. Sze Shui Ling HEiER Rt 6/6
Independent non-executive Director ~ BU##HTEE
Dr. Or Ching Fai FEEEL 6/6
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie BEkmzL 6/6
Ms. Tam Laiman EENIT 6/6

AN

LEERBRE

22
EESTHRRERMETREITEE - N
HZE2022F3A31BLFE EFT2EFMAN
REEGEZUR—RREBEFAZ (2021
ERFBFERE]) - ABERP LT EARELE
NERVHRE Wil IR R ERA
NEIMI R EERS -

TREY S ERNEEREZ=2022F3831H
HFEHEEES SR R2021FREBFKR

&R -

Attendance

Attendance in the 2021 Attendance

rate AGM rate
RAEE20215F

HEE RRBEEXRE HE=R

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

100 Yes 100
=

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

71



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEEREE

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
at Board level and has commitment to diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or profession experience.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, profession experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

As of 31 March 2022, the Board had 5 male Directors (62.5%)
and 3 female Directors; and female representation at Board level
was 37.5%. Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the
Board's composition, the nomination committee of the Company is
satisfied that the requirement set out in the Board Diversity Policy
has been met.

The Group has established goals to enhancing gender equality
and empowerment of women, cultivating young people. Please
refer to “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section
on pages 86 to 186 of this annual report for further details such as
the number of workforce by gender and objectives set.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 26 November
2018 which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedures adopted to guide the nomination committee of the
Company to select and recommend candidates for directorship so
as to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company'’s business.
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The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
nomination committee of the Company in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate:

o reputation for integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

. (in case of independent non-executive Directors)
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules;

o any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to
the Board;

o commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest; and

o any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business operation and environment as well as
the industry in which the Company operates.

The nomination committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the
shareholders of the Company with due consideration given to the
criteria which include but are limited to the above-mentioned.

The nomination committee or the company secretary of
the Company shall convene a meeting upon receipt of any
nominations of candidates to evaluate such candidates based on
the selection criteria mentioned above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship. The nomination committee
should then recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate for directorship. For any person that is nominated by
a shareholder of the Company for election as a Director at the
general meeting, the nomination committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to the shareholders in respect of
the proposed election of Director at the general meeting. The
Board should have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.
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Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All the Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in
continuous professional development so as to equip themselves
with the latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, industry knowledge
and managerial skills in relation to the operation of the Group's
business.

E2RERCRARFIRFEEIRE  ZF
CEAARRIRTT - HEAREEERTHED
EIRCE - REBPTIREMARE - B1E2022F
BANHLFE  EERZFIINHERT
LUNE

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping. Based on
the details so provided, a summary of training received by the
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out as follows:

Reading journals

and updates on

Attending relevant rules and
seminars/ regulations and
conferences/ the Company’s
forums industry
BT ¥ A R AR BE AR B
RERUR A RITE
KIS &R

HEEXE

a3 Wi

Name of Director

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Hung Yau Lit i 4 v
(also known as YY Hung) (X BHHFZE) e
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (FEFEREHTTE)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony k=L E v/ 4
(Chief Financial Officer) (BEHEE)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang BBt 4 v

Mr. Chen Zhiping BREFEE v v
(Chief Operating Officer) (B/EZEER)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling pEigR v v

Independent non-executive Directors BUHHITEE

Dr. Or Ching Fai EBEL v 4

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie PR ok a2+ v v

Ms. Tam Laiman EEX T v v
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Directors’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance to indemnify its Directors against liabilities
arising out of legal action on corporate activities. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, no claim had been made against the
Directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. These include: to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and to
review the Company's compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee,
environmental, social and governance committee and executive
committee, each of which has the defined written terms of
reference that will be reviewed and updated, where necessary.
Copies of minutes of all meetings are kept by the company
secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director. Each committee is required to
report to the Board on its decision and recommendations, where
appropriate.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Or
Ching Fai, Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman.
The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Or Ching Fai who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

The audit committee is established to, without limitation, assist
the Board in providing an independent review and supervision
of the Group’s financial and accounting policies, to review the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, to oversee the audit process, and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the audit committee
members met two times with the Group’s senior management
and the external auditors to discuss and review, among other
things, the following matters:

o the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2021 and the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2022 to ensure full, complete and accurate disclosure in the
aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the accounting
standards and other legal requirement for presenting the
same to the Board for approval,

° the terms and remuneration for the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditors to perform the
agreed-upon procedures on the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2021 and the audit of annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2022,

o the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services; and

° the overall effectiveness of the Company's internal control
and risk management systems.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Dr. Or Ching Fai s R e
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie Fa E okt i+
Ms. Tam Laiman e
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Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEERRE HE=
2/2 100
2/2 100
2/2 100
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee comprises three members, namely
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (the chairman of the committee),
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) and Ms. Tam Laiman.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include (but not limited to) making recommendations and
proposals to the Board in respect of remuneration policies and
structure for Directors and senior management's remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the remuneration
committee held one meeting, in which it reviewed the existing
remuneration policies by reference with the market research
and gave recommendation of the remuneration packages and
performance-based bonus for executive Directors and senior
management to the Board for approval.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meeting
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (RN

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) 5/ ( X & tiszs) s 4

Ms. Tam Laiman EENXZ L

ERER/RE

FMEES

FMEEem=RKEBAER DR REEK
MRt (ZEGXRFE)  HHE(XEHIEE)
FENBBXLL

FHZEENEIZRAERBE(ETRR)RE
ENRREEEFMOFHBR R RBRE
EERHEREANER

REE2022F3A31ALEE  HFNEES
BIT—REgH RELESBHBAEEY
WEHHERE  THiREES S ENTE
EREREEENTHEBERERRREEN
TEARMER -

TREFIZEFIKELFERZESGHENER -

Number of
meeting attended  Attendance rate
HEERRE HE =R
A 100
A 100
A 100

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the
code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
other members of the senior management by bands for the year
ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration to the senior management
by bands

BREEERSRE D VTN

EEHFIBEII AR A B TS HRRMIFE34 -
BEAh - IR EEASTRIMSTRIEEN S -
HZE2022F3A31 AL FEHMEAERRE
KEESHESNFEHFMHEINMT ¢

Number of
senior management
ESREEE A

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000

751,000,001 70248 % 1,500,000 -
7 #51,500,001 7T 278 %2,000,0007T 1
712,000,001 7028 %2,500,0007T 3
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mrs. To Wong Wing
Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman. Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as
YY Hung) is the chairman of the nomination committee.

The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee include
(but not limited to) reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on structure, size composition and diversity of the
Board, to oversee the identification and assessment of potential
board candidates, to provide oversight and direction in respect
of the succession planning for Directors and to determine the
composition of Board committees.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the nomination committee
held one meeting which dealt with the following matters:

° review of the Board composition and structure;
° review of independence of INEDs; and
° review of re-appointment of retiring Directors.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meeting
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) tiisE (R 228 ) s 4

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie
Ms. Tam Laiman

ER s
BRIt

REZES

REZBEM=RKEER 2RI RHHE
(XEHRR) 2% BEXZEREEX
Tt o HHE(RBHRBE) EERREEE
BEF e
REZBENIEZBRERFBE(ETEN)BE
EEEHRE  ARRRRZ TR
EEgRHEBEE ZBVENTREE
EEeFEA  REEMHEETIRHER
RS ARETERLZEGNAMK -

REE2022F3A31HILFE - RREEE
BT REHNEEATER

o  BEERGWMEMKRE
o BEEMIFNTESRRELM K&
s BIRXRAIEFEAFH-

TREFIZEFIKELFERZESSHNER -

Number of
meeting attended  Attendance rate
HEERRE HE =R
A 100
A 100
A 100

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
The Board has set up the environmental, social and governance
committee on 13 September 2021. The environmental, social
and governance committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Chen Zhiping, Ms. Sze Shui Ling and Dr. Or Ching Fai. Mr.
Chen Zhiping is the chairman of the environmental, social and
governance committee.

The primary responsibilities of the environmental, social and
governance committee include, but not limited to, advising and
assisting the Board in managing matters relating to environmental,
social and governance of the Group, such as governance, policies,
initiatives, performance and reporting.

BRE -HEREREZEEE
EEEN2021F9F813BKIRE - HE R
EREBG - RE HEgRERZESH=
B BHENK - DRIAREFLLE - HERK
TRIAEBIEL c MEFEERERE g
REREEBEER -

BE HEMEARZEENIRREEE(E
TIRI)FLENE » BRK - 5t - RERWREF
AEBRE  HEREGHEBERAANESS
REBRIAL TR
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Executive Committee

The Board has set up the executive committee on 30 November
2015. The executive committee comprises all executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Board shall be the
chairman of the committee.

The primary responsibilities of the executive committee include,
but not limited to, advising and assisting the Board in formulating
policies, monitoring the performance of management in carrying
out and implementing the policies laid down by the Board for the
Group, and handling and dealing with the bank-related transactions
and matters.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company engages PricewaterhouseCoopers as external
auditor. PricewaterhouseCoopers is responsible for auditing
and forming an independent opinion on the Group's annual
consolidated financial statements.

The audit committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a letter from the external auditor
confirming its independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the external auditor to consider the scope
of its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-audit
services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee also
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the external auditor.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
external auditor of the Company, are set out below:

Services rendered

PR R AR %S

Audit services
Non-audit services

IR
FEBRIZIRTS

ERER/RE

HITEES

BEEEN2015%F11 A0EKIHITEES -
WITZECRARAZEBATESMAK - M
ERETFAAZZEENTE -

HWTRBENTIERAERFE(ETRRN) B
FIRRAZEEERHEALGETHEY &R
EEERATRETHESERARERE
MIBERARIL - DA IE MR IRTTAERI R
HREH -

SN B

ARBREELBKE R EBARING
ZEEN - BEBKE G EBARAEEX
REENFREEE VBRI LU IR EB L
BR -

ERZESEMARERINERBENN BT
REBML  URBZBENERME - ZBE
BERERIMNSREENE LR R
FEMAER - WRINEZHEN KRBT
G NEEEWREEHE - RSB EMR
HEFRZIRG (B NEBBEERE T - &
REEENTHINEREMNEZEEEREER
MEESRES -

BB Fr A

HZE2022F3A31 B IEFE - iARAFINE
% B0 AN 28 Lok B 2 5T AT =B R AT IR LAY BR 75
BN BAREHIINT

Fees paid/payable
B/ BB

HK$°000
BET T

3,255
4,661
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports, other price sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and to report to
regulators as well as to disclose information required pursuant
to statutory requirements. When the Directors become aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, such uncertainties would be clearly and
prominently set out and discussed in detail in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities and opinion of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2022 is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 187
to 193 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management
once and internal control systems twice for the year ended 31
March 2022. The Board is of the view that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate.

Risk Management and Internal Control

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for
establishing and overseeing the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems has been properly conducted. The main features
of this system, which continues to operate, were described in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has already reviewed its risk management
framework and processes and has implemented relevant
measures resulting from this exercise that aim to enhance
its framework and processes. In particular, the Company has
developed, approved and implemented a risk management
system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The terms of reference of the audit
committee have included its responsibility for an effective system
of internal control and risk management.

BEREFZ

EEWER  REFEAEFERTHHEEN
FAMBHE  HtRESRASEREL
AR AFTAR E M EL b R TS R R R B R F
B BT - QA BB B R IR &
BRBAEERMRENER - MEBFNE
AREBREFEARRRERLEINE L
BERBEANERTHARE - WAERELE
BIATME TR RBEFRIA R F AT WA
STHAREE -

RARBMAZBMBRAERRBEREEHA
NREE2022F3A31 B ILFEMNGE AT
WMERBREMER  HIRNAFHRE187E193
BRBIZEA®RE -

Bk EE R A BEZ

HZE202F3A3MHILFE EESEEB
EREZESENAEENRAKREENTHEE
BRI — R R AEIE R F R MIEE K
REMK - E2ERE - BRERERANIDE
REGBEEIREH -

R B B R A EREE 1R

REERESRAQR YN ZREARE
= EFeRAFERULEBAARRR
EERAMEERGNEE - WHERZER
AR E IR KR N EBEE RSB o It R AT
SEEE  HEX BN ALEERREN

AREERNERREEBERREFTCE
5 SR AR IR MAZ Fr MOARREE B © 5570
= AREDHE  HERER-ERER
AHEREERRMAER RFHRRE R
A BREZEENRBERNECBREESSA
BABEZERRREEZROBE -
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Risk Governance Structure
The Company’s governance structure for its risk management
system is shown as below. Each party has well defined and
detailed roles and responsibilities.

ERER/RE

22%");‘:?%%
$ RBRERRGNEQEBHINMT -
%ﬁaﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬂﬁ’lﬁl@&%a °

Oversight Body
BB

Internal Audit Department

AR EB

2" Line of Defense

/\/vh’
=)

Board of Directors
o

Audit Committee
BEZEEE

Executive Committee
%ﬂTTK 1= El

Risk Management
Steering Committee
EEHALZES

............................ |.--------_--------

§ Department Heads
g ® HPEE

o Rr

%5 o

o |

E R Department Staff
% EFIET

Risk Assessment Methodology R &

The Company's methodology for its risk assessment comprises
of four core stages (i.e. risk identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting). These processes are performed at least once a
year to address changes in the Company’s business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls such as financial, operational and compliance controls.
In addition, the Board has appointed an international accountancy
firm to review the internal control systems of the Company on an
on-going basis. The review covered the expenditure, production
management and fixed assets management of certain key
subsidiaries of the Company.

AN T R R A Sk R PO AR O B B ALK
(BIEBR R - BT - RBRERKLE R R
5) c RERFEFRIEIT N UBRAR
RIEBRENECIEL B -

[ B B T e BB BE AR R AT Y AR AR Y

EE2CHRERERE R AR RATAIK
EITFERE  OREMT  BERARER
%Fﬁ*ﬁ‘i EE - S ERECERBER
+Eﬂi$i’%ﬁﬁ% L RNNCI RS
- AR BREARRAETEIENBAR
E‘\JEFEJEZ CHEEEREEEERR
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Our Responsibility

Our Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while management is responsible to design and
implement an internal controls system to manage risks. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company'’s risk management and internal controls system.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied and confident with the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems currently put in place for the
Company.

Communication of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Company and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Company to make the
appropriate decisions and responses to mitigate or address
any risk event, relevant information on the incident needs to
be communicated by and to the right functions and individuals,
completely and accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, a framework has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.

Anti-Corruption

The Company has adopted an anti-fraud policy on 30 March 2022
("Anti-Fraud Policy") which sets out the responsibilities of the
internal audit department and employees and the Group’s major
anti-fraud measures and procedures. The Anti-Fraud Policy covers
activities such as corruption, conspiracy, embezzlement, money
laundering, bribery, and extortion, which could all involve an
element of fraud. The Anti-Fraud Policy is reviewed on a regular
basis and any convicted cases will be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

BAHHNRE

SR RARRRERERLEZMNER
ERRAREERS  MEREAEERTR
BEHABEERGAECREAR - EFETE
BRAAR AR E R R AR RS K
2o

Jea B 3R T 1) B B 2 AR AT MY B KR ER IRt
FERRHEEMIFBENRE  XEEE
B IEERAEBEY B RRBET HIRMN
KBRER - REFERINNER 2288
A w B AP E R E R T IR R AR IE &
REORBBERERFTRED

B S 8BE

RHBERR R - AT R ERE SRR
EHMBRTT BB R R E IR RS e ER
7 o BEARBMEHRAEREREE RE
SEIEEMREREMF - @2 BRI A
THEx:  ERARFHERENZKEH
EMREREER -

RERARRARBELRRETRA - EA
FREMEERTERRARKE  ARFED
B R HAA IR K B M A RE BV R T

POBESHE °

RES

RN BN 202253 A30 B 495 5F 57 R
([BFFRBR]) BhEANETRESD
EEURAEENESHEREERER ©
PFRESRER REE)S - &% KA X2
8RR REAESRFERKDOT
B o ARRFFERNPFERECE - 0B
ERER - BREZZEghESTSER -

82 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 4 1REIM (1) AR A 5



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREREE

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS g RAER
The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures ARAREERL AT RBERANERF - FAE
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their R EE T E M S E AI5 15 R N T R
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with BARNRBRERE - RIBABKEIEMAIAR
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant AARHBERELRETF  BREZHF(HEAa
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy, FEIATRER

among others, the following rights:

1. Convene an extraordinary general meeting/put

forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
with two months after the deposit of such requisition at the
Company'’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower A, Regent
Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under Article 58 of the
Articles of Association once a valid requisition is received.

2. Propose a person for election as a Director:
As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting”
under the section headed “Shareholders’ rights” of the
Company’s website at www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

3. Put forth enquiries to the Company:
Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower
A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong.

BRERRBIAE REES

-2 ZE2RNEEEZRAHRFE
PORARRBFREAR(HERAR
AIBRRAE LRENEN) t D2 —
(10%) MR - AENEAFRE
BAEFSRARNAMERLERDS
K BREFESAHRABRFHIAS -
PABZ 32 A B B SRR IR BRI (R F 8 -
BZREARNEERERERRAE
B ER(LIAEBERMERE
B3R RF LARE10E) B ME AR
BT WRE2E-_T—BAN EFE
ABEEFAHAZAE @ AIRBAAMA
HRAABRAKRENKRE - MRH
AREESREARZEEMELN
—YEEER  BRARANERS
A RBBIEMBERER  ARAHK
IR AR A2 40 A 3 58 16 1) AR TE SRERE
B178 > WIEHBELRY -

REABSHES

BB ANE2ESZNRET - F20K
A &) 49 ik wwww.reginamiracleholdings.com
HPTRRER R | — e AR IR R AR R
S LHREBRIEZFUINOALLES
EMIRF] -

OAATREER :

RIEEESTEETNAEE R
EEFEAFTETFARANAAIWE -
Wit B AR BEENER BB
EEFE A B3R EBmT DARE10E -
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing and constructive
relationship with the shareholders, the Company has compiled
a shareholders communication policy and established various
channels of communication with the shareholders, such as
publication of interim reports and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in
a timely manner. The shareholders are also encouraged to attend
the Company’s annual general meetings where the Chairman and
members of different Board committees are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions and exchange views with them.

Financial and other information in relation to the Group
has been published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

The Board has reviewed the shareholders communication policy
and consider the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders communication policy to be sufficient and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kwan Chuen is the company secretary of the Company.
He is an employee of the Company and reports directly to the
Board and is responsible for, inter alia, providing updated and
timely information to all Directors from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Mr. Law has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has also dedicated great effort towards protecting the
environment and supporting society. For details, please refer to
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report.

REERKRREBR

RERRERELEBFENAZRENE
& RNRBEHERRBRBE N ELZE
REEPRBE - BT RS RF
B RARBNEHERELFERRA
& ARBNBEBREFEARABRRBF
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FRE IR VIR B AR SR AT RE R
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RO2AEBRADNATDWE - WARA
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has not made any changes to its Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
available on both the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Company proposes to amend its Articles of Association by
way of adoption of a second amended and restated articles of
association (the “New Articles of Association”) to bring the
Articles of Association in line with the relevant requirements of
the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules.
Other minor amendments to the Articles of Association are also
proposed to be made to introduce corresponding and house-
keeping changes. The proposed adoption of the New Articles
of Association is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders by way of a special resolution at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

ERER/RE

BEXH

REZE2022F3A31B L FEREEARE
HH - AN B A48 45 2 32 48 B O 4 (A &
B) o /BB EIRM A & S A AR HON BB R
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RRAREZBEBIRMNE — BT RENNE
BERMA(HFEARETRMA D ETHAR
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EAERER ETRARBEER - KRBT
ERMAMERAAEHEMIEERETIN
SIAHEREMEN - ZRRAFARER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HERERRE

ABOUT THE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Group is pleased to issue its sixth environmental,
social and governance report (the “Report”), with an aim
to disclose the Group's policy system and performance
in respect of fulfilling its environmental and social
responsibilities for Fiscal 2022. On the basis of the
environmental, social and governance report for last year,
the Report has adjusted the disclosure framework to help
readers better understand the Group's key environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") commitment, achievement
and performance in Fiscal 2022.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

The time frame of the Report lasts from 1 April 2021 to 31
March 2022 (the “Reporting Period” or “Fiscal 2022"),
with certain content dating back to previous or extending to
subsequent period, as appropriate.

The Report covers the office business in Hong Kong and the
manufacturing and office business in Shenzhen factories
and Vietnam factories of the Group in its general disclosures
and the key performance indicators (“KPI") for social subject
area, whereas the environmental KPls encompass the
manufacturing and office business of the Shenzhen factories
(Factory A, B, C and D) and Hai Phong factories (Factory A,
B, C, D and E) in Vietnam, to further align with the Group's
operating performance for the Reporting Period.

REPORTING STANDARDS AND PRINCIPLES

The Report has been prepared strictly in accordance with all
the “mandatory disclosure requirements” and the “comply
or explain” provisions set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “"ESG Guide")
under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), with disclosure priorities of the Report
and the Group’s management objectives for sustainable
development identified based on the degree of concern on
each topic of the stakeholders.
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The Report upholds the following principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency to report:

Principle

A

Materiality

ERM

Quantitative

Bt

Balance

T

Consistency

—B

Meaning
L

The ESG report should disclose: (i) the
process to identify and the criteria for the
selection of material ESG factors; (ii) if a
stakeholder engagement is conducted,
a description of significant stakeholders
identified, and the process and results of
the issuer’s stakeholder engagement.
BB e REAMEEEE  (BIEE
RE - HEREAAZNBREERELR
KRR (BT ABRETHNESRNR
BRSO EEF N AN REITARNE
2HEMBERER -

Information on the standards, methodologies,
assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors
used, for the reporting of emissions/
energy consumption (where applicable)
should be disclosed.

BREERGERE BeIRFER (LA ) FT AR
2 5% BER S EIANER
LA K B {50 AR ) S5 0 R = 0 SRORRFE T #2568 o

The ESG report should provide an unbiased
picture of the issuer’s performance.
The report should avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or
judgment by the report reader.

B g REAMERE TR T EIEH
BITAMRE - @R e Mg w2
HEERRIFIEER BRI ERE
® o

The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methodologies
or KPIs used (if any), or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful
comparison.

BITARERSE  HeaREamETHRES
AR BRI IR B E (10F ) RAEM
HZEAERLBNERESR -

RERFUATRAGETER - 52
2 FER BT

Responses of the Group
AEEE E

The Report identifies current major ESG
subjects through communication with
stakeholders, taking into account the
nature of the Group’s business, operation
mode and locations of operation.

AfE@pigEa NBERBARERMNEXR
ESGHRE - YER T ALBOERIEE - &
B A REEE -

The Report provides KPIs with quantitative
measures where feasible, and includes
explanatory notes to allow readers to
assess and validate the ESG policy of the
Group and its performance.

AMEEATERT - REMTFHAHE
KPls @ LATE & & 51l F1 5 5 A S BIESGHUR
REBWERERR -

The Report comprehensively discloses
the performance of the Group in terms
of ESG, and avoids the expression or
presentation format that may improperly
affect the decision-making or judgment of
readers based on objective facts.

R EATBEEREN  2HMBERSE
EWESGHEMKE - BEFREE THRETE
EERR A E R MK 2 WER o

The Report maintains the consistent
KPIs and statistical methods as before,
and explains the changes in some
statistical data, in order to allow readers to
facilitate the comparisons of the Group's
performance year-on-year.
RBERFFEAE —RAKPIs REFFF
o WEE D FET BB SCEL R - A
EEEHRNEBEBERF L
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SOURCE OF INFORMATION

The information disclosed in the Report is derived from
the Group's official documents, statistical reports and
relevant public information. The Board of Directors (the
“"Board"”) of Regina Miracle undertakes that there are no
false statements, misleading representations or material
omissions, etc. and the Board is responsible for the
authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the Report.

V.

FEERIR

ARERBEEBRBENAREEAX
- SEARENAARRAERS - #
viesg((EE8 AR TFEE
RE#  REMPAXERNERS
EEgUMENEEN  ERENT
BEUERE -
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2. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT

L. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PHILOSOPHY
As an advocator and practitioner of sustainable development
philosophy, the Group actively manages the environmental
and social impact of its manufacturing and operational
activities. While striving to be a world-class enterprise, we
bring values to the environment, employees and society. In
order to demonstrate the determination of Regina Miracle
to create a sustainable future, we take the vision, mission,
values and beliefs as the foundation, continue to take
the sustainable development philosophy as the primary
consideration in our business operations, and formulate
corresponding strategies that aim to create long-term value
for stakeholders, and achieve sustainable development in a
responsible and responsible way.

\Vg

. AREREEE

ARFERRER
AEBEEYRTAHERRED
BEHEELENELRPHHRR LA
ENRE  EYINA/ERREFDE
ENRE > TARE - BIRME®
KEE) - RRPABZIRAIZ T FHEE
FRARRERL - RPIARER - s -
EBEE E2/%  HEUTHESR
RES/EBELNEREZE @ HIE
HERE  BE/EDRAAEREE
B ARE EREEHNERAHEE
B o

Vision Mission Value Belief
Tl i BER A
Promote sustainable Create first-class Integrity and Together We Soar
development of the products, deliver pragmatism,
industry through industry value and people-oriented, F—2Ra - F—24E
innovation and fulfill social innovative A — =X

technology, becoming
an outstanding
cross-sector global
enterprise

BT SR AR 1T R R

BR - RREHBITER
UM

responsibilities
BliE—nER  BR
TEEE BITHg
51E

development,
cooperation

MIEBE  AARK
BIFTER - MRAE

Corporate Culture of the Group
TEBELEL
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We adhere to the sustainable development guideline of
“Promoting the sustainable development of the Group
with innovative, comfortable, healthy and environment-
friendly products”, and focus on the product responsibility,
employment, environment, supply chain and community,
in order to achieve the goal of coordinated development
of society, economy and ecological environment on the
basis of ensuring that the daily operation meets the needs
of consumers. We strive for excellent manufacturing to
produce high-quality products; we value collaboration to
procure our supplier to honor obligations; we comply with
laws and regulations and observe business ethics; we
deploy our talents according to their abilities, advocate
diversity and integration, and protect their legitimate rights
and interests; we protect the environment, implement
energy-saving and consumption reduction measures,
pay attention to climate change and sustain a balanced
ecological environment; we give back to society and support
community development.

Product Responsibility
Actively consider
environmental factors in the
process of raw material
procurement and production

EmAE
ERMEHREBNAERZ
hREGRERRERER

Community
Shoulder corporate
social responsibility

and develop together

e

RECELSEE \
Bt [E HFE

G
Gb —

Supply Chain Management

Establish long-term and stable

cooperation with suppliers, create safe and
high-quality goods, and promote mutual growth
with partners

HEEEE
s B R AR ER
BIFHE - AlER2ED
RS - fREEAERH
e EK &

VN

v

irade/

&

BAFIERHF[ LABIFT - &F58 - 5% - IRIR
MEm HHSENFEZR]IOHA
FEZERDH  SHWIERET -
B R’ HERNHLRES £
BRABKE MR HBEERLNER
b AREITE  KERERIRE
BHEERNBR - RASBRE - 1T
EEREEM  RAIERBE - (REHR
EERER  RMAEEMR  BETHE
BE BMES /M BEZTEK
B REEAZATHE  BARERE
EEMERRERE  BIREENL
FEAERRSE  RAIQRLEE - BN
HEEE -

Employment

Pay attention to the ability
development of employees,
attach importance to the
safety and health of
employees, and safeguard
the rights and interests of
female employees

=
BUTBTRENER -
BERET R EER
MERIEE TR

Environment

Live in harmony with
the environment
B
BLIRIE A E AL

Sustainable Development Fields of the Group

REETFERREE
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Leadership The Board The Board of Regina
Miracle
REEH E5g HERERE

52

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOVERNANCE

In order to better improve the decision-making efficiency
and execution of ESG issues, the Group adjusted the
previous ESG governance structure during the Reporting
Period and is effectively promoting and implementing the
sustainable development strategies with the current three-
tier structure of “leadership — decision-making — execution”,
effectively incorporating the fulfillment of environmental and
social responsibilities into Regina Miracle's management
decision-making, daily operations and corporate culture.

Governance Structure for Sustainable Development

The Board of Regina Miracle is the highest decision-maker
of the governance structure for sustainable development,
resuming full responsibility for the Group's ESG strategies
and reporting. The Board provides guidance and suggestions
on ESG management by timely reviewing and assessing the
Group's strategies. As the coordination body on ESG affairs,
the ESG Committee is responsible for the implementation
and supervision of ESG vision and strategies, the fulfillment
of ESG governance and the organization of preparing
annual ESG report under the authority of the Board; 15
representatives from respective functional departments,
as the actual executors, are responsible for implementing
sustainable development strategies and realizing ESG
targets, and help to provide information required for
preparing the annual ESG report.

Composition of

members
ABHERK

Functional department
BREE (Y

AREERER
REIFIIRTTESGF H AR B MK
HITHE  AEERREHHEBHER
BESGERRHE B[ BEEE —ARK
B-TE | —BRBABEENZE
AREERER  EBREREE
BEENEITRAGDIRNERRE
AEEZRBEER -

R ERRE ERTE
HEREESRTRHEZRGERE
REAKRE - HANEBESGHRME K IE
BEZMEML BB RERBEMFME
SEER - WESGEBR TIFRREES
BR R HEREARZERER
ESGEBMMEBE  FEESRET
ERESGHEENEBOATINER -
ESGE A TEMBEE B RIARAER
REECGRE  HEREREE) 16
PR EBBEMPINRRESERH
TE ARREARARRRBIE
HRESGR R - WiHBIRHFEESGHRE
REFTTNER

Specific functions
Eiemiae

° Be responsible for
Regina Miracle's overall
sustainable development
governance; and

° Supervise and assess
sustainable development
strategies and
performance.

o EBEHDRERARELRE
Ba Rk

o BB R B RN
MR -
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Composition of

Functional department = members Specific functions
BiReE Y AEHEK ERSREE
Coordination ESG Committee Consist of not less than o On behalf of the Board,
three Directors, including provide direction and set
at least one independent targets in relation to the
non-executive Director Group's ESG strategies

and activities;

° Review the Group’'s ESG
policies and initiatives,
ensuring that they remain
effective and up-to-date;

° Ensure compliance with
legal, regulatory as well as
customers’ requirements
applicable to the Group,
including corporate
governance principles,
industry standards and
customer codes; and

° Ensure that all
stakeholders receive
accurate information about
the Group's ESG activities.

MEER RE HEMERZEE MAOR=FEEEAR - H » [KRREFEHELAKFEZ
PEEEL—RBIIFRT ESGH B K SR IS K& Bh iR 4
B= FRAMAIZBR

. FERAREE ZESGH R ER
B BELR M5 A R SRR I
o

s WMRETEANRAEERZZE
7B EEREFPELR B
NAERRA  ATHERER
eI

s WRFARZANESEH
REE 2 ESGEERN I E
&l e
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Composition of

Functional department = members Specific functions
BiReE ABHER ERSREE
Execution ESG Execution Team Led by Mr. CHEN o Implement the Group's

Zhiping, the Chief ESG strategies and
Operating Officer, ESG activities, ensuring timely
Execution Team consists achievement of ESG
of 15 factory department objectives;
representatives from o Timely report to ESG
different business Committee on the
segments, to manage progress of ESG activities
and review various and objectives;
ESG matters, including ° Review the difficulties
innovation and materials, during implementation and
environmental projects, recommend respective
human resources, solutions to the ESG
operation, external Committee; and
communication, ° Provide the ESG
and compliance and Committee with the latest
information technology. market information in

relation to the Group's
ESG matters.

BITEE RE @ hEaniTd MEFRELERETFELERE o HIOTAEEZESGRBAE
FHEK THI5HEERET B MREFERESGH
(7] 2 765 0 B &9 AR [ &P P9 (X =
KK - NEBNBREE o KRERRR HERERZ
JHESGET5 - BIRAIFTEY) EEWMEESCEDHME FH
o REEB AN E HER
B IMEBRARARERE o BERTHRBELARE -
B HekERZBEgRREERE

BRI EREVER

e MESGZEgRMHELEE
ESGEBAMNRITIHE

=

TN

Governance Structure for Sustainable Development of the Group

FEETHERRAERE

94 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #2{RER(IZR)ER AR



ii.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Statement of the Board

The Board of Regina Miracle is committed to complying
with various requirements of the ESG Guide of the Stock
Exchange, continuously promoting the improvement of the
Group's ESG governance system, persistently strengthening
the Board's supervision and participation in ESG matters,
and actively incorporating ESG factors into the Group's
major decision-making and business practices.

Supervision of ESG matters

The Board takes the overall responsibility for the ESG
of Regina Miracle. The ESG Committee is established
under the Board and is responsible for managing Regina
Miracle's ESG related matters, such as governance, policies,
measures, performance and reporting, and providing
advice and assistance on the relevant matters to the Board.
The chairman of the ESG Committee is appointed by the
Board. The Committee shall meet at least once a year and
the minutes of such meetings shall be made available for
inspection by any Director upon reasonable notice.

The ESG Execution Team is established under the ESG
Committee and is responsible for the implementation of
the Group's ESG strategies and activities to ensure the
timely achievement of ESG objectives. The ESG Execution
Team comprises several functional department heads to
effectively ensure that ESG elements are integrated into the
Group's daily management and operations.

ESG management policy and strategy

The Board attaches importance to the significant impact
that ESG risks may have on Regina Miracle. Each year, the
Board refines the ESG subject database upon considering
market concerns and hotspots, stakeholder communications
and Regina Miracle's development strategy, and conducts
materiality assessment to obtain priority ranking results for
ESG subjects and clarify the Group's ESG management
and reporting priorities for the Reporting Period. In Fiscal
2022, the Group focus on the review and supervision of
key subjects such as product quality and safety, labor
rights protection, occupational health and safety, R&D and
innovation, and supply chain management.

ii.

R EREREE

EEEEY

WP e E BB BERZFTESGIE
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ESGRIZEER - THETINAEEZEESG
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ESGREMAAELEEEARKHEETR
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ESGEEHEE
EECYHRPDIRESGHRIERES(T
ETETHEE HERERZE
& AETHREELIEZESGHREN
EH(WES  BUR - Eib - REBELRR
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B oHehkERZECEIFHESE
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ESGHITAE - BEHITAEBEESGRE
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YITHAZ B AEIFIEaE AEK
ERHERBESGEEMALREEMNA
FEEREED -
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Review for ESG targets and progress

The Group has established ESG targets covering key
ESG KPIs such as greenhouse gas emissions, resource
consumption, pollutant emissions, enhancing gender equality
and empowerment of women, cultivating young people, and
contributing to community. In addition to setting ESG targets
year by year, the Group has also set medium and long-
term ESG management targets and regularly reviews the
progress of the targets. The Group has released the 2021
Sustainability Report" on the Company's public website during
the Reporting Period (access reginamiracleholdings.com
for details), aiming to disclose the sustainable development
targets, current progress, future actions and 2030 targets
that are of priority concern to Regina Miracle.

The Report provides detailed disclosure of the progress
and effectiveness of Regina Miracle's ESG efforts for Fiscal
2022 and was considered and approved by the Board on 27
June 2022.

Tuptelag’ | g Koo

2021 Sustainability Report
QR code

SOLIDARITY IN
SUSTAIMABILITY

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS AND
THEIR IMPLEMENTATION

As a global leader in the intimate wear manufacturing
industry, Regina Miracle continues to uphold the concept of
sustainable development to support the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals (the “SDGs"), aiming to address global
challenges, while improving the ESG performance of the
Group, to meet the expectations of stakeholders and bolster
the sustainable development of Regina Miracle’s business
operation in an effective manner.
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e MR TENELZNFEZH -
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2030 Goals of

Regina Miracle

#YIERI2030F B 12

Actions/achievements
have been made

BEREITE, R

Performances
in Fiscal 2022
202251 F &K

CLIMATE ACTION
RIRTH

3

Reduce 30% of °
carbon dioxide
emissions intensity *

S EERERE .
BA30%*

established energy
management system,
set the default air-
conditioner temperature
at 26-27°C instead

of 25°C, cleaned the
cooling tower and

the air conditioner
condenser and optimized
the air compressor
Installed solar power
generation facilities

BEURREERLR - 8
REFREN25CHER
26-27C ~ BRRAE
PR BRI REBLER

Automatic transport robot
and automated guided
vehicle and other internal
energy conservation works
have been introduced

The installation of solar
power generation facility
has been completed in
Factory E in Vietnam,

and is still in progress at
Factory C. Meanwhile, the
installation agreement of
solar power generation
facilities for Factory A, B
and D has been entered
into with the suppliers, and
the suppliers expected to
complete the installation
by 2023
BEalABBERKEANE
G5 E R B &AM A EE
BET1E
EEtﬁJﬂ&E%&EWE’Uﬂ%
R BRENLE - CHRHA
5 ae %*“fﬁmﬁaﬁﬁﬁP
B E B ER R ETA - BR
DBHAGREERFENL
ik - MIEETERR2023%F
ERRAGREEZFHENE

Ak
<

*  Calculated based on production volume, i.e. the unit of carbon dioxide emissions intensity is CO,e per product sold.

—EtRHINEREIAESBAE  IREELR_ARESTHELNER -
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2030 Goals of Actions/achievements Performances
Regina Miracle have been made in Fiscal 2022
HYEK2030FEE  SEHRWTE, R 202281 AR
15 LFE o LD Remain zero ° Harmless disposal by ° 53.90% collected by
- landfilling professional hazardous recyclers
waste treatment ° 40.88% for making bricks
companies and tiles
° Returned paper cores o 5.22% converted into
and plastic cutting energy
board to supply chain
B CLEAN WATER AND partnership
BRRKAEERIE ° Recycled and processed

the residual materials
instead of burning them

o Recycled and reused
the residual wastes
generated from the
production by qualified
recyclers

° Reused waste papers
generated from Vietnam
factories and recycled
textile waste

RIFEHE . HEENEZEVMEER o 53.90% 4 [ 42 75 [E1 1k
AETEELERE . 40.88% AN GEEIE R

o HBHEEMZEBIRBRE
BiHERAERH

o EZHHYHENKINT
M ARRACH BBk

o HMAERMEKEHELEE
BRF FAT 3R £k B0 R WD 3E 1T B
A FFI A

o BNBUEmRERRERM
(Bl e B 4

5.22%WiR RS
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2030 Goals of Actions/achievements Performances

Regina Miracle have been made in Fiscal 2022
HYIEM2030FEE  EBEINTE, HKE 202251 F B

RESPONSIBLE Develop sustainable Worked closely with ° The newly-launched
12 CONSUMPTION . .
AND PRODUCTION materials, a number of suppliers products adopted
SRR craftsmanship and and developed various sustainable materials from
‘ N ’ technologies sustainable materials over 100 suppliers, such
together as cotton cups, glue and
° Adopted multiple plastic film, fabric and
3D design software accessories and yarn

during the (design

and development
process) to achieve
more efficient waste
and cost management
through continuous
product innovation
and manufacturing

automation
FREERIFHEYIRL - T o HRZHEREZIEIE " o M RTE M A 7 #8100
kSR HEFERER AR KA FEMEHLERS - 815
Bt B BIKFBE - kA
. FEtREBAREPRASZE Ly SYMEDR &3

DA - WAERETT
EmAIFMEEB B
BEREEBHBEDMEA

B
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2030 Goals of

Performances
in Fiscal 2022
202251 F 1B

Actions/achievements
have been made

BEREMNITE, R

Regina Miracle
HYIEK120305 B 1E

GENDER EQUALITY
)| . 2

5 MRIFE

8

100

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

IHEM
s
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Promote the

gender equality and
women's awareness
of equal rights

IR SRR L)
FHES

Cultivate the young
generation

BEFERK

Contribute to the
society

Ol &

Continued to
implement the anti-
sexual harassment

and abuse, Personal
Advancement and
Career Enhancement
(the "P.A.C.E."”) plan
Provided training for the
female staff

BRI IEERERE
FEARANBERR
sTEI(P.ACE)

B8 TIRERE

Collaborated with the
local universities and
offered internship
opportunities

Set up the volunteer
team to promote and
support the charity
work in the community
S E TR - DATEAL IR H#E
BRXF A T

2030 Goals and Actions of the Group

AEE20308ERTE

The "P.A.C.E.” plan and
training activities were
held consecutively for the
female staff only during
Fiscal 2020 to 2022 in
Vietnam's factory, aiming
to facilitate their career
development and improve
quality of life

LRI R 7 20204 2202284
FRHERRATHZHEET
B [EARFA MR ]
FrEIFFIES) - B HHE
BEERMNEEEERE

Collaboration has

been built with fashion
design and engineering
departments of China's 20
universities and colleges,
and sewing techniques and
language departments of
Vietnam's 18 universities
and colleges

B2 LA B 20 FT K 2R 257 #Y
REERRFTETIEFEURLS
FH18AT K2R B B 48 1
MREBEEFERIAERER

Continuous support for the
underprivileged students’
growth and care for the
vulnerable community
HEIRERZ2ERE - R
A5 RTRE S
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REGINA MIRACLE IN FISCAL 2022

The Group has followed the core value of "dedicating to
create value for the environment and society" since its
establishment. As a global leader in the intimate wear
manufacturing industry and a global citizen, the Group is
committed to bringing values to the environment and society
while striving to become a world-class enterprise. We have
built close relationship with our customers through high-
quality products, met the increasingly diversified customer
needs by enriched innovative design, and integrated the
Group's experience and resources to achieve the long-
term sound development with upstream and downstream
partners. During Fiscal 2022, the Group identified and
implemented the sustainable development goals and actions
by targeting on pushing the overall progress of five major
fields which include the product responsibility, employment,
supply chain management, environment and community.

BV IR RI202281 &

(B ARBEMEEEREBEIRESE
EERIUR—BERTHZRLEE
B ERRREBEEMIEAKREER
UREBHRAR  NEBER K AT
ABPEENRE - B ABRBEML
eHEREE KRMBABENE RE
VRERZFERHMENGEEE B
BAEAYENAIFRIIMERES T
NEPENR  WEAAREBRKHREE
BERETHEHEREERS -
202284 F - AEBMUBBERS T
BfE - HEETE RE HEAKX
EEEEES R BIEFHRFRITAE
BRRBIZRITHFE -
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In Fiscal 2022, we:
BATE2022871

7~ ) Responsibility

Product

EmEE

( { ) ] Employment
&=

Supply Chain
Management

& ‘
rﬁﬂj fpmEE
O O
SO |
Safeguarding the continuity

and effectiveness

REAHEERBRME

o worked with environment-
friendly and employees-
caring suppliers only

s EHEERBRI HEIAR

B EMNHEESE

strengthened the

environmental and social
risk management of supply
chain

o IERMEREIRE - ttEEkR

B

enhanced local

procurement

*  JNSEAHERAE

&

Harmonious coexistence with the Working together to create a community
environment and implementing the green environment for mutual development and
development concept harmony

HERENEAL  ERKEeRRER BFARARRRE  NELQDLNHERE

v Environment v Community
BiE o) o HE
*‘ e

102

incorporated the green operation idea into the
corporate strategy as well as production and
operation
ERGEELESECEBRREEEERE
developed energy-saving and emission
reduction technologies as well as
environment-friendly materials

PR ERBE IR PR Bl BIR R

provided support to people in need on an
unconditional basis

EIRMRE T 2RI

continued to promote the social sustainable
development

HERELSAHERR
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Innovation in Craftsmanship to Drive the R&D
and Innovation

To further improve our production efficiency and product
quality, we made continuous efforts in the R&D of important
craftsmanship and products. During the Reporting Period,
we have developed a number of innovative products for
several world renowned brand partners with our current
advanced technology, which are favored and well recognized
by the consumers.

Intelligent Crawling Project

In Fiscal 2022, we developed compound robots to replace
manpower to crawl materials in molding process, which
replaced the manpower’'s mechanically repeated actions and
released labor force. Compound robots adopt Automated
Guided Vehicle (the "AGV") and robot arms to achieve
functions such as intelligent transportation, intelligent
dispatching, intelligent crawling and automatic location, thus
ensuring the accuracy requirements of product processing.

R EREREE

EFRMTIE BT RAIRN

RE-—FRATEEREREREE
BMBEEEEETENERNRE
THe - EMME - BHERALENT
2 BARZEERINBHNREAE
BHARTZRATER  BEHE
EEHREEE -

EREHNEE

202284 F - HMIABEANERE A
KRB ATHRITERIE T OO R
T BRAIEMEENENIE - 2
WA E ) - A AT AR EM
(Automated Guided Vehicle * AGV)#
HEREFEN AN -  BLRERE
& BeedAE - By - BEENM
e RMERFEMMNIMNEEES
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Improving and Upgrading the Machinery

During the Reporting Period, we invested significant efforts
for improving and upgrading the machinery and facilitating
automation projects. Currently we have conducted 36
automation projects such as sewing, seamless molding,
logistics and warehouse, in which, the optimization of
automatic shoulder strap machine, tie knot machine and
automatic steel ring threading machine had achieved
labor cost saving, higher production efficiency and higher
qualification stability rate of the products to some extent.

Optimizing and Improving the Automatic Glue Dispenser
We tested the automatic glue dispenser of pants with
samples in Shenzhen factory in 2020, and to date, it was
upgraded to the third generation. On the basis of the original
machine, the speed has been improved, and achieved
machine speed increase by 35%. After the improvement,
the machine has achieved the “human-machine matching”.
This has greatly saved time and labor costs and achieved a
qualitative leap in production efficiency.

Pay Close Attention to Quality Management to
Enhance Enterprise Effectiveness

In Fiscal 2022, we further defined the quality management
functions, kept improving the quality management system,
set up quality management working system and incentive
and punishment system, organized periodic audits on
internal quality system, and supervised the implementation
of correction and prevention measures. We carried out
comprehensive product quality and safety activities and
enhanced the awareness of product quality and safety
and management level among all staff. At the same time,
we promoted the implementation of the QC team and
Total Productive Maintenance (the “TPM") to guarantee
the product quality and production safety, established the
efficient production mechanism, and set up quality-related
education training programs. We also made active efforts
to organize quality-related training covering comprehensive
quality management and excellent performance appraisal
standards so as to improve the quality management skills.
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Promote People-oriented Care and Empower
Female Staff

The Group cultivates talents in all aspects and at multiple
levels, and fully explores the innovation potential of staff.
Meanwhile, we conduct training programs for female staff,
such as the protection of women's rights and interests or
gender equality, to strengthen the awareness of gender
protection for female staff, and to give practical care to
female staff.

During the Reporting Period, in order to keep improving the
capabilities of team members and better serve our clients
and consumers, we focused on the cultivation of multi-skill
development for employees to enhance their flexibility. We
actively arranged outstanding staff to attend the trainings
and assessments organized by core customers and
consistently created opportunities in sending outstanding
staff to visit domestic and overseas major exhibitions of
our industry and cross industries, allowing them to acquire
the latest external information, broaden their horizons, and
make contribution to the innovation and development of the
Group.

In Fiscal 2022, the Group actively conducted overseas
trainings on general management such as project
management, professional skills such as data analysis, or
technical equipment and trained a total of 60 people. For
specialized employees, Regina Miracle mainly conducted
training in the Shenzhen factory through developing internal
courses. In Fiscal 2022, we held a total of 91 internal
lectures, and trained a total of 1,997 people.
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Women’s Rights and Interests Protection and Care
During the Reporting Period, we organized a number of
activities to care for women and advocate for women's
rights and interests, including Supervisory Skills Training
(SST), Gender Equality and Returns (GEAR) training, P.A.C.E
training, and care activities for pregnant and female staff.

During the Reporting Period, the trade unions in the Vietnam
factories have, in cooperation with CARE International in
Vietnam and the Labor Union of Hai Phong Economic Zone,
implemented a plan of “Incorporating Statements by Female
Staff and Preventing Sexual Harassment in the Workplace”,
promoted and organized anti-sexual harassment trainings
for employees. The campaign covered gender issues, the
concept, impact, prevention of and resolving measures for
sexual harassment which effectively protects their rights
and interests.

Training Programs on Gender-based Violence Prevention
and Response

In Fiscal 2022, we conducted an introduction to our
programs on Gender-based Violence (GBV) prevention and
response in our Vietnam factories, with 6 training courses
for a total of 544 attendees. The training courses were
informative. With the help of projector system, the staff
were keen to join in and their awareness of GBV incidents
were increased.
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WOVO Programs

Our staff can participate in the WOVO programs through
WOVO app, which allows them to communicate with
factory managers in an anonymous manner. The WOVO
app allows staff to put forward comments, complaints
and questions to the management. Meanwhile, staff can
participate in customer, factory questionnaires and digital
training on labor, safety, fire and social responsibility as well.
During the Reporting Period, 58% of staff using WOVO
application have participated in user surveys and 90% have
participated in digital training.

KNO Programs

During the Reporting Period, we conducted KNO programs
in Vietnam where participants can access the Zalo (a dating
app in Vietnam) group chat. Staff can anonymously share
their wishes, make comments and so on through KNO.
Meanwhile, staff can gain knowledge and receive rewards
through KNO weekly events.
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Boosting local procurement and supporting
community economy

During the Reporting Period, we continued to implement
the supply chain localization strategy, focusing on expanding
local suppliers in production bases, and promoting the
migration of existing supplier partners’ production capacities
to our production bases, thereby reducing procurement
risks and further consolidating and strengthening the
competitive advantage of the supply chain. In addition,
we have further integrated the supply chains by reducing
categories, reducing development materials and increasing
the purchase of single category materials, and actively
introduced excellent suppliers that meet the needs of our
procurement strategies. With the optimization of the number
of suppliers and their product categories, our product quality
has gradually become more consistent. Meanwhile, we also
helped to secure the supply and stabilize the local economy
through supporting local suppliers and indirectly attracting
additional investment in the local economy.

Practicing environmental values and increasing
investments at source

In order to practice green and low-carbon concepts, the
Group jointly works with customers and suppliers to
promote the implementation of concepts on environment-
friendly products and accelerate the market application
of environment-friendly materials to reduce energy
consumption and pollution from the source of production
and manufacturing.
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Development of environment-friendly materials such as
sponges

In Fiscal 2022, the Group actively promoted the development
and application of various types of environment-friendly
materials. We developed a total of approximately 251
environment-friendly materials, including 146 types of
fabrics, 9 types of sponges and 96 types of accessories; our
procurement of environment-friendly materials accounted
for approximately 12% of all material purchases, and
all recycled environment-friendly fabrics obtained their
corresponding Global Recycled Standard (GRS) certification.

Certification of supplier qualification

In Fiscal 2022, over 99% of our suppliers obtained the
STANDARD 100 by OEKO-TEX® Certificate, and over 50%
of fabric suppliers obtained a number of internationally
recognized industry certifications such as the GRS
certification or the Recycled Claim Standard (RCS)
certification.

Reduce energy consumption and waste emission

During the Reporting Period, the Group invested significant
amounts of resources in engineering improvements
and made energy-saving modifications from the original
equipment with productivity being increased while energy
consumption and waste emission being reduced during
operation, thereby laying a solid hardware foundation for
achieving economic and environmental benefits.
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As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group's HEREHR  AEETEBRYI LM
factories in Shenzhen and Vietnam have passed the ISO mIMmEBEBISO 14001 RIBEEEE
14001 environmental management system certification ARF BBEREEBHAEE( Reoycled

and the Recycled Claim Standard 2.0 certification. Among Claim Standard 2.0) R -~ HH E &
them, Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., HERAXKCRIDABRA 71% BT
Ltd. also passed the ISO 50001 energy management ISO 500018 /REIREE XRE » FSCH
system certification, the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) MERRE  SEIHRAE  BHER
certification, green factory certification, organic cotton wm)SZ%ZECarbonCare® Label{K i 7
certification and was awarded the CarbonCare® Label (Level RIZEIW - HRRRER (MR ERA

3), whereas Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. EL@FSC—%_FM%?IEEZ{S 4% Higg
passed the FSC certification and was awarded the Higg Index & & I R & 58 5 Bl S8 ELEED

(AR B IR IR IR AR AT L 88 58 ) & B8
SREE o

Index certificate as well as the Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (LEED) gold and silver certification for
factory buildings, respectively.

®

RCS certification
RCS#RE

CarbonCare® Label

R BRIR

1SO14001 certification
1SO14001 A7

In December 2021 the Group obtained
the CarbonCa abel in recognition
of the Company's contribution to
low-carbon emission reduction and
sustainable development.

The Group's factories in Shenzhen

factories and Vietnam have passed
the supervision and review under the
environmental management system
and their ISO14001 certification
continues to be valid.

During the reporting period, the Group
passed the RCS certification for recycled
materials, which further enhanced the
Company's competitiveness in green
development.

-«

-

SO
FSC - Forest

Stewardship Council

FSC-HME LR R

In April 2022, the Group passed the
FSC certification after the annual
audit process, and the certificate will
continue to be valid.
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Green Factory

Certification

FETRRE

In October 2020, Regina Miracle
Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co.,
Limited passed the national green
factory certification and was included
in the list of the fifth batch of Green
Factories. Currently, its Green Factory
certification continues to be valid.
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Certain Green Certifications of the Group
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Demonstrating responsibility by practicing social
welfare

The employees of the Group actively participated in various
volunteer activities, covering activities such as honoring the
elderly and caring for the disadvantaged groups. During the
Reporting Period, we donated a total sum of approximately
HK$3,949,000.00 in cash for the areas of anti-epidemic,
community development, education, charity and other areas.

In Fiscal 2022, Regina Miracle's efforts in sustainable
development were recognized by the Vietnam Chamber
of Commerce and Industry (“VCCI") and Regina Miracle
was awarded “Top 100 Sustainable Business in Vietnam”.
In this regard, we are deeply honored and committed to
continuously improving the ESG practices and actively
integrate sustainable development elements into our daily
operations and corporate culture.
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FOUNDATION FOR SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group assumes social responsibilities with a responsible
attitude and achieves sustainable development. The Group
firmly believes that sustainable development can only
be attained by both giving back to the public and making
profits to achieve harmonious unity with the society and the
environment. In order to demonstrate our determination to
create a sustainable future, we regard our vision, mission,
values and beliefs as our foundation, and internal policies
and management practices as the starting point, with the
aim of taking ESG elements into consideration at every
aspect of our operations, and gradually promoting and
improving the sustainable development management
system.

Operations Management

With the mission of “Creating first-class products, delivering
industry value, and fulfilling social responsibilities”, the
Group strictly controls product quality and safety, attaches
great importance to technology research and development
and innovation, and protects the legitimate rights and
interests of the Group and its customers. We continue
to create value for customers by providing high quality
products and services, and have received great support
and high recognition from reputable domestic and foreign
customers and manufacturers, in a bid to become a
domestic leading and internationally-renowned intimate
underwear manufacturer trusted by customers.
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The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where we operate, such as the
“Product Quality Law of the People’'s Republic of China”,
the "Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protecting
Consumer Rights and Interests”, the “Vietnamese Law
on Product and Goods Quality” and the “Vietnamese Law
on Protection of Consumers’ Rights”. In addition, we have
established our quality management system and we keep
improving it so as to fully guide and control our product
quality. According to the actual requirements of each place
where we operate, we have prepared and implemented
policies and mechanisms such as the “Quality Policies”, the
“Determination Process of Material Plans”, the “Internal
Flow and Control Procedure for Materials and Products”,
the "Product Inspection Standard” and the “Management
Standard for Product Inspection” in Shenzhen factories,
and the "Work Inspection Guide"”, the “Standard Operation
Procedure”, the “Online Inspection Procedure” and the
“Control Procedure for Unqualified Products” in Vietnam
factories, to provide multiple layers of assurance for the
quality of materials and finished goods throughout the
production process.

Quality Management System

The Group has established and implemented the Quality
Management System (QMS), under which we have provided
strict assurance for product quality through formulating
internal policies for product quality and safety, setting
appropriate quality goals as well as conducting management
appraisals. Through defect prevention and continuous
improvement, product quality and safety check are
enhanced with the recognition from our customers. Other
than that, we have been active in applying for international
quality management system certification. The Shenzhen
and Vietnam factories of Regina Miracle have obtained the
ISO 9001 quality management system certification for their
design and manufacturing processes.
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The Group monitors all processes of
procurement — production — inspection — control for %R —
during the whole production in
in a bid to ensure that the

unqualified products”
accordance with the QMS,
production of products is strictly in compliance with

“raw materials

international standards, industry standards and corporate
standards, thereby guaranteeing the delivery of quality

products.

Raw Materials Productlon Inspectlon
Procurement

RBRE

All factories of Regina Miracle
strictly evaluate qualified
suppliers before purchase and
implementing an inspection
and appraisal system with
multiple layers of assurance.
Raw materials purchased can
only be put into storage when
inspected to be qualified,
which is to ensure a 100%
qualification rate.
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All factories of Regina Miracle
strictly control on all processes
of production and implement
the quality tracing system
during production, through
which we could trace back
to groups and individuals
responsible for relevant
product quality issues and
take correction and prevention
measures in a timely manner
so as to achieve a 100%
qualification rate in next
production process.
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All factories of Regina
Miracle impose strict control
on product inspection to
avoid uninspected products
to be delivered. Technical
personnel from the inspection
department conduct quality
inspection on production
process and finished products
in strict accordance with
relevant standards and
quality specifications of such
products during production,
and will issue corresponding
inspection reports and
relevant records for qualified
products after inspection.
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Control for
unqualified

products
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All factories of Regina
Miracle implement a three-
level inspection system,
which compose of self-
inspection, cross inspection
and specialized inspection to
avoid unqualified products.
Meanwhile, effective
correction and prevention
measures are adopted
to eliminate the actual
and potential factors for
disqualification and prevent
the occurrence of similar
quality issues.
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Quality Management Mechanism throughout the Whole Production Process
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During the Reporting Period, we continued to improve
the inspection procedures, set up inspection teams for
production lines and packaging department to find defective
products in the production process in a timely manner and
promptly urge improvements. Other than that, we actively
implement the “RFT (Right First Time) 100% " policy to
improve product quality to reduce defect rate. We continue
to improve procedures such as the 100% final inspection
and the sampling inspection of Quality Control (QC) to
ensure that the products manufactured are strictly inspected
by the quality department to prevent unqualified products
from dispatching to the market and to the consumers.

We strive to optimize the verification procedures for
machineries. For all machineries that need to be verified,
we specify the verification frequency and verification
personnel. We also organize an internal audit team to verify
the execution of the verification process to ensure that all
machineries are operating within a reasonable error range,
thereby ensuring stable product performance.

We attach great emphasis on the analysis and handling of
defective products. For products returned by consumers,
we will immediately set up a special team to investigate the
reasons for return, and conduct technical rework, product
recalls, production suspension or scrapping according to
different reasons in order to protect consumers’ rights and
interests and protect the reputation of customers and the
Group from damage. The Group’s quality management
department regularly summarizes the defective product
information, discusses continuous improvement measures
with the technical team, and designates dedicated personnel
to follow up and monitor the improvement results. During
the Reporting Period, the percentage of total products of the
Group sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons was zero.
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Internal Quality Appraisal

The Group assesses the quality management conditions
using the process measurement method, and implements
regular assessment, internal review and performance
appraisal mechanism to identify high quality risk projects,
review the implementation and execution, keep tracking
and correcting relevant problems and continue to improve
the product quality level. Furthermore, we have formulated
and implemented a comprehensive internal review system
and established an internal review team. Through a
combination of monthly non-periodic internal review and
cross review, the Group seeks to review the execution
of each manufacturing process and each part, and to the
standardization of the production process. Based on the
defects identified during internal review, follow-up measures
will be implemented in a timely manner, and we will keep
improving and optimizing the production process to achieve
continuous improvement on product quality and appropriate
update of quality data. WWe encourage all staff to participate
in comprehensive quality management, implement the
monitoring and evaluation system for product quality and
safety, and also have established a product quality and
safety management team. Committed to our production
targets of “quality and safety first with zero violations”,
we held activities with themes covering “How to avoid the
same problems”, “Open panel discussion on how to” and
“Summarizing the appraisal results”, the success of which
made us well recognized by our major customers in aspects
of product quality and safety, and received no material
complaints concerning quality and product safety during the
Reporting Period.
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Risk Assessment System

The Group implements quality risk and safety review by
defining the risk assessment mechanism and standardizing
the risk assessment process. The Group has established a
risk assessment system from the stage of development to
bulk production. This includes establishing a risk assessment
project team, setting up project operation procedures
and dividing risk assessment operation rules. Moreover,
the quality management department implements the
risk assessment for each product at different stages. We
strive to find potential risk points in advance that adversely
affect the craftsmanship, quality, materials, efficiency
and equipment in the risk assessment, and take timely
responsive measures to mitigate the possible impact of
modifications during or after production.

R&D Stage
TTEL P& R

(1) Establish a risk assessment team

(2

)

B RBRET G/ AR

The pre-production team conducts
risk assessment meetings with the
risk assessment team

EpA R R MEFRER G E
Identify and assess potential risk
points and consequences in advance

TR RANHE B R R B IR

Bulk Production Stage

EEMRR

(1) Evaluate the stability in quality during
each step of craftsmanship when in bulk
production

FET R EERETIEENRTEIL

Fill in the Follow-up Sheet of Risks

(R ER#EZ) ) and provide

feedback to the risk assessment team

when any abnormality is identified

FEFTER (ARMBEEER) I

[ gL R AT A/ N

QC regularly monitors the implementation

of risk points during each process

METHEASIFRAREEEER

QC requests the risk assessment team

to summarize and update the Follow-up

Sheet of Risks (/B2 EE#ER) ) after

the production is completed

FERETR - mE AR ER

HEE T (RBREERER)

2

Risk Assessment System

R4 8 2

R EREREE

iii. AT R
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RRERR s EEERRER ¥
FEIE - AEECDEL THAEIE
ERBRNERFERER  BEKLRA
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mEERHMIEESRERETRE
BOERFFE o RADKERRFGE
TREERETE -HE  UH X
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Sample Inline Stage
B minlinef &

(1) Test and verify the feasibility of

the craftsmanship

Bl ERE TEER A ITIE

|dentify risk resolutions in advance and

keep improving

TR ATHCE R R A AT b T o=

(3) Make decisions on small batch trial
productions

RERBHEZMEERE

(2

Trial Production Stage

AEMER

(1) Person in charge of risk assessment makes
decisions on which part to conduct the small
batch trial production

E T B T ARYEBES S i 2 S E
Fill in the Follow-up Sheet of Risks

(R MRER#E X)) and the Process Schedule
({HEE X)) after the production

ELEER (RREERER) R (FER)
Conduct another risk assessment meeting to
follow up the implementation of risk

management
BRAFRERESRREZERRIEE

(2

[
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Intelligent Creation

Innovation and R&D

Innovation has always been the core driver for the development
of the Group. We are committed to providing our clients
and consumers with more innovative solutions, as well as
developing multi-functional products so that we can deliver
comfort, functionality and value proposition of intimate wear
and functional sportswear. We have adopted emerging
materials, introduced new equipment and developed
innovative technologies respectively to improve production
models to meet the needs of quality and delivery of different
order types. We have a state-level laboratory and a strong
R&D team, and possess a number of international patents.
Our R&D achievements have also been commended and
recognized by customers many times.

The Group has strengthened the research and development
in technology center and the technical research of terminal
products. In the aspect of the equipment required in the
design process, we have invested considerable fund and
other related auxiliary equipment to provide customers with
high-quality products; we always adhere to independent
research and development and keep a foothold on the
market and customer needs, constantly develop new
products and improve product performance. In the future,
we will develop much more and much practical products
and technologies, based on which we will carry out more
comprehensive design services to create better economic
and social benefits.

We have formulated the “Administration Measures for the
Industry-University-Research Cooperation” ({(EZ2W4&E
EIEYEL)) and actively established industry-university-
research cooperation platform, to enhance our innovation
ability and improve the construction of innovation carriers.
We have established an innovation mechanism for industry-
university-research cooperation and carried out active actions
to facilitate the cooperation and exchange with colleges
and universities and research institutes inside and outside
of China, with a view to promoting the transformation of
scientific research achievements and realize mutual benefits
and win-win results. We have formulated and implemented
skill training, performance appraisal and incentive system
for our colleagues in the technical R&D department, which
aimed to provide opportunities to our researchers for training
and further study. In addition, we have also established
a fair competition mechanism through a comprehensive
performance appraisal system to motivate the enthusiasm
of researchers and inspire their potential.

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥2 #EIRX(

iv.

ERERIE

BIFT B

BT R A KRB ERENZ LIRS
N BB AEFEEE ERH
BELEFLR  FBRZENESR
BREAXKENEENEERTEE -
b“ﬁ&ﬁﬁi%mfu—m°&ﬁ
DRERAMBME - 5l AFTEL R
B AN - EEERR
LAEfRe MR ERRERmE M H

MBEL - BAIHE —EERAERE
MENHEROHERMD - WIKAZHE
BIFRER - B BEKRINZ RE
BEPMRENR

AN 52 [E AN 58 KA F L BO A B ER AR I A
mH) AT - ERFHIREDPATHRED

BELE BMBRATREES RHAM
LR L/(Z\A%‘g\ﬁl_lﬂﬂgm
Em o RMEREFaEmE -

misEMELHR Z:%ﬁﬁﬂ?s‘%%ﬁ@cﬁ '
BEEMM R KRB ELE
% - BEANEMMEN - Wit
EITESTEMRETRSG - BlEE 4

BT & WS o

BAIGIE TCEEMEIEERIE)
WEGERESHEETSE @ AR
SRR AR =8 -1 % 4: 3= 0 F =2
oo WAVE ESTAERI TS -
BEmAREEERNINSERR - B
HMAIER R - RERHAK RE (L - &
REFER - HMARMFAEZLPIR
EHE W EREEEEEI  EREZER
BEIHE - ARTABRESEIIRE
EHHE  TRBEEMNERTRE
R BUAFBEFHS  BRaREMA
BETHAEL - MERELE

ZR)ERDAE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

We have built an open innovation and entrepreneurship
platform to promote internal communication, during which
emerging development concepts collide. We gathered the
wisdom and social creativity of every staff to facilitate stable,
professional management, build a talent team with technical
support and improve the relevant mechanisms of the
Group. In addition, we strive to promote the transformation
of scientific and technological achievements, develop and
research new technologies and new products to drive the
continuous development and progress of Regina Miracle
while exerting the innovation and entrepreneurial awareness
of every employee.

Intelligent Technology

The Group continued to invest in the innovation of new
production models and equipment and facilitated our
equipment automation by actively cooperating with external
companies. We have implemented digital production
management at all factories with screens installed to display
real-time data for tracking real-time production condition,
and thus improved our management efficiency of silk screen
printing workshops, materials facilities, production lines in
workshops and machine maintenance and repair. We also
introduced the QR code information system for incoming
materials, so that complete information of raw materials
can be obtained through the QR code, which guarantees
the safety of raw materials. And through the real-time
monitoring on raw material information, we are informed
of the use of raw materials to optimize the production
arrangement.

As we actively apply intelligent devices, less-skilled occupations
are replaced while labors freeing from such occupations
are allowed to take a chance in higher-skilled jobs. At the
same time, standardized production process with more
stable product quality plays a positive role in our long run
development and continuous satisfaction of customer
needs.

Our proprietary seamless garment technologies, composed
of computer mold-making, hot-pressed molding and
seamless bonding, have shaped the core advantage for us
to gain customers and expand product categories.
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Practice of Integrity

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where it operates, such as the
“Company Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, the
“Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of
China"”, the “Law of the People’'s Republic of China Against
Unfair Competition”, the “Interim Provisions on Prohibiting
Commercial Bribery” and the “Anti-Corruption of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam”, and has zero tolerance for any form
of corruption or bribery.

The Group has always taken “law-abiding, honesty and
quality service"” as its core and adopted the principle of
prevention beforehand and supervision afterwards. Apart
from that, the Group also stipulates how all subsidiaries,
agents, distributors or other representatives of the Group to
guard against bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering
in the "Anti-Bribery Policy". The Group has also formulated
and implemented “Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Control
Procedure” to regulate each economic activity, and the
management process of people, money and goods within
the Group as well as all partners who have business dealings
with the Group. We seek to sign the “Anti-Bribery/Anti-
Corruption Commitment Letter” with the above positions
and units to ensure the governance of the anti-commercial
bribery commitment system with the highest standards of
integrity and ethics.

The Group formulated and implemented the “Staff
Complaint and Reporting Procedure”, which encourages
employees and business partners to report and disclose
corruption behaviors through channels such as mailbox,
email and telephone, and maintain strict confidentiality
during the processing of accusations and investigations.
As the supervisory body of the Group, our discipline
inspection team is in charge of operations compliance and
anti-corruption, to exercise the duties of discipline inspection
and supervision according to law, supervise and manage
the clean practice of those who work at key positions and
sections. The team is also responsible for the publicity
and education of clean conduct among staff members, to
boost their moral responsibility and alertness to corruption
incidents, thus cultivating a good ethos of anti-corruption. If
the discipline inspection team found out any misconduct of
the alleged personnel upon investigation, the management
of the Group will impose on the personnel involved with
public notification, demotion and termination of labor
contract. Staff members who breach the law would be
handed over to public security authorities.
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Through induction and regular anti-corruption training,
the Group strengthened the ideological awareness of all
staff that they cannot, dare not and would not want to be
corrupted. During the Reporting Period, the Group provided
an anti-corruption training to all directors with a 100%
participation rate; and anti-corruption training was provided
to all employees, with a total of 1,626 training hours and
41,897 participants.

Customer Satisfaction and Complaint Management

The Group believes that continuous investment in product
research and development, accurate understanding of
consumer pain points and active protection of legitimate
rights and interests are the effective means to enhance
customer satisfaction, and a solid foundation for our
cooperation with customers to build a long-term mutually
beneficial and win-win relationship.

By continuously optimizing the information system operations
and strengthening the communication with suppliers,
we have created a powerful engine for customer
communication and enhanced customer satisfaction. We
promptly respond to customer requests for supplier key
performance indicators and regularly accept customer
evaluations and assessments in multiple dimensions such
as innovation, digitization, efficiency, quality, and delivery
time, and we are among the best in the scoring system of
multiple customers.

Based on the internal “Customer Service and Complaint
Management”, we have opened various channels such as
phone call, email and official platform messages to collect
customer’s suggestions or advice. After summarizing and
analyzing the customer complaint records on a monthly
basis, we define feasible rectification plans and supervise
the performance of the respective departments, with an aim
to improve customer satisfaction by focusing on customer
needs.
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Reasonable Marketing

We strictly review the marketing words of our sales and
marketing personnel and judge the legality of the channels
for product sales and marketing, and persist to publish
legal, truthful and accurate content. Based on the level of
product development and value-added services provided
to customers, we forbid any exaggerated, deceptive or
misleading content in our marketing to prevent consumers,
investors and other stakeholders from any adverse effect.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND INFORMATION
SECURITY

The Group takes “scientific management, meticulous
design, dedicated service, proactive innovation and
continuous improvement” as its principles, and cherishes
the business cooperation relationship with our customers
and strives to fulfill our commitments to protect the
legitimate rights and interests of ourselves and those
of our customers. We strictly comply with the laws and
regulations of the countries and regions where we operate
our business, including the “Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Vietnam Law on Intellectual
Property”, and the “"GB/T 29490-2013 Management
Standards for the Intellectual Property of Enterprises”,
in PRC and has formulated and implemented intellectual
property (“IP") protection systems such as the "IP
Commitment”, the “Brand Protection System” and the
“Information Security Management System” to protect and
maintain IP information that may be involved in daily work.

Vii.
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Brand and Intellectual Property Protection i AHER A EREIRE

The Group has always adhered to the practice of brand REBEBREFEMERENEE
protection, safeguarded the honor of our brands and HEMBEBUAREP &G - RIFT
customer’s interests and maintained the leading business level HERNBIREBKFE - BMAREHE
in the industry. We are guided by an internally developed the F Mgz 2 FM)RIEm - RBZE
“Brand Safety Manual” and have taken various approaches to B A B RS EREE R AL o

prevent our brands from any infringement.

Brand safety training: brand safety awareness training, such as interactive exercises, role play, etc.;
mEZ2E MR EHEY - WEERE - ACES

Set up a reporting reward mechanism: establish a reward mechanism for suspected illegal intrusion, theft and
damage to brand safety, encouraging employees to report such illegal action;
RE RGBS GRELEPEAR - fiE  BERMLTE2NTR - REEBHE - B8 THIETAT

Security measures: global real-time monitoring uploaded to the central monitoring room, and the monitor
record shall be kept for at least 6 months;
ZREE: R EREE HERPRERE - BREREFED6MEA

Strict access control: set up a materials picking entrance and exit, entry and exit are subject to security checks
and visitors are subject to identification verification, employees must hold a staff card with photo;
HABARZER] : REEHAD - HOF @ EHALRTE S5 EETHHERARE  ETAREGMR
FEVIRE

Procedural security measures: timely destroy useless design drawings by shredding paper, protect customer’s data
and information by adhering to the principle of "what you need to know", and strictly manage network authority;
BFEZ2ERE: RERAESERNRABER  RHIENS D] RARETFERES - BROAE
REREIR

Physical security maintenance: set up a special storage area for authorized customers, access authorization
is required, accessories should be placed in a Iopkeq iron cabinet and kept by a‘designated personnel;
IR R ME  IRERPRVEMMAERRE - ERHOFMERE RO ETHEETYREARER

2

Physical and personnel isolation: for similar brands with strong competitiveness, implement physical and
personnel isolation for production and operation;
VIZIREEA BREE - SN AERBEFUNRERE  BEREENELNYIEREEFA BRE

Timely destroy the materials that contain customer information and excessive production materials printed
with the customer’s brand logo; and

HNBEEEPEENEMNEAERF RERHMNEESRE - RFHREE &

For all production materials, conduct internal code conversion to prevent unauthorized purchases, and to
ensure the security of customer information.

HRAALEEME - ETARRBER - DIERERENRE  MERETPHNERRE -

Brand Protection Measures

iR E
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Confidentiality

As the preferred strategic innovation partner of many
leading intimate wear and sports brands in the world, we
are well aware of the importance of technological innovation
and patent inventions to the Group's business strategy
and industrial upgrading. While continuously encouraging
innovation and patent inventions, we always adhere to the
implementation of strict intellectual property protection
policies to achieve strong and effective protection for our
own research and development results and customer
brands.

Access rights

agreements 5 E
R R
IP Protection
HBEERE
Firewall VPN setting
B N e VPNRE

ii.
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Watermarks
on documents Dz backin
XfKED HISED

Operation log
BIERGE

File encryption
XA NE

Measures for Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

ABEEREEE

Information Security

The Group has always been taking the information security
issues of itself and its customers carefully, formulated
and implemented the “Information Security Management
Procedures” and standardized the specific measures for
information security protection from the IT level, document
level and punishment mechanism level. In addition, we carry
out information security training covering all factories to help
employees establish information security awareness and
get familiar with information security rules and regulations,
realize the protection of information security for themselves
and customers in work practice, and publicize information
security knowledge in the training of daily information
systems.
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From the IT level

ITREm

We check the system security logs
of each server on a regular basis and
timely monitor viruses or illegal
intrusions that threaten system
security;

We have set up firewalls in access
to any external network to prevent
internal computer systems from
external intrusion, and installed
antivirus software in all factories’
computers, as well as kept the
status of definition files updated;

The MIS department managed all
software used in the computer; The
use of the supplier's legitimate
software is clearly stipulated; and

Employees are prohibited from
violating information security in any
forms.

EHRER R
A

R EHIREN A
EXIMRARE - B

FIET ARG

SHERAE AR PTE B AR ERMISERPT
IR - BNERR E WA ZR(E R BRI IEAR
E/SE SN

BRAXHRERIETITNZRERERE
REITR °

From the document level

XHERER

Each department has established an
independent data storage room,
implementing management methods
such as dedicated personnel
management, access control
authorization; and

Material documents shall be kept by
senior management or public affairs
department to ensure the
confidentiality and integrity of such
documents.
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Information Security Protection Measures

FRRERELE
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From the punishment
mechanism level

BEE S Em

Based on different circumstances of
information security violations, we
have set up punishment mechanism
with different degrees. For cases
violating national laws, they will be
transferred to the national judicial
organs to deal with.
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In the process of information security system management,
we attach importance to server stability, migrating physical
server virtualization to a hyper-converged platform and
update systems to ensure system operates in a smooth and
safe manner through centralized management. We upgrade
the information security system on the basis of the original
system. At the group level, we launch the wireless security
access system that enables users to connect to the wireless
network through authentication, and the connected users
will be managed and controlled through the system. We will
carry out a comprehensive upgrade of the anti-virus system
and defence based on virus behavior to form a strong shield
for the Group’s terminal computer. We specify a responsive
emergency plan for core network, systems and databases
and conduct emergency drills to improve our ability to cope
with contingencies. We actively cooperate with information
system audit, regularly review accounts, sort out database
accounts and authorizations, and carry out dynamic update.

During the Reporting Period, there were no information
security incidents such as theft, lose, illegal entry and
information leakage.

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

The Group's suppliers principally provide us with fabrics,
foam, accessories and supplementary packaging materials.
We are committed to building a mutually beneficial and
win-win ecosystem with our partners, and we continue
to improve our supply chain management and promote
sustainable development of the supply chain. We are
actively pursuing friendly cooperative relations with
suppliers, regard ourselves as a pivot in the supply chain,
and discuss new development directions with suppliers
based on customer requirements, product market surveys
and industry trends. We would also guide them to carry out
production which meets the needs of consumers for joint
development.
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Supplier Management

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where it operates, such as
the “Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Tenders
and Bids” and the “Bidding Rules of the Socialist Republic
of Vietnam"” and has formulated and implemented
systems and processes such as the “Production Material
Supplier Management System”, the “Procurement and
Suppliers Admission System and Work Guidelines”, the
“Business Partner Management Procedures” and the
"Supplier Application and Changing Process”, under which
potential suppliers shall undergo comprehensive admission
assessment in relation to operation qualifications, product
quality and price, innovation capability, environmental and
social risks and integrated management. We follow the
principles of giving equal emphasis on quality, price, delivery
and service, and require samples from suppliers and test
such samples in accordance with our production process
to ensure that they meet our requirements on production
quality. We check the documentation of such samples,
such as the quality inspection report and the OEKO-TEX®
STANDARD 100 Certificate to ensure that they comply with
the qualification standards of the place of operation, those
of our customers and Regina Miracle.

The Group attaches great importance to the responsibility
communication of suppliers and helps to achieve strong
maintenance of existing business and positive expansion
of future business through regular visits and good
communication. It also actively promotes management
digitalization and systematization across the supply chain,
thereby enabling more efficient and accurate information
transmission and sharing between parties. We strictly
execute supplier evaluation process to ensure that the
quality of our supply chain always meets high standards. The
procurement department of the Group regularly organizes
relevant departments including the department of R&D and
the department of quality control to assess suppliers on a
monthly and quarterly basis. Suppliers are scored in terms
of quality, delivery punctuality, quantity reliability, service
performance and R&D capability, which will be collated to
form a supplier assessment report. Based on the score,
we reward excellent suppliers by allocating more orders to
them, whereas average performers will be placed under
guidance and supervision while the unqualified ones will
be eliminated. We requires all suppliers to regularly provide
specified information and accept inspections in the system
to further improve our supplier monitoring and evaluation
system.
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At the beginning of each month, the Business Process Management (BPM) system automatically
sends out a supplier appraisal form to the department of garment procurement/R&D
& A¥IBPM (Business Process Management) &£t B Eh%% ) (L FE R 2 A2 SRR 4R R IR BB 30, 7T 35 36

The department of garment procurement/R&D maintains service satisfaction and R&D
satisfaction scores on the BPM system within three days after the receipt of the supplier
appraisal form

RIS S BE HERZE R E = RANEBPMAER L LR B EE KA REE

The BPM system automatically sends the data back to the corresponding statements on
the systems applications and products in data processing (SAP) system after all replies are
completed

F2IEETK - BPMEFRE BEEIEEI{EZESAP (systems applications and products in
data processing) &£t - ¥ E R ¥R+

At the mid of each month, the department of general procurement designates colleagues to
extract a supplier appraisal form from the SAP system

F AT HRBEAS SIEEREESAPRG P B HH R EREK

Supplier assessment information are kept in a designated folder and a copy of such information
shall be sent by email to supervisors for reference

REFHERERMEMRIEE XK - AW ERG ER2E

Supplier Appraisal Process
HEBELRE
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Supply Chain Risk Management

Under the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and extreme
weather, the Group promptly takes control measures
for supply chain risk and improves the assessment
and management of risk by analyzing in advance and
taking corresponding measures, thereby achieving
risk diversification or even risk avoidance. We identify,
control, monitor and review the three major areas and
eight dimensions of risks that may be involved in the
supply chain, and keep improving the way and process
of risk management and control. For the risks covered
by our management and control, we continue to improve
the effectiveness of management and control, while for
the risk lacking management and control, we improve
them by optimizing agreement, upgrading computer
security management system, incorporating third parties
management and control and other methods, and guide
future risk management plans through regular monitoring
and reviewing.

ii.

R EREREE

R R &
EHBRERERRRNZET - &
S BRI E R R R E R
BIBIEAT AT W IR ENAR FEHE BE - DA D
BEREBNFENER  BREARN
DHEERE - RO HHEEAEE
BREM=ZRE - NREE R ERE
THEM - BE BEEER FET
ZRAREETATRIE - YRBEE
BENRR  BRAFERAEZENX
M HRRZEENRR - BFBRS
TEHHE  TREMLEERERLS
MAB=HEEETNETHE A
iR TE B BRI M B R RIE G AR R E
fEEE -

FEHE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 129



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE > HERERRSE

Single and
centralized risk
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Eight Dimensions of Supply Chain Risk Management
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For risk of natural environment and social responsibility, we
have formulated a list of supplier risks that covers all possible
risks involved in the supply chain. For specific suppliers, we
issue a Supplier Risk Assessment Form to assess various
risk items and determine solutions. During the course of
corporation with suppliers, we require suppliers to sign the
"Code of Conduct” issued by us. The “Code of Conduct”
expressively sets forth the standards which shall be strictly
followed by suppliers in social and environmental aspects
during their operations. We require all suppliers to sign
and follow the "Supplier Anti-bribery Agreement” and
adopt the strategy of separating the responsibilities of the
sourcing, pricing, user selection and paying parties internally
to prevent corruption in the supply chain and to create a
fair, just, open and transparent operating environment, and
protect a good and orderly development of commercial trade
and the interests of both parties. WWe commit ourselves to
only working with honest and transparent suppliers that are
environmentally-friendly and accountable to employees in
aspects including but not limited to freedom of association,
non-forced labor, reasonable compensation and benefits,
respect for human rights. Meanwhile, we would keep
monitoring and encouraging social and environmental
compliance performance of our suppliers to ensure the
sustainability and effectiveness of the supply chain.

During the selection process of suppliers, on top of
evaluating their supply qualifications, the Group also
integrates a sustainability perspective in various aspects
such as supplier admission, assessment and communication
and work with suppliers to improve its management
level in terms of environmental and social performance.
We continue to increase the purchase percentage of
environment-friendly products, check and inspect the
environmental credentials of our suppliers to ensure that
the Group manufactures products in a responsible manner,
working together to build the brand image and the public
confidence in our responsible supply chain.
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Talent Management

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of
the countries and regions where it operates, including the
“Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”, and the
"Labor Code of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”. Besides,
the Group has formulated and implemented the policies and
procedures covering the entire group and across all levels,
including the “Recruitment Procedures”, the “Management
Measures for Competitive Internal Recruitment, Promotion
and Demotion”, the "Performance Management System”,
as well as the “Staff Departure Procedures”. Meanwhile,
we have built a talent management system of “Recruitment-
Training-Retention” to support the rapid development of the
Group.

Talent Recruitment and Retention

The Group acquires talents through diversified channels such
as on-site recruitment, intermediaries, online recruitment,
campus recruitment and staff internal recommendation
with the recruitment principle of “open recruitment,
comprehensive appraisal and merit-based admission”.
The Group recruits staff solely on the basis of whether the
actual knowledge and work experience possessed by the
candidates meets the requirements of the positions applied
for, and does not treat differently between candidates on
the grounds of factors such as gender, ethnicity, religion,
age, disability, sexual orientation, nationality, political stand,
social status, social or ethnic background. We strictly
ensure the transparency of recruitment processes and the
uniformity of recruitment standards.

In Fiscal 2022, we adjusted the amount of internal
recommendation bonus to encourage our employees to
actively recommend outstanding and quality talents or
mature talents that the Group needs, so as to ensure the
full utilisation of internal human resources and build a stable
backbone team. In addition, we continued to deepen the
cooperation with institutions and enterprises and expanded
the scope of campus recruitment by adding 4 new schools
to provide high quality talents for the Group’s development.
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Diversity and Equal Employment

The Group is committed to developing a corporate culture
of equality and diversity. Outside of work, we organize
Chinese-Vietnamese language classes on a regular basis
to provide trainings in relation to Chinese and Vietnamese
customs and culture for our staff engaged in cross-cultural
work, so as to promote cultural integration. In addition, the
Group cares for female staff through various channels, and
considers related decision and actions from the female
perspective. We provide all female staff with pregnancy and
lactation benefits, parental leave as well as breastfeeding
rooms as required by the laws of where we operate and
support any activities related to the health of female staff.

Training and Development

The Group is committed to “Growing with its staff”,
and provides enriched training resources and smooth
promotion paths for employees. Based on our strategic
priorities of “innovation, speed and quality”, we conduct
scientific evaluation and design for each position from two
dimensions, namely internal value and external market
value. We also establish a corresponding training system
for core key positions to effectively shorten the talent
training cycle and improve training efficiency. Based on
the actual situation and the needs of various departments,
we formulate training systems and courses for employees
of different ranks to ensure that our employees receive
adequate training throughout their careers and continue to
improve the management capabilities of the management
and the professional skills of frontline staff. Meanwhile, to
ensure the training is of comprehensiveness and real time
operability, we actively establish an online learning platform
and combine the two models of internal training and external
training to provide sufficient talent training and support for
our development.
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Skill Level Identification H fEERAE

In order to help our qualified staff on skill posts to be
recognized by the industry, in Fiscal 2022, the Group
declared three types of skill level identification for apparel
pattern maker, apparel maker and color matcher for
staff on relevant posts. After a series of pre-examination
counseling, declaration and systematic assessment, 168
employees successfully passed the assessment and
obtained different levels of certificates for primary and
intermediate level.
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Internal Auditor Training A2 8 1% 3

In order to strengthen the standardization of the Group’s
internal audit operations, develop standardized internal
audit procedure documents, systems and forms at
the group level, standardize the audit methods and
checklists, and make the output results more convincing,
in Fiscal 2022, the Group conducted a three-month, four-
stage training on internal audit expertise for 30 internal
auditors from five business divisions in Shenzhen,
covering from theoretical knowledge on audit standards
and methods to on-site practical exercises on audit skills.
A professional internal audit team at the group level was
established by all the participating internal auditors who
passed the assessment and obtained certification.
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Internal Mandate and Lecturer Empowerment [X 30 #2255 £ B A

In order to enable our internally certified authorized
instructors to control the classroom atmosphere and
pass on their knowledge more effectively, in Fiscal 2022,
the Group empowered 31 newly-certified instructors
with classroom presentation skills and methods,
ranging from the key points of course development
and training instructor role recognition to training
presentation and scenario control, which strengthened
each newly-certified instructor’s professional knowledge
and understanding of course delivery and laid a solid
foundation for their future courses.
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Appraisal and Promotion

The Group has the "Performance Management System”
in place, to comprehensively assess the work performance
of its staff in the principles of objectivity, fairness,
completeness and authenticity and based on performance
targets. We peg job promotion and salary adjustment to
performance results and enhance the stimulation effect
of appraisals. Several outstanding staff are selected and
recognized with outstanding awards each year based on
the performance appraisal results, and such results will
be regarded as important reference for talents selection,
cultivation of reserve, training and promotion, position
adjustment and remuneration and welfare. Meanwhile, we
stress on performance-related communication, and require
department heads to arrange performance-related interviews
to timely understand the staff’s difficulties at work and
assist them to improve work approaches, performance and
income. In order to maintain the validity and fairness of
appraisals, the performance team will supervise and check
the publication of the performance appraisal results and the
performance interview work of the hiring department every
month.
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To encourage our employees for continuous advancement
and self-improvement, and strengthen their sense of
mission and responsibility, the Group has established a clear
internal competition and rank promotion mechanism and
ensures that the internal talent selection is conducted on a
basis of open, fair, just, equal competition, and merit-based
admission. We select and promote appropriate talents
for promotion after taking into account job requirements
and internal competition assessment results to meet the
diversified career development needs of internal employees
with potentials.

In Fiscal 2022, the Group has comprehensively verified
and checked the starting salaries for each position and
made adjustments to the starting salaries for a total of
230 positions, and simultaneously conducted a review and
optimization of performance appraisal indicators, and revised
32 appraisal indicators for 78 departments.

Remuneration and Care

Based on the salary principle of “mutual benefit and
distribution according to contribution”, the Group provides
staff with reasonable remuneration and benefits packages,
including wages, overtime pay, allowances and paid leave
wages, with the basic salary not lower than the standard
minimum wage in the place where we operate to safeguard
the basic living needs of our employees, and overtime
payment and paid leave wages will be made in accordance
with the laws and regulations of the place where it operates.
We make contributions to the social insurance and provident
fund for our staff in the place of business operations as
required, and ensure that our employees are entitled to
leaves such as paid leave, marital leave, maternity leave,
work-related injury leave and sick leave.

The Group advocates work-life balance, and its trade unions
are responsible for organizing various activities for staff care
in attempt to help staff maintain a positive attitude and good
spirit. We greet our employees whenever there is a holiday,
accompany them throughout the year through regular and
irregular staff activities, and always offer them our sincere
care and material assistance whenever they or their families
encounter major difficulties. During the Reporting Period,
the Group actively organized staff to make donations for
colleagues who suffered from illnesses or accidents to help
them overcome difficulties and restore health, and sent
representatives to visit and console.
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Team-building Activities B EE)

The Group regularly organizes team-building activities
to allow staff to relax after work, and to facilitate
communication and mutual understanding through
organizing cooking competitions, food festivals, friendly
matches and other activities, so as to strengthen
team cohesion, thereby enhancing team collaboration
capabilities and improving employee engagement at
work. We encourage staff to develop hobbies and
actively invest resources to help our staff develop their
interests and talents. We organize sports competitions
such as basketball to promote the cohesion of our staff
with the sportsmanship of “unity, loyalty, nobility, and
improvement”.
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Retaining Talents

The Group values every talent and endeavors to retain key
talents to ensure the stability of the Group's operations. We
have set up the “Long-term Service Award"” to thank and
motivate staff members for their loyalty and contribution,
and enhance their sense of belonging and recognition
to Regina Miracle. We timely arrange interviews with
employees who have an inclination to leave. The interview
is designed to learn about their work and living conditions,
motives for departure, as well as the possibility and
conditions to stay, so as to retain outstanding personnel.
The general manager’s office of every business department
of the Group would conduct a staff departure review
regularly, in which the department head reports on staff
departure analysis to timely identify room for improvement
and retain talents for our Group, with the regular internal
audit also taken into account.
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Protection of Labor Rights and Interests

In the principle of prohibition of forced and child labor,
and in compliance with the remuneration, benefits and
working hours regulations, the Group has formulated and
implemented policies and systems such as the “Code
of Conduct”, the “Staff Manual”, the “Procedures for
Protecting Minor Workers”, the “Procedures for Preventing
Forced or Compulsory Labor”, the “"Procedures for the
Prohibition of Employing Child Labor”, the “Procedures
for the Prohibition of Discrimination”, the “Working
Hours System of the Company”, the “Norms of Working
Hours and Rest”, the “Voluntary Overtime Policy”,
the “Staff Relationship Management Procedures”, the
“Staff Complaints Procedures and Process”, the “Basic
Policies and Procedures for Social Responsibility” and the
“Economic Compensation Policy”, in an effort to protect
staff’s legitimate rights and interests in a practical manner.
Meanwhile, we have set up staff representative unions
and labor unions in Shenzhen and Vietnam factories. Talks
are arranged on a regular basis to help old and new staff
understand each other, share information and establish
harmonious labor relations.

We provide various social security for all employees under
the Group in accordance with the policies in the place of
business operations, such as pension, medical care, work
injury, maternity, unemployment insurance and housing
provident fund for our staff in Mainland China. We strictly
abide by the national policy on holidays and working hours,
encourage our staff to strike a proper balance between
work and rest, maintain balance between work and life, and
ensure that our employees are entitled to various legal rights
such as sick leave, marital leave, maternity leave, and annual
leave.
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In addition, in order to effectively protect the rights and
interests of employees, the Group has established a special
complaint system in Shenzhen and Vietnam factories.
We strictly respect and protect the grievance rights of
all employees. If an employee finds problems such as
discrimination, forced labor, child labor employment,
harassment and abuse, he can file complaints through
the following channels. We keep all employees who file
complaints strictly confidential, and solemnly promise that
employees will never suffer any form of punishment or
retaliation for their complaints. The management of the
Group assigns designated personnel to follow up on staff
complaints, and if the complaints are verified, the results
will be published on the bulletin board and subject to staff
supervision. The Vietnam factories of the Group have set up
a sound procedure for handling employees’ complaints, and
have delegated the authority and responsibility for handling
complaints to human resources department, general
manager’s office, trade union and so forth. Meanwhile,
the Vietnam factories have established a complaint
handling committee which is responsible for convening and
participating in the complaint handling meeting, reviewing
the severity and nature of the complaint and deciding on
the action plan when the complainant is retaliated against.
We strictly ensure that all grievances are handled on an
equal basis and that employees receive full pay and benefits
during the grievance process.
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Staff Complaining Channel Setting

Suggestion box: Suggestion box will be open on every
Monday, and all letters will be reviewed by the head of the
human resources department and be timely dealt with for
giving advice.

Employee forum: It will be held once a month, during
which the human resources department will have face-to-
face communication with employee representatives and
employees who have made complaints.

Complaint telephone: 29893388-1156.

Complaint platform: WOVO communication platform and
KNO communication platform.

Prohibition of Forced Labor

The Group prohibits all personnel from forcing staff labor
in any manner or unnecessarily restricting staff’'s freedom
to act. We guarantee that all employees work in our
factories voluntarily and enjoy all the freedoms within law,
without any form of coercion. When joining the Group,
all employees need to sign the “Convention of Incoming
Factory Employees” on a voluntary and equal basis and
attach it to their personal files for archiving and retention.
We reasonably regulate the management of working hours
and employee attendance, and guarantee employees’
rights to rest. We implement the principle of voluntary
overtime work, and pay employees overtime wages in strict
accordance with relevant regulations. During the Reporting
Period, there was no case of forced labor employment in
the Group.

Prohibition of Child Labor

The Group resolutely resists the employment of child labor
to prevent the employment of any employees under the
legal working age. If child labor is found, the factory must
immediately stop him/her from working and escort him/her
back to his or her guardian at its own expense. Meanwhile,
the department of human resources of the Group will follow
up and investigate the reasons for the wrong recruitment
of child labor, in order to take effective measures to
prevent similar incidents. In order to raise the awareness
of prohibiting the employment of child labor, the Group
conducts publicity by posting system, broadcasting, mail,
training and conference. During the Reporting Period, there
was no case of child labor employment in the Group.
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When applylng for positions, all applicants must possess their legal ID cards, their recent photos

\ FIEABBRBRARMERERAREFDERE - AALHRBRER

Recruiting staff will verify ID card by ID Card Identifying instrument
BIABRAShHE&NE] ERIHEZER

and recent photos shall be re-verified

HFEMENEOAR - BREEGOEERAABRES  ARAMBERE

When admission, the staff's photocopy of ID card and recent photo shall be kept in his/her
personal file

/ BT AR - EARASOERENM -

. For applicants with legal ID cards, the consistency of their ID cards with their actual faces

LR ABAESR

Any personnel or employee who breaches the “Management Regulations on Employing Child
. Labor"” shall be subject to disciplinary actions in accordance with relevant regulations

/ HEMNEERZELREEEATNEBAENE TILREHRIRRBLEZED

Implementation Procedure of Prohibition of Child Labor

HILEBEISKRRERF

Prohibition of Harassment or Abuse

Our Group is well aware that the employer must provide a
work environment free of harassment, abuse or physical
punishment in any form to make sure that all employees are
cared and respected.

Special meeting Theme training Publicity policy
HEEEE FEREE EEBGR

1A RIERF
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all department heads and ask
them to sign a statement stating
that they understand relevant
policies on “Prohibition of Forced
Labor, Child Labor and Harassment
or Abuse”.
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management personnel and
ask them to sign a statement
stating that they can fully understand
and accurately execute such
policies.
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e \We hold special meetings for e \We hold theme trainings for all e e achieve effective communication

through posting factory regulations
e-mail on bulletin board in factories
or broadcasting.
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Measures for Prohibition of Harassment or Abuse

EILEBREFERE
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Health and Safety of Staff

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where it operates such as the
“Constitution of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases”, the "“Fire Control Law
of the People’'s Republic of China”, the “Regulations on
Factory Safety and Sanitation”, the “Law of Occupational
Safety and Hygiene of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”,
the “Vietnam's Circular on National Technical Regulation
on Microclimate” and the “Vietnam’s Circular on National
Technical Regulation on Noise”. We execute the principle
of meeting health and safety standards, always emphasizing
safety during the course of production and operation, and
formulate and implement policies and regulations such as
the "Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual” and the “Occupational Safety and
Health Policy” based on our actual situation, so as to create
a healthy, safe and comfortable environment working for our
staff.

Safety Production Management

The Group maintains the occupational health and safety
principles of “environmental protection, safety first,
compliance with disciplines and regulations, prevention-
centered, all-staff engagement and ongoing improvement”,
with the general goal of “zero major accidents such as
severe injury, fatality, explosion, fire and leak of hazardous
chemical substances; higher safety awareness among staff,
and safety training for all staff”. Eight goals have been set to
cover the health and safety of the Group's all staff, requiring
that any production activities must be carried out on the
premise of ensuring safety.

iii.
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Fire Safety

HEZ 2

Health and
Safety

BEZRZ

Transportation
Safety

Electricity
Safety

REZZ
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0 case of fire alarm

KIORBAR0

0 case of drinking water/heatstroke/
poisoning/community infection accidents

BRFK/ B/ HEHEIERL0ER

The rate of working hours lost per 10,000
employees in whole factory due to
work-related injuries will not exceed 5%
2HREEATGEHERTREHXTEA
5%

The rate of working hours lost per 10,000
employees in whole factory due to
work-related injuries will not exceed 5%
2HEEATESEHIRR TR R4 ETEB
185%

Work-related
Injury
Management

TEER

Chemicals
Management

t2mERE

Occupational
Health
and Safety

LoE i
zZ2

Safety
Training

ZEE

Safety Objectives
ZE2EE

The Group has established a long-term mechanism for
enterprise’s safety production, which, by measures such
as formulation and implementation of various safety
management systems and safety operation procedures,
continuous inspection and rectification as well as constant
improvement, formed a full-set of long-term safety
production management mechanism that can sum up the
experience and improve safety production performance

constantly.

R EREREE

The rate of working hours lost per 10,000
employees in whole factory due to
work-related injuries will not exceed 5%
2HEEALGERELTIRSHETE
#85%

0 case of accidents such as leak of
hazardous chemical substances and
explosion

feALmRIR - BIEO=H

0 case of occupational diseases

B2 7 0% 1

Annual training rate of staff in respect of
safety education and training rate of new
staff in respect of "Level 3" safety
education: 100%

Job take-up rate of special operation
personnel with a license: 100%
BFEEEBILRHAEIIERIEET
[=8] Z2HAFFIFEEE100%
FFEEE A BRE EM&E100%
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For the purpose of enhancing the Group’s corporate
management level of safety production and its capability
to prevent and deal with accidents, we have established a
leading panel of safety production, which acts as a safety
production management body shouldering the responsibility
of routine supervisory and administrative work on safety
production, in accordance with the requirements of the
“"Work Safety Law of the People's Republic of China”
((PEARKEMELZEZAEE)); and the leading body of
safety production is required to convene at least one safety
meeting in the first month of each quarter to coordinate and
resolve the safety production issues in the previous quarter
and make plans for the work of the upcoming quarter.

We have established a negotiation mechanism, which
allows the employees to participate in the planning,
implementation, performance evaluation and improvement
of occupational health and safety management system. We
constantly invested to improve our work on environmental
and occupational health and safety, ramping up the
environmental and safety management level of the Group
and protecting the life and property safety of employees and
enterprise, thus realizing sustainable development.

The Group has established a sound safety management
system and conducted regular risk assessment to minimize
potential risks as we consider it our responsibility to
provide a healthy and safe environment for staff. Factories
in Shenzhen and Vietnam under the Group have been
rewarded with the certification of ISO 45001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System, among which,
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Limited
and Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Limited have both passed
the national level-2 work safety standardization certification
in 2018.
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Certificate of Registration
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1SO45001 Certificate of the Shenzhen factories
FYI R EIS045001:% &

The Shenzhen and Vietnam factories of the Group have
formulated the "Health and Safety Management Scheme”
and the "“Safety Supervision and Inspection List for Iltems”,
covering the health and safety requirements for key areas,
such as machinery safety, power safety, general workplace
safety, article placement safety, fire safety, chemical
management, waste management and canteen safety.
They clarify the inspection content, objectives and indicators
of health and safety management, and timely follow
up existing safety production issues; the management
personnel of various departments are required to evaluate
and record each safety indicator on a monthly basis, and
identify the key content that needs to be strengthened in a
timely manner.

1S045001 Certificate of National Level-2 Work
the Vietnam factories Safety Standardization
MR EIS045001:% &

Certificate
FEBER —RZEEELEE
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Chemicals Management and Control

In order to strengthen the safety management of hazardous
chemicals, protect the life and property safety of employees
and protect the environment, the Group has formulated the
“Hazardous Chemical Safety Management System” ({f&
BtE2RL2EIE4|E)), conducted a general inspection
on all hazardous chemicals during the work process
of employees and in the work environment, including
products, raw materials and products in process, and
established a file for hazardous chemicals. Meanwhile,
when producing dangerous chemicals, we require that
product safety technical instructions and safety labels shall
be prepared in accordance with China’s regulations such
as the "GB16483_2000 General Rules for Preparation of
Material Safety Data Sheet” ({GB16483_2000{t & # %
2HRITHASZSHERMATE) ), the "GB 15258-2009 General
Rules for Preparation of Precautionary Label for Chemicals”
({GB 15258-20091t Bm% 2R HmBAHRE) ), Vietnam No.
32/2017/TT-BCT Notice of Vietnam (#FgNo. 32/2017/TT-
BCT# %) and No. 113/2017/ND-CP Decree (5113/2017/
ND-CP%%54%) and be provided to clients. When purchasing
dangerous chemicals, relevant departments shall obtain
the “Material Safety Data Sheet (/& (b2 G % & B i 54 BF
Z)" and precautionary label from suppliers, and shall not
purchase hazardous chemicals without material safety data
sheet and precautionary label.

Fire Safety

The Group is engaged in clothing industry and its raw
materials such as cotton, cloth and glue are inflammable,
so we are also listed as a key fire safety unit. In order to
effectively prevent fire and safety accidents, we have
prepared the “Emergency Plan on Fire Accidents and Natural
Disasters”, and organize fire safety knowledge seminars
and drills regularly. At the same time, we understand that
safety is all about precautions, so we recruit a total of seven
full-time fire brigade in our Shenzhen factories and Vietnam
factories. Through the daily safety inspections by our fire
brigade for more than twice a month, we have been able to
eliminate hidden safety hazards in a timely manner, prevent
the possibility of safety accidents, and continuously enhance
our safety management level. During the Reporting Period,
we organized a total of 22 fire drills for all employees,
constantly enhancing their emergency capability. We are
able to strengthen the safety awareness of employees
and enhance their ability in response to emergency events
through spreading knowledge such as the operating
methods of fire extinguisher and fire hose, “Four Abilities”
(PU{E&E #7) and “One Pathway, Two Can-dos” (—i5M&)
regarding fire safety, escape and self-rescue, workshop
emergency response.
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Canteen Safety

The Group cares about the dining safety of all staff, and
requires all canteen staff to hold health certificates, and
adopts strict control measures to ensure that the processes
from food procurement to delivery have meet health
standards. We conduct regular pest control in canteen
to prevent the breeding of pests; regularly inspect the
cleanliness of canteen equipment to eliminate food safety
hazards; and collect employees’ opinions on a monthly basis
to urge external contractors of the canteen to continuously
improve their services and ensure health and safety through

R EREREE
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conducting regular evaluation and collecting feedback from
employees.

e The security team leader conducts an inspection of the workshop every

day;
o . e The safety center inspects the workshop during off-hours; and
Daily inspection e The personnel in charge of workshop inspects the workshop at the time
HExKEs when starting and finishing work.

o RERIIBERESRHBMET RS -
o RERLEMIBRHBERMETRSE - R
o HREL - THIBHEMETRE -

e The safety center of the human resources department conducts a
Monthly inspection monthly safety loophole inspection of the entire factory in conjunction
AEhE with the engineering department and the production department.

o ANEREHZEZHOEAMA IR LENHEMETZEZRERE -

e The security department inspects and tests the fire facilities and fire
systems every month. If there are any problems, they will be dealt with
in a timely manner.

o RFREEALDEIRIETERN RAETREMAS - FEMNE - REE
# -

Monthly inspection of fire facilities

EBE R e AR

Implementation of Safety Inspection
ZEREHERER
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We formulate and implement the “Performance of Work
Safety Evaluation System” to detect the completion of
safety objectives, the performance of safety responsibilities
and the comprehensive performance of safety standardization
so as to ensure the effective operation of the safety
standardization system and provide a basis for continuous
improvement of safety management performance. We
conduct a comprehensive assessment of the operation
of all elements of safety standardization, and formulate
improvement measures based on the assessment results
and incorporate them into the following year.

During the past three reporting periods, including Fiscal
2022, no work-related fatality was recorded by the Group. In
Fiscal 2022, 82 injured staff were recorded, accounting for
0.18% of the total number of employees, and the number
of working days lost due to work-related injuries was
2,506 days. After the occurrence of work-related injury, we
actively responded in strict accordance with the “Emergency
Rescue Procedure” and the “Procedure for Handling Work-
related Injuries” to ensure proper rescue and treatment
was given to the injured staff; such work-related injuries
were also identified and verified subsequently, to ensure
the salary, benefits and time of recovery and protect their
legitimate rights and interests of the injured staff.

EHS Management Appraisal

The Group strictly ensures that any production and activities
must be carried out in a safe manner. We regularly review
the environment, health and safety ("EHS"”) management
system of the Shenzhen factories to ensure their
continued suitability, adequacy and effectiveness. The
EHS management appraisal for Fiscal 2022 was conducted
in June 2021, and the appraisal results showed that the
EHS management system was appropriate, adequate and
effective.
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YT GIEE N E g (R | < Appraisal contents
FESMAE FERE

e Status of previous management e Results of staff engagement and
appraisals consultation Appropriateness of EHS
LA E IR SR IE HE A AR RE Policy
B T2MMp a4 REHSH $HHEE
3
e Appropriateness of EHS policy e Communication with related parties,
EHSHSTRIEE 1% including complaint handling
AR B AN - BRI IE
e Appraisal results o Degree of goal achievement
EZMER BEERNEE
General manager e Compliance with compliance e Management performance of
FpCs] obligations significant environmental factors and
SRMEBNETER danger source
EERRAZAERIRNEIRE
e Changes in internal and external e Changes in significant environmental
environmental matters (conditions) factors and danger source
WEPFISNEBIRIR B R (IR ) #1b BERGARABRIRAN L
e Changes in related party e Changes in risks and opportunities
requirements, including changes in s =t 04

compliance obligations
HEADZERkae# b - BREEARBE L
e EHS performance (monitoring and e Sufficiency of resources

measurement results) and trends BIRFTE DM
EHSE M (EER AR 24 R ) M8

e Incident investigation, e Other improvement opportunities
implementation of corrective and HAb gk

preventive measures

SRS - A EMBER RGN EREER
Management

representatives

EEERAR

Department heads
WHEEEA

EHS Management Appraisal
EHSEEIE
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Emergency Plan

The Group has formulated a comprehensive emergency
plan and the Shenzhen factories have filed with the
local government. In particular, we have formulated the
"Accident Emergency Management System” to standardize
emergency rescue management, improve the ability to deal
with safety risks and prevent accidents, ensure the safety
and health of the Group's staff and the safety of public life,
and minimize property losses, environmental pollution and
social impacts.

If a safety accident occurs, the Group’s safety center will
go to the scene to conduct a scene reconstruction and
investigation and deal with the accident in accordance with
the rule of “four let-no-passes” (i.e.: it cannot be let pass if
the accident is of unclear causes; it cannot be let pass if the
responsible person is not punished; it cannot be let pass if
the corrective measures are not taken; it cannot be let pass
if the persons concerned obtain no lessons). In addition,
the safety center conducts monthly statistical analysis of
accidents, risk assessments on equipment and personnel
that are prone to accidents, interviews those responsible
for workplace accidents, and conducts safety training for all
workers in the workshop where work-related injuries occur.

Safety Training

The Group values the safety education for all staff and
constantly improve their safety awareness. In this regard,
we formulate the annual safety training plan at the beginning
of each year and conduct the safety training work according
to such annual plan, including but not limited to formulating
safety operating procedure for each machine and providing
trainings for machine operating personnel; providing three
tier level fire safety education and trainings for new staff
each year, by which only the qualified staff can be allowed
to start work; providing fire safety knowledge and fire
protection facility operation training for all current staff each
year. In Fiscal 2022, we have provided a total of 621,896
hours of health and safety training.
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Employee Health Management

The Group attaches great importance to the physical and
mental health of its employees and provides routine body
examination for each new employee. For the positions with
occupational harzard, such as noise, high temperature, laser,
chemicals, and dust, special occupational examinations are
provided for employees. During the Reporting Period, over
1,700 staff received the aforesaid examination.

A community health service center is established in the
Shenzhen factories of the Group, which provides our
employees with more convenient, faster and affordable
enterprise community health services under the concept
of “always concerning about the health of enterprise
employees”. Employees are able to enjoy health precaution
and medical treatment services in the factory area, so as to
pursue a high-quality, convenient, efficient and harmonious
way of living.

The Group has strictly followed the guidelines for prevention
and treatment of the pandemic issued by local government,
actively implemented anti-pandemic measures, formulated
internal regulations such as the "COVID-19 Pandemic
Response Plan” and the “Precaution Guidelines in Shenzhen
Factories”, and developed rigorous control standards for
daily operation in factory, staff's working environment
and emergency situations to improve the professionalism
and systematism of the prevention and control work on
the COVID-19 pandemic carried out by the subsidiaries of
the Group. At the same time, we issued notices including
“Enclosed Management of Company Dormitory during the
Pandemic” and the “Timely and Accurate Reporting on the
Pandemic” for the purpose of understanding staff's situation
in a timely manner, making a prompt reaction in case of
emergency, and fulfilling our commitments to customers
as scheduled under the premise of ensuring the safety and
health of staff.

In order to enhance the prevention and control on the
diseases caused by COVID-19 pandemic, effectively reduce
the persons’ gathering and ensure the safety production, the
Group has established a pandemic prevention and control
headquarters in the Shenzhen factories which is led by the
general commander and vice commander, to coordinate
the pandemic prevention and control and the handling of
emergency events in the whole factory. There are seven
supporting teams under the pandemic prevention and
control headquarters to handle the daily work.
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RIEHERE

Pandemic alert team
HETREEAE

Pandemic
monitoring team
BRI

Material security team

MERER

Vaccination team

RHEZEER

Prevention and control
team of HK vehicles

REEE

Disinfection team

Emergency

response team

AEE

Timely issue the Company's latest prevention and control requirements and
inform all departments to implement.
KRB A BRI F12 Z k@ A& 2P E B AT -

Responsible for monitoring the body temperature of all visitors into the factory in
guard room, and supervise the proper wearing of masks.
BEREMEEELNMABNEEED « EEEHBABEEMEOS -

Guarantee the distribution of masks, disinfection and pandemic prevention
materials throughout the factory.

REZBMOZMES - HRVMAER

Responsible for the vaccination, its grade, revisit and other work of all personnel
in the factory area.
BEREEBABRENER S BHEIE-

Follow up the prevention and control of container trucks from Hong Kong,
supervise drivers’ declaration and registration, QR code security, nucleic acid
testing of vehicles and disinfection.

REBEEEENZELIE  EEAMBRRERL  REIFEN - BB - B -
Responsible for the disinfection work in the factory area (Hong Kong vehicle
drivers' activity area, company canteen, toilet, etc.) and workshops twice a week.

BERR(EERMEDES - ARRE - HERS) MERSE_RBRTE -

Responsible for setting up quarantine observation areas, managing suspected
infected personnel and sending them to hospital.
BERHERERE  EFAEEN  XE -

Measures against the COVID-19 Pandemic in the Shenzhen Factories

RYIBEH B RIF Y EE

BAMEHRTZDERES TEAR
B REBERBRASRARGESH
FeFEEE  ARREIERER
2 MBHRAHGETER - M
RETETRIENBE RIARDEE
EEH - RABIZEEFAEMRES
MWEAGERR - TRELEREE
FHBRARIETIEESEEE -

We provide pandemic prevention supplies to protect the
personal health of employees, and apply for vaccines to
the government emergency response department every
day according to the actual situation. Meanwhile, we
ensure the safety of the working area by timely disinfecting
public places. We provide employees with full pandemic
knowledge and training on prevention and control measures,
so as to improve their awareness of personal protection,
learn hygiene and health habits, and emergency response
measures for the prevention and control of the COVID-19
Pandemic.
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In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group's
Vietnam factories set up a contingency committee, led by
general manager as the chairman of the committee, who
is responsible for issuing notices and giving instructions
on a timely manner. Department heads of the factories
implement the corresponding emergency measures in
tandem. The Vietnam factories put forward the COVID-19
vaccination plan, and the employees had taken the shots in
accordance with the country and cities’ arrangement, so as
to ensure their health and safety.

N\
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. Supervise colleagues, customers and contractors to enter the site
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. Report the relevant information and data
/ IR E R R BUE

Distribute the pandemic prevention materials

Clean and disinfect comprehensively and thoroughly

Strengthen the sanitation and safety management of canteen

Strengthen the publicity of pandemic control measures

Measures against the COVID-19 Pandemic in the Vietnam Factories
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group as always remains committed to the new industrialization
of “high technology, low energy consumption, and
environment-friendly”, integrating green development
philosophy with corporate development strategies, rooting
the performance of environmental protection responsibilities
in daily operation and striving to build a “resource-saving
and environmentally-friendly” corporate brand. At the same
time, the Group actively responds to the global call for
“emission peak and carbon neutrality”, continues to invest
in energy saving and environmental protection to optimize
production equipment and processes, actively carry out
clean production, and synergistically promote high-quality
development and ecological environmental protection as
well as develop a full life cycle green circular economy.

The Group resolutely implements the environmental
protection laws and regulations of the countries and regions
where it operates, proactively engages a professional third
party to carry out environmental quality review. We also
actively accept environmental inspection, supervision and
management, and consciously accept supervision from the
public and media. We always apply environmental protection
philosophy in the development, design, manufacturing,
packaging, use and service of products, on the one hand to
make profits on the basis of providing consumers with more
excellent products and better services, on the other hand
to achieve the common prosperity goal of commercial value
and social value. Meanwhile, we focus on environmental
risk identification, continuously monitor and measure
environmental quality indicators, and establish preventive
measures and response plans for environmental risks and
opportunities to prevent pollution accidents and create a
pleasant and harmonious environment.

Water Resources Management

Improvement in Water Efficiency

The Group attaches great importance to water resources
protection and actively promotes water conservation
management. We strictly abide by the relevant laws and
regulations on water resources of the countries and regions
where we operate, such as the “Water Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and the “Water Resources Law of the
Socialist Republic of Vietnam”. Policies and systems, such
as the “Management System for Energy Conservation
and Environmental Protection” have also been formulated
and implemented to establish the scientific management
concept of water use for employees, strengthen the
reasonable use of water resources, and improve economic
benefits of water use. Our supply of water for production
and operation comes from the government, and there was
no interruption of supply or difficulty in obtaining other water
sources during the Reporting Period.
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We are committed to reducing the intensity of water use
and improving water recycling efficiency. In this regard,
we have set up a water conservation management team
to enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation
by thoroughly promoting water conservation policies
and regularly coordinating the effectiveness of water
conservation, and recognize and reward groups and
individuals who delivered results in water conservation
benefits and water conservation works. We have established
water conservation inspection system for dormitories,
canteens, and public areas to supervise employees to
consciously develop water conservation habits. A variety
of measures are adopted to bolster water efficiency, such
as installing the preshrinking condensate water recovery
device, which directly recovers the condensate water into
the central hot water tank and used for heating for the
electric boiler. To a certain extent, it replaces make-up water
with tap water, thereby saving water and energy, avoiding
certain wastewater consumption during the treatment of
soft water. We also replace ordinary faucets with low-flow
shower-type water-saving nozzles, collect rainwater for
green watering, conduct routine water pipe leakage checks,
and reuse wastewater for cleaning.

R EREREE
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Recycling Rainwater System in Vietnam Factories

HERmEL R B ERARKER

Wastewater Management

The Group values sewage treatment. We strictly abide by
the laws and regulations of the countries and regions where
we operate, such as the “Law of the People’'s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”, the
“Administrative Measures for the Licensing of Discharging
Urban Sewage into the Drainage Network” and the
“Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards” in China,
and the “Water Resources Law of the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam". Policies and systems, such as the "Wastewater
Management Policy” have also been formulated and
implemented to guide the classification and identification of
wastewater, standardize the sewage treatment process, and
ensure that the wastewater discharged meets the standard.
We regularly conduct wastewater treatment training for all
current employees to enrich their knowledge of wastewater
treatment and standardize their operation procedures for
wastewater treatment.
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The wastewater currently discharged by the Group is mainly
divided into industrial wastewater and domestic wastewater.
Industrial wastewater is generated from production and
craftsmanship process, and is recycled and reused after the
wastewater treated by equipment reaching the standard;
domestic wastewater is collected and then connected to the
municipal drainage network for treatment and discharged
into the water body after reaching the standard.

We built wastewater treatment plant in the Vietnam and
Shenzhen factories. The treated wastewater, of which the
water quality meets the requirements of the discharge
standards of both places (the “QCVN 40 2011/BTNMT"
in Vietnam and the “Integrated Wastewater Discharge
Standards” in China), will be reused in the production
process after physical, chemical and biological treatment;
the emission and treatment of wastewater generated from
the cleaning of mold and machine equipment is in line with
the “Wastewater Standard of Viethnam"” and the Grade 2
standard of the “DB44/26-2001 Discharge Limits of Water
Pollutants” of Guangdong. During the Reporting Period,
internal and external institutions conducted our wastewater
discharge monitoring and issued a statistical report on the
test results which showed that all monitoring results met
the requirements of the discharge standard. In April and
August 2021, we employed professional third-party testing
agency respectively to monitor our wastewater discharge to
ensure that discharge of harmful substances in wastewater
meet the requirements of discharge standards to reduce the
negative impact of production activities on the environment.
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Sewage Treatment Facility in Vietham Factories
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Waste Management

The Group disposes of wastes in the principle of reduction,
reuse and recycling. We strictly abide by the laws and
regulations of the countries and regions where we operate,
such as the “Rules of People’'s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste”, the “"Rules of Guangdong Province on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste"”, the “Guidelines for Preparing Management
Plans for Hazardous Waste Production Units” in China, the
"Hazardous Waste Management System of Vietnam” and
the “Solid Waste Management System of Vietnam"”. Our
policies and systems, such as the “Management System
for EHS Waste"”, the “Environmental Protection Policy” and
the “Chemical Safety Policy” have been formulated and
implemented to guide and standardize the classification
and treatment process of waste, avoid waste of resources,
prevent the risk of hazardous waste pollution and control the
negative impact on the environment. We have established
a plan to achieve zero landfill of 100% of production waste
in the Vietnam factories in 2022, and we signed a waste
treatment contract with the waste burning and energy
recovery unit to replace rag burning with renewable energy
to achieve the plan. As of the end of the Reporting Period,
the Group’s Vietnam factories have achieved a zero landfill
rate of 100% of their production waste with 53.90% of
wastes were collected by recyclers, 40.88% of wastes were
used for making bricks and tiles, and 5.22% of wastes were
converted into energy.

Our waste mainly includes production waste, domestic
waste and a small amount of hazardous waste. Non-
hazardous waste will be collected in categories, the
recyclable part of which will be handed over to qualified
resource regeneration companies for recycle and reuse
and the unrecyclable part will be stored together and then
cleared and treated collectively by municipal environmental
and hygiene services. Hazardous waste will be collected in
categories and then handed over to professional hazardous
waste treatment companies for harmless disposal. Improper
disposal must be eliminated so as not to cause pollution and
harm.

ii.
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Recycle cycle: every day
Solid wastes generated by
employees in daily life, such as
paper, plastic and other
domestic wastes.

BB : X
8 T7 R & A& ATEE R E R
Y AR - BREEEER -

Treatment cycle: every week
Wastes with direct or indirect
infection and other hazards
shall be handed over to
Shenzhen municipal medical
waste disposal units for
collectively centralized
treatment.

BEBEY : 58
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Production
waste

EEBER

Domestic
waste

DR

Hazardous
waste

feba R

Medical
waste

BEEY

Waste Disposal Plans

BRYEERT R

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # ¥ iRBEM(IZR)ERA A

Treatment cycle: every day
Production materials that
cannot be processed and
reused shall be consigned to a
third-party renewable resource
management company to
recycle and handle collectively.

BREBH X
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Treatment cycle: every
month

Wastes with corrosive,
inflammable, reactive or
infectious hazards generated
in the production process
shall be handed over to the
hazardous waste treatment
companies for collectively
treatment on a regular basis.
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Energy and Emissions Management

The Group attaches great importance to the management
of energy conservation and commits to adopting advanced
scientific technology and equipment to save natural
resources and increase energy efficiency. We strictly
abide by the laws and regulations of the countries and
regions where we operate, such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation”,
the “Management Measures for Industrial Energy
Conservation”, the “Law of the People’'s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”,
the “Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants”, the
“Emission Standard of Air Pollutions for Boiler” in PRC,
the “Ambient Air Quality Standards”, the “Regulations
of Guangdong Province on Conserving Energy” in PRC,
the “Environmental Protection Law of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam” and the “Environmental Quality
Standard of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”, and have
formulated and implemented policies and systems such
as the “Energy Policy”, the “"Management System for
Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection” and
the “Exhaust Management System”. Furthermore, the
Group conscientiously implements the energy policy of
“Energy Conservation, Emissions Reduction, Green and
Environmental Protection” to reduce energy consumption,
and achieve sustainable development. The Group has
formulated energy targets and indicators and urged
all factories to actively implement energy-saving and
consumption reduction projects, promoted the use of
renewable energy, and continuously improved the Group's
energy efficiency management ability. \WWe provide assurance
from the source. In addition to properly disposing various
types of wastes to reduce environmental pollution, we
continue to improve the efficiency of material use and
economic benefits through a number of measures to reduce
waste emissions.

ii.
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R 4 EREREE

We adopt measures that are
technically feasible, economically
reasonable as well as
environmentally and socially
acceptable, to reduce energy .
consumption, losses and pollutant Conservation
emissions and stop wastage in all @ﬁg
aspects from production to
consumption, and utilize energy
effectively and reasonably.

Energy

Environmental
PREREEAM FR[4T ~ 0E F518 - IRIR Protection
Mgl AZHERE - HEEREES BR
HEEB S EIRAREERERE R
BRMTEMPER - BILERE - 532
BRHFIALER -

We work to reduce energy
consumption and man-made carbon
dioxide emissions, increase energy

efficiency, greening and implement Emissions
carbon sinks to maintain the balance Reduction
of our ecological environment and ﬁﬂi
mitigate the energy climate crisis of 4
mankind.

PAKBEIROBRE - IRBAERTIAME -
BINARE - BiEHE  RIAR TR
TERRBEIR - PAMERS AR RBERIE - 4B
i NFHRERRR B -

Energy Policy
BER 5 &t

We comply with energy conserva-
tion laws, regulations and
standards, improve energy conser-
vation management systems,
formulate energy conservation
goals and policies, and implement
target responsibilities; given the
constraint of the aggregate global
energy capacity and the trend of
global warming, sustainable
development stands as our
inevitable solution.

TR ARA R AR - (2 2 AL
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We implement ecological civilization
and environmental education on
resources, stress on harmonious
coexistence with nature, promote
the education system by incorporat-
ing energy conservation, low carbon
and green development into our
core value, and enhance the code
of conduct and sense of responsibil-
ity for energy conservation and
emissions reduction of all staff.
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Achieve a 30% reduction in carbon
dioxide emissions intensity by
2030 with 2020 emissions

intensity as baseline
LA2020F HE R
FEII0%=F/EH

(o Reduce carbon dioxide emissions intenswtyN

by 5% through internal energy saving
programs
o BIBNEBEREETEIR A5 % — Al E
\__ZH J

('« Reduce carbon dioxide emissions imensity‘

by 6% through installment of solar power
generation equipment
o BBLEAGREEBRERD6% —AILHK
\ HmEmE y

(e Reduce carbon dioxide emissions intensitp
by 19% through procurement of clean
energy pursuant to the DPPA agreement

o BBEEBEDPPAGZEBE RN

\_ 19% — LI HER B R E )

R EREREE

Calculated based on production volume,
i.e. the unit of carbon dioxide emissions
intensity is COze per product sold.
—EEHH R B ER B E - EE
BUATEMEESHEHNER -

Energy Conservation and Carbon Reduction Goals

BRBERLER B AR

The Group continued to strengthen our investment in
energy conservation and emission reduction as well as
technological transformation. We have made corresponding
requirements for all energy conservation and environmental
protection-related projects of the factory and subdivided
them to various departments, including but not limited to
the management of lights and air conditioning control and
the publicity of energy conservation and environmental
protection. The control of light switches is managed by
area and supervised by designated person in charge as
arranged and different temperature is set for air conditioners
in different workshops and departments. Paperless office
is advocated, and the departments or individuals that
waste paper and save paper will be punished and rewarded
accordingly.

We invested in the installation of modern equipment such
as lifting robots, automated forklifts, forklift robots and
automatic package conveyor belt in part of our Vietnam
factories; and used lighting, air conditioning, air ventilation
system, boiler system, air compressor system and building
insulation with high energy conservation performance. \We
used drawing materials and building insulation materials with
high raw material utilization; installed solar panel system and
used clean energy; at the same time, the work productivity
has been increased and the energy consumption has been
reduced. We have achieved a practical energy-saving effect
after taking a series of measures, including optimizing the air
compressor to reduce 3.5% of the electricity consumption;
adjusting the air conditioner temperature to reduce 6% of
its electricity consumption; and maintaining, repairing and
cleaning the process of the cooling tower system to save
3.5% of its electricity consumption in total.
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We optimized the air compressor supply pressure and the
air conditioning control logic of the workshops, installed the
air conditioning temperature balancing system, improved
the motor of the sewing machines and overhauled the
compressed air leakage in the Shenzhen factories as a
whole, through which we have reduced 5% of the energy
intensity. Meanwhile, we completed the DBP energy-saving
project by renovating 170 sewing machines and adding
insulation panels to 21 ltalian hot-press machine, which is
expected to save a total of 8.79 tonnes of standard coal/year
and a total of 71,541 kWh/year.

We actively carry out energy audit projects. Among these
projects, the Vietnam factories commissioned a third
party to carry out energy audit projects, and the Shenzhen
factories participated in “the 13th Five-Year Plan” energy
audit review and energy conservation planning review of
key energy consumption units of industry and commerce
in Shenzhen conducted by Shenzhen Economic, Trade and
Information Commission, and the results of energy audit
review and energy conservation planning review were all
qualified. The results of the report are used to evaluate the
achievements of our energy measures adopted and lead
our future energy management. The Vietnam factories has
also commissioned a third-party to carry out energy audit
projects. The audit results show that the energy-saving
measures we have taken can effectively save energy
consumption.

While actively carrying out energy management measures,
we took continual reduction of our production exhaust
intensity as our long-term goal, with the baseline that
all exhaust are emitted in accordance with the emission
standards of the place where we operate. In addition,
we employed a professional third-party testing agency to
monitor our exhaust emissions to ensure that they meet the
requirements of emission standards to reduce the negative
impact of production activities on the environment.
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In the future, we will further strengthen the management R - BRI HE — R AEIRE A A
of energy use, develop guidelines and systems for energy EIR - BIERIEEEREFEMNER &
consumption reduction, implement energy-saving and E - BiEETRE R BERCEF AR B8R 5
emission-reduction transformation and upgrading plans and X FRBER(CERERE  THEE
schemes, use modern energy-saving equipment, maintain IR m e WIFEHEERT
machinery regularly to improve efficiency, and continue to TR EHEEER  BURE
promote energy consumption management and control, MR BF - EZHEZERE
strengthen green supply chain management, and establish [4x BT -

“green factory” that meet the requirements of government,
customers, and third-parties audit.

iv. Climate Change Responses iv. RIZELEL

The Group places great importance on tackling climate AN 68 B SRR B L P S R B AP PT F
change in our sustainable development, always pays BREMNEZMNE  BREIRERE
attention to the impact and risks of climate change on the fTHEEE2NTERER - BHRE
Group's operations, actively explores risks and opportunities RAES(CEERBR TS - =8
associated with climate change, and closely monitors and W ETEIEFHIEAREMEL R
plans to develop relevant response strategies to avoid iR m R B B AP A R R R SR
climate change related damage on our future development. BE -

In response to typhoon, rainstorms and high temperatures, HERRERREEBARR - KR
we have taken corresponding measures to reduce the TR EEEE T E o

impact on our operations.

Typhoons and rai High temperatures

meE Kk £F [
/ Formulate typhoon and rainstorm contingency plans B Install air conditioners in factories and dormitories
D HIERMERESTAR VSR R
J Respond to the government vacation requests B Distribute herbal tea and heatstroke prevention medicines
D ZREBNMBRER BRURR T B %m0

E‘ Carry out dredging, inspection and cleaning work J In case of sudden heat stroke, contact social healthcare
WEITEE - BB B T institution in a timely manner
" BRI - REHRUE

Responses to Extreme Climate Events

Bin R IREHEL

For the construction of new engineering projects, we have HEFITRBEER  RMYEER
studied and evaluated the background environment, and BT T EMEE - BIE T EE A
formulated plans to deal with and prevent climate change, EHRESE MEAALE AR
natural disasters, storms and floods, so as to improve our KB ETE) - LARR FH15 i (% FE 4
ability to cope with extreme climate. In order to improve the BE D o AR AR R 1% oK ROTE B
factories’ ability to deal with extreme weathers, especially H o BERERERR(AE)  FEREK=E
disastrous weathers such as heavy rain (waterlogging) and HRAAIBEE LB MA EELIRIEHE
thunderstorms, which may cause environmental and safety 2B - BIPIAMIEER I E T
issues to the chemical warehouse, we built pipeline systems MRKNEEBERSG  RERMH R
for collecting and discharging rainwater in the factories, and TEESRZMEBENKRE @ LAHE
have chosen to build the factories with reinforced concrete RAEEHRKE - oKk - JEREE -
above the foundations of the areas to ensure that the BMPELERY  EimERXR
factories can withstand natural disasters, floods, cyclones, A EMEEIEAETIIEEMNETIE
etc. We have also established inspection teams to inspect W o

and monitor the progress of ongoing construction projects
when facing extreme weather conditions.
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Environmental Culture Building

With high ethical standards and a strong sense of social
responsibility in place, the Group is committed to promoting
the sustainable development of corporate economy
and society by minimizing the impacts on the natural
environment caused by its production and operation
activities, in a bid to protect the existing environment and
leave abundant natural resources and beautiful earth scenery
for future generations. We undertake to maintain our
environmental credit, adhere to the concept of honesty and
integrity throughout our production and operation activities,
continue to strengthen environmental management and
resolutely resist behaviors that may have a material adverse
impact on the environment while pursuing business
development. We firmly develop environmental awareness,
carry out the promotion of environmental education,
advocate scientific development concept and strengthen
corporate culture, and earnestly shoulder the social
responsibility for environmental protection.

The Group's impact on the environment mainly includes
the effects on the air, water and land environments due to
transportation, loading and unloading, production, packaging,
maintenance and cooking. We strictly comply with relevant
laws and regulations, implement environmental impact
assessment when applicable, and in accordance with the
provisions of the government agencies to obtain approval.
We regularly maintain and repair office supplies to extend
their service life and avoid unnecessary wastage. We
post environmental labels to remind employees of energy
conservation and emissions reduction, creating a positive
atmosphere for environmental protection in the work that
needs only little effort. We provide various training and
“Clear Your Plate” campaign to boost our employees’
perception of green concept. We encourage employees
to propose environmentally-friendly ideas and reward
the person or department that have put forward viable
solutions, in an effort to enhance their environmental
interaction and participation. We actively participate in
the "Ecological Protection Competition”. By calling on
employees and their families to participate in “online
running”, online fun workshops and games, and join the
“marine protection team”, we help the public understand
the threat of plastic waste to marine life, and learn how to
become a marine protection soldier from their daily life.
In our Vietnam factories, we have incorporated greening
into the construction plan, and continuously amplify the
greening effect of our office area and production area
through greening maintenance, where the greening areas of
all factories have expanded to 20%. In addition, we actively
participate in environmental improvement activities in the
place where we operate, such as tree planting, garbage
collection, reduce the use of plastic and environmental-
themed art exhibition.
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Community Investment

Social Welfare Contribution

As a responsible social citizen, the Group adheres to the
core values of sustainability and unconditionally invests
resources for those in need in the society through materials,
charitable donations and voluntary services, and brings
positive influence to relevant parties.

Charity

The Group continuously contributes to the development
of the local economy in Vietnam and participated in HEZA
activities, celebrating the anniversary of the establishment of
the Shuichao Society (7k#3#t) and other. The organizations
we have donated to and assisted include: Hai Phong Finance
Department (&BHB1EEE), Hai Phong City Fatherland Front
CEB B 4R), Huyén Thay Nguyén Fatherland Front
(K REEEIFE4R), Shuichao Society of Huyén Thly Nguyén
(KREZZKFAL), Tinh HLrng Yén Fatherland Front Committee
(7 EHEESZE E€), Hai Phong Economic Management
Cmmmmm@%%ﬁﬁﬁi ®), etc.

We continue to visit and help children, elderly widows and
widowers in difficult families in Huyén Yén M¥, Vietnam,
provide them with continuous and effective care, and offer
them gifts such as moon cakes on celebration. We actively
donated money to help local people with financial difficulties
to build houses, providing them with practical help.

We strengthen publicity and actively mobilize employees’
enthusiasm to participate in charity activities. Through trade
union publicity, we encourage employees to participate
in the social fund launched by the Tinh Hung Yén Labor
Federation (H1Z774 24 BhEES &) to support people in central
provinces to overcome flood disasters, and encourage
employees to participate in voluntary blood donation
activities.

Caring for Disadvantaged Groups

The Group is committed to raising the awareness and
attention of all sectors of society to disadvantaged groups,
bringing continuous and effective social care to special
groups. In Fiscal 2022, the Group's Vietnam factories
donated mooncakes and cash of approximately 60,000,000
VND in total to Hai Phong Elderly Home, Hai Phong School
for the Blind, Hai Phong School for Deaf-Mutes, Hai Phong
Orphan Center, Hai Phong SOS Rescue Center and Blind
Person Association in Huyén Thiy Nguyén, Hai Phong City.
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We participated in the charity toothpick purchase activity of
the Blind Center in Huyén Thay Nguyén (KREE AR D),
purchased 2,000 packets of toothpicks totaling 20 million
VND, and donated the money to the Center for the Blind.

Taking Social Responsibility

For the goal to build a co-development, harmony and shared
community and to propel the sustainable development of
the operation site, we continue to contribute our strength
to the areas where the Group can make a difference and
benefit ourselves and social development, practicing the
mission of good corporate citizenship.

Rural Revitalization

In Fiscal 2022, the Group’s Shenzhen factories participated
in the social fund-raising activity of “Gathering Charity
Forces to Help Rural Revitalization” organized by Yutang
Street Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen, and donated
RMB100,000 to help the construction of infrastructure
projects in Wucun Town, Tianyang District, Tianlin County,
Bagui Yao Township and Lang Ping Town in Baise City,
Guangxi, which was well received and praised by the local
people, demonstrating our corporate social responsibility
and dedication to the people.
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Helping the impoverished towns in Guangxi

B ERERMPE

On June 24, 2021, the Group's Vietnam factories organized
the trade union and employees to participate in the “Love
for Neighbourhood” activity, and jointly purchased purple
potatoes for the people of Tinh Vinh Long. A total of 2 tons
of purple potatoes were purchased, with a total sum of
approximately 10,000,000 VND.
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Environmental Protection

The Group contributes to environmental protection
through warm actions within our capacities. We organized
employees in Hong Kong to participate in environmental
protection public welfare activities to implement the concept
of energy conservation, emission reduction and nature
caring. In Fiscal 2022, the Group donated HK$350,000 to
the Hong Kong Ocean Park Eco-Conservation Competition
(BEEFABRAERREETD),; we called on employees to
actively participate in Hong Kong Island Flag Day Activity of
the Ocean Park Conservation Fund Hong Kong, contributing
a total of 84 volunteer hours. We organized employees
in Vietnam factories to carry out tree planting activities
in Huyén Yén M§ to enhance employees’ environmental
awareness and strengthen environmental protection at local
community.

Education Support

The Group cares for the growth and future of students in
the communities around the operation site. For many years,
we provided assistance to students in terms of living needs
and education needs within our capacities, extending a
helping hand to the all-rounded development of youth. As
the president unit of Shenzhen Guangming New District
Charity Association, the Group participated in the Shuguang
Education Funding Activity for the seventh consecutive year.
In 21 December 2021, Shenzhen Guangming New District
Charity Association (JtBA¥f[E 2 & =) organized the 2021
Shuguang Education Funding Activity, in which the Group
has donated RMB50,000 for education aid.
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Assisting in Community Pandemic Prevention iii.
In order to assist in community pandemic prevention
in Fiscal 2022, the Group’s Shenzhen factories actively
responded to the call of Yutang Chamber of Commerce
in Guangming District, Shenzhen to help the donations in
the fight against the pandemic in Baise, Guangxi. We have
donated a total of 20,000 KN95 medical masks for fighting
against the pandemic in Baise, Guangxi. In addition, the
Group's Shenzhen factories has donated RMB200,000
through Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity
Association to support the fight against the pandemic in
Hong Kong.
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Donation of pandemic prevention materials
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The Group’s Vietnam factories also actively contributed to
the local pandemic prevention work in Vietnam by donating
pandemic prevention masks, tents, testing reagents and
other materials to Hai Phong, Huyén Thiuy Nguyén, and
Tinh Quang Ninh, Vietnam for more than ten times. The
organizations we have provided pandemic prevention
assistance include: People’s Committee of Tinh Quang
Yén (BZ AZ &), People's Committee of Dong Tridu (FFH
AZ &), People's Committee of Thanh phé Uéng Bi (EH
AZEg), Vietlet Hospital (#HE% ), Hai Phong Economic
Management Committee (BREEEIRE ), People’s
Committee of Huyén Thuy Nguyén UKREEAZ§), Hai
Phong Branch of the Chinese Chamber of Commerce (#7
gl H€), Mong Cai Medical Center (4722 & 1)), In
addition, the Vietnam factories also actively participated in
the charitable donation activities of pandemic prevention,
among which it donated vaccination fund of 5,000,000,000
VND for Hai Phong City Fatherland Front.
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Donation to support “COVID-19 Vaccination Fund”
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5. COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS . EZAEBE

. Stakeholder Communication Mechanism . RERABBEHES
The Group has set up a regular stakeholder communication AEBEEREESRER A BB
mechanism to safeguard and consolidate the relations of fl - NEENZEAESANEE

ERAEF BFREBERARENARE

mutual help and trust with our stakeholders and jointly

attain the sustainable development goal of the Group. We BEREBE - RMIFEUARBEED
continue to maintain communication with our stakeholders RERFEER AHGE  TRERA
in an open and prudent manner. Stakeholders’ concerns and WEAMERFERARMIFERET
demand are regarded as our key reference for sustainable ERRMEZESRE -

development.

Stakeholder
EZA

Employees
BT

Customers

5P

Communication Channel
BERE

Employee feedback box
Staff representative
Meetings and training
WOVO communication
platform

BTERREM
BTHRE
i

WOVOE AT 4

Company website and
official account of social
media platform
Interview, site visits and
email Customer service
hotline Client
communication executive

NEREL - R TFERE TR

E# - RISERNEH
B RIS EER
%ﬁ/ﬁﬁ_j’/\

Expectation and
Demand

Remuneration and
benefits assurance
Healthy working
environment

Career development and
promotion

Safeguard staff's
legitimate rights and
interests

Fri R aRRE
fERE THERE
BxBREST
REB TAERER

Product quality
Customer information
protection

Business integrity

mae
BEFERFRE
[EEE4E
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Our Response
A Ky [E

Offer competitive
remuneration and benefits
Pay attention to staff's
occupational health and
safety

Attach importance to staff
training and development
Improve people-oriented
protection system

RMBFF HH IR

& F
MIEITBERRELS
ERETHEEEE
e ASURMEEE R

Ensure product quality and
safety

Protect privacy information
Reasonable promotion and
marketing
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Stakeholder
A

Shareholders and
investors

BREREE

Government and
regulatory
authorities

B EEEE AR

Suppliers and
partners

HEREAER

Industrial
associations

(FE 34

Communication Channel
BiERE

General meeting

Annual report and interim
results report

Company website-Investor
relations

Investor meeting and
conference calls

Site visits and email

BRAE
FHUARPHRERS
RAEEHE— ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%’f&i}‘ﬂ
*Xé%au?ﬂz EE‘L Eui‘k
EMERNER

Corporate report and
announcement

Site visits
Government hotline

u:%#ﬁ’—t &/‘\/_t
EHAR R
B EE:

Site visits and email
Regular supplier meetings
PDM Supplier Management
System

?Efiﬂzf%%&%&@?
;T:_H,q'f/\ﬂgfﬁ = ﬂ?k
PODM#tEEEIE K4t

Seminars and workshops
Interview and email

Ere R TEY
[EE/ Y L

Expectation and
Demand

Financial results
Corporate sustainable
profit

Corporate transparency
Rights protection

BUpE
RAAFHE R
REERE

R IR

Compliance with laws
Make legal tax payments
Job creation

BITE
R
fRHEL

Cooperation and win-win
Open and fair

Achieve common
growth

BIEHRE
NGNS
BERARKE

Exchange industrial
experience
Promote industrial
advancement

TTHRERIIM
HEBTRES
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Our Response
MK e fE

Achieve profitability
Enhance corporate
sustainable profitability
Disclose daily information
Convene general meetings

BEHRARBEZ
REARFERATEN
HEAFEE
ABFRBREAZ

Compliance operation
Make tax payments
voluntarily

Create job opportunities

BRgE
T
BIEMEHE

Improve supplier
assessment and
communication system
Standardize the bidding
process of suppliers
Establish communication
platforms for suppliers

EEHERNEEAR

T 51
REH R RIRRE
rEftEmEsTa

Participate in industrial
forums
Enhance R&D capability
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Expectation and

Stakeholder Communication Channel Demand Our Response
ERA BiERE BB R A Ky [E
Local communities  Disadvantaged groups in Protect community Comprehensively practice
it community environment green operation
Volunteer group of Vietnam  Devote to charitable Undertake charitable
factories activities projects
Shenzhen Guangming New  Create harmonious Actively engage in joint
District Charity Association community environment community construction
YR REES) Facilitate community Actively engage in poverty
development alleviation
tIm AR EE IR [RIF FHEHEBGCES
t@ﬁlﬁ%l@ BHETE A= FEAmIAR
PR ESEE EEMRNRIRE TGRS Bt [ 5
fie ﬁl:?é‘)?é BB EKE
Stakeholder Communication Mechanism
RS A BB
Il. Material Subjects . EEHRE
The Group believes that ongoing communication helps us AEEBEHEERENEDHRMEA
keep abreast of the latest perspectives, and quickly respond REBRSRFHNRE  THEUNRRE
to the risks and opportunities arising from the changing JIE 71 BT 5 B R TH 45 7 2R A R B e A
market. Therefore, based on the materiality assessment BoREM ERNE—UFHENEE
results from last financial year and taking into account the MR HER - A WS MR EE
results from our communication with stakeholders during mAREBRE RIET T AHRE
the Reporting Period, we have determined the materiality EREFENEZHHRF  WASEMN
sequence of subjects for the Report and elaborated on A ARREREHBM - LAREB AR
them in a targeted manner herein, so as to preserve the EWEEENELDE -

substantiveness of our information disclosure in the Report.
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ESG Reporting Guide Strategies and Goals Risks and Opportunities Subjects among Industry Peers
ESG#&i55! BHREE 09587 3] B{THE

Selection of ESG Subjects
EFEESG=EE

Materiality Assessment Communication with Stakeholders

EEMFME @ ABE

Establishment of a Materiality
Matrix for ESG Subjects

HBEESGEEMREIER

Evaluation Process for ESG Material Subjects

ESGEEMZBEMNTMLARRE

FFIR4E2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 173



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R 4 ERERES

£l
i
e
=
iQ
A
o
+<
M
iy
3
[72]
j
()
S
(]
<
O
—=
1]
-
(7]
(=]
-
()
(2]
c
(1]
L=
o
Q
£

174

Important
E

e Energy saving, emissions
reduction and tackling climate
change
B B R BE B FE X SRR B b

e Staff remuneration and
benefits
8 T % B ER Az A

e \Water resources and sewage
treatment
KE RIS KEEER

e Protection of intellectual
property rights
HIBEREIRE

e Development of green and
environment-friendly products
R EIRIREmFAE

e \Waste treatment
EEEYIRRIE

e Prevention of child and forced
labor
By EE T Kogia258)

Less Important e Suppliers and labor
RES management performance

P IS HEmEAS TERRA
e Anti-discrimination and e Usage of resources

equal opportunity %5)?1@% . g
SH B ST ¢ Anti-corruption an
RIEARSF SRR compliance management
e Exhaust management S;igx;lg;ﬁghéﬁgg
BaE e Supply chain management
HIEsEER

e Reasonable promotion
and marketing
BIPHHE R B L B

Importance to Regina Miracle ¥ EHNEEM

A Materiality Matrix for ESG Subjects
ESGEEEEMEME

As shown in the results of materiality assessment, 9
very important subjects, 11 important subjects and 3 less
important subjects were identified in Fiscal 2022, among
which, community investment and caring staff were
included into very important subjects as compared with
last fiscal year. We have emphasized the disclosure of the
Group's efforts on very important subjects in this Report and
will regard the results of materiality assessment for Fiscal
2022 as the significant basis for our ESG work planning for
the fiscal year ahead.

RIBEZUFGERAR - 20220 F
HBEBIHOBEFFEERE  11HE
EHBEMIERERHE - APHERK
BUAREBTHER E—MEHMAASE
FEEHRE RN ARETEH
BREASERIFFEELAEMENS
71 WIA2022 FE BB RIE
AT —HFESGTFREINERKIE -
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APPENDIX: KPI INDEX TABLE Mtk : BBRRENISEED|IER
.  Subject Area A. Environment" . EEAREV
Fiscal
KPIs 202212
RRERER 202281 E 2
A1.1 Emissions Nitrogen oxides emissions Kilogram 490.83
A1.1 BEERY AEHEsE T
Sulfur oxide emissions Kilogram 1.10
maElBEsE T
Particles emissions Kilogram 34.89
FERYIBERE T
A1.2 Greenhouse gas Total greenhouse gas Tonne COLe 211,087.41
emissions and intensity emissions® M-S LREE
A12 BRERBHRREE RERBARES
Intensity of total greenhouse  Tonne CO,e/HK$'000 0.03
gas emissions®1 WS E s BT
BERBEBNEREY
Greenhouse gas emissions Tonne CO.e 3,182.90
(Scope 1)@ M-Stk EE
AEREHNE(FEE)e
Greenhouse gas emissions  Tonne CO,e 207,904.51
(Scope 2)@ WS tiREE

REREHNE (#E2)
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KPls
BRERER

A1.3 Hazardous wastes and
intensity“

A13 EEERYREEY

By hazardous waste
category

RiERERYERIED

Hazardous wastes produced
BEEEDELS

Intensity of hazardous
wastes produced?
BEEENELSTEY
The weight of waste
abluent, detergent and stain
remover
REESEHE - JBRE - 5EER
R

The weight of waste mineral
oil and waste containing
mineral ol

RV RSB REESE
The weight of waste
mercury-containing
fluorescent lamps and other
mercury-containing electric
light

FEE R NIEE R EMEES K
BHIRESE

The weight of waste battery
BEENES

The weight of waste
packages and containers
containing or contaminating
with toxic or infectious
hazardous waste
EHICHATMN - BRMER
FEYMHERDRY  ARES
The weight of materials
containing or contaminating
with toxic or infectious
hazardous waste
BEHICHATMN - BAMEER
FEMHIM I E S

The weight of clinical waste
BREEYES

The weight of waste ink and
ink cartridges
BERAKNB2REEE

The weight of waste glue
BERKkEE

The weight of other
hazardous waste
HiWEEEEMES

Tonne

158
Tonne/HK$'000
WE, R T IT

Tonne
U7

Tonne
U7

Tonne
U7

Tonne
158
Tonne
158

Tonne
U7

Tonne
158
Tonne
158

Tonne
158
Tonne
158
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Fiscal

20222
20228 F0@

767.73

0.0001

129.54

1.23

2.63

13.82

238.23

83.03

0.54

0.82

281.05

16.84
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Fiscal
KPls 202212
RRERER 202281 E 2
By management method  Other recovery (including Tonne 676.97
energy recovery) L7
RERER EAbBAE(BIEIRBAE)
Incineration (no energy Tonne 73.08
generated) g
KA R BREREE)
Chemical treatment Tonne 16.45
LRI U7
Recycling Tonne 1.23
EIllg 158
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Fiscal
KPIs 202212
BRERER 202281 E 2
A1.4 Non-hazardous wastes’® Non-hazardous wastes Tonne 17,089.71
Al4 EEREEYS produced 7}
BEFEZEVELS
Intensity of non-hazardous Tonne/HK$'000 0.002
waste produced @ a8, BT T
BEFERVELSTED
By non-hazardous waste  The weight of non- Tonne 7,289.43
category hazardous production waste W
REEEERYERNED BELERHES
The weight of waste Tonne 455.05
packaging plastic 158
EEARPEHRES
The weight of waste Tonne 2,358.47
packaging cardboard boxes 158
BEARMEES
The weight of food waste Tonne 259.84
B eatr iR E £ 158
The weight of general office  Tonne 693.76
waste U}
—RWNEEMES
The weight of textile waste  Tonne 3,547.07
MBERES g
The weight of wood waste Tonne 270.34
AMERES g
The weight of non- Tonne 1,239.43
hazardous metal 158
The weight of foam and Tonne 924.80
plastic waste 15
SRR ERES
The weight of plastic Tonne 51.52
buttons, waste plastic and 158
core plastic
BRR - BRI - IR
B8
By management method  Recycling Tonne 8,950.25
REBHAE S Bl g
Incineration (no energy Tonne 5,617.06
recovery) 158
RILCEBRERBE)
Other recovery (including Tonne 1,828.64
energy recovery) 158
Hith B4 (PIERRBE)
Landfill Tonne 693.76
HEIE 158
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KPIs
RRERER

A2.1 Energy consumption and

intensity®©?)

A2.1 BEREERZRE GO

A2.2 Water consumption and

intensity”

A2.2 FEKERBRED

A2.5 Packaging materials
A25 BHEMR

Total energy consumption
EENGR Y =a

Energy consumption
intensity

Non-renewable fuel (direct)
consumption

TR BAERE (B EE
Petrol consumption
FUREE

Diesel consumption
SmFES

Renewable fuel (direct)
purchase
ARAERE(ER)BE
Solar energy consumption
NCE o

Purchased energy (indirect)
consumption
BERR(EE)FEE
Electricity consumption
BIMEE

Total water consumption
wmFkE

Water consumption
intensity

FKEE

Municipal supplied water
consumption

BTk FEE

Reclaimed water
consumption
BIRAKEE

Packaging materials
consumption
BEMEHERE
Packaging plastic bags
consumption
BEREHERRS
Packaging cardboard boxes
consumption
BEREERE

'000 kWh
FHET R

'000 kWh/HK$'000
TETRE,BETT

‘000 kWh
FEF R

‘000 kWh
FHET R
‘000 kWh
FHET R
‘000 kWh
FHET R

‘000 kWh
TFETF R
‘000 kWh
FHET BB

‘000 kWh

FHEF R

Cubic metre

LK

Cubic metre/HK$'000
SR T IT

Cubic metre
5K
Cubic metre
5K
Tonne

18

Tonne
L7

Tonne
L7

Fiscal
20222
20228 F0@

256,216.04

0.03

12,668.43

720.67

11,947.76

1,775.86

1,775.86

241,771.75

241,771.75

1,662,016,00

0.19

1.5638,676.00

23,340.00

17,943.23

718.10

17,225.13
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Notes for Environmental KPIs:

(1

)

180

The time frame for disclosure of Environmental KPIs covers from 1 April
2021 to 31 March 2022.

The geographical scope for disclosure of Environmental KPIs covers the
production and office areas of Vietnam factories (A, B, C, D and E factory),
Vietnam Hung Yen factory and Shenzhen factories (A, B, C and D factory).

In Fiscal 2022, Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) come from
the combustion of fuel (petrol, diesel) in stationary sources and the
combustion of fuel (petrol, diesel) from our business vehicles. Greenhouse
gas emissions (Scope 2) come from the consumption of purchased
electricity. Except the calculation of the greenhouse gas emissions (Scope
1) according to the “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” (the “Appendix 2") of the "How to prepare an ESG Report?”
updated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May 2021, the
greenhouse gas emission factors of our Vietnam factories refer to the
IGES List of Grid Emission Factors published by the Institute of Global
Environmental Strategies and the greenhouse gas emission factors of our
Shenzhen factories refer to the “Baseline Emission Factors of China's
Regional Power Grids for Emission Reduction Projects in 2019 ({20194
ERBEIE B P B i B A EERBEEA T ) )" published by the Ministry
of Ecology and Environment of the People's Republic of China on 29
December 2020.

The scope of disclosure of hazardous waste of Shenzhen factories is
defined according to the "Directory of National Hazardous Waste" (2021
edition) ((EREMEDALE) (20214%)) published by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China, while the
scope of disclosure of hazardous waste of Vietnam factories is defined
according to the “Circular No.36/2015/TT-BTNMT" (2015 edition)
published by the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment of
Vietnam.

The management methods of waste are specified in accordance with the
waste treatment methods in the Appendix 2 of the Stock Exchange.

Energy heating value coefficient are determined under the “Guidelines
for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions in
Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial)” (( TEHM{TE MR = REHEM
BE T EREIREIER (5177) )) published by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China on 6 July 2015.

Greenhouse gas emissions, hazardous waste emissions, non-hazardous
waste emissions, energy consumption and water consumption intensity
are calculated based on the Group's Fiscal 2022 operating income in
HKD'000.

REMREMIERNN

(1

)

@3)

RN ARERIE SR RS EEE2021544
A1HZE202243A31H

REMBESEEREEMIERESRE MR
1% (AR - BRER - CIB ~ DR * ERR) -~ #im B
& NORYIBRE (AR ~ BIR ~ CIR - DR A E
MA@ o

20228 FERERBHNE (EEN ) RERE
TERME G ~ S0m)RE - RABETR(OS
o Sm) R B EREHEME (BE2) R
BINEBNHRER - 2EBFRBBMERIMER
RNAEIPR2021F5 AE# 2 (N EHRE - 4
GREARE 7 YW= - RIBRARE X
TIRERIESII(HE=)]) st ERAERE
P2 (8E1) 28 - MREEHEREREHEK
A+ 2% 2 Bk I8 5t 98 B (Institute of Global
Environmental Strategies) T % 2 IGES List of
Grid Emission Factors i3 31| & 8 = . B2 F
WEF2E R E AREME ERERITER 2020
F12A8298 T 2(2019F EREIEE R EE
EAEGERET)

FBEEEEEN  BRGERIZBHEA
REMBIRFREL T Z(BERERED S
£$)(2021h) RE : WEREBEEENZH
EHERRBUMmEARERAREHTE Y
{Circular No.36/2015/TT-BTNMT )»(2015kf ) 5
e

REE 2 BRIE T RS IR I8 — )RR
MR AN IR

BERABERBDEFREAREIMBEBERER
NELZEEMN2015F7A6 A TIZ 2( TEEAM
TELERAERBERZE S ZEREER (R
1)) e

BERBHN - BEERMEN  BEEEYD
BER - BEIRFEE RFEK B R A 202281 FF AN
EERWA (B BET ) ADEE -
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Il. Subject Area B. Social " . £EB.tEgne
B1 Employment B1 {E1F
B1.1 Number of workforce by gender, employment type, employment level, age Number
group and geographical region® (Unit: person)
A
B1.1 &5 - EEEL - ETRA  FRANRMEEINET ARE (Bfr : A)
Total number of workforce Total 45,385
ETHBAZ &5t
By gender Male 17,136
=MRIE D St
Female 28,249
7%
By employment type®© Full-time 45,385
REMEEILE DO £
Part-time N
S
Internship -
EEE
By employment level Senior management 192
RETEAE S SRERE
Middle management 11,910
PRERE
Rank and file 33,283
TimAB
By age group Below 30 years old 22,208
REHRMAERE D 30 AT
30 to 50 years old 22,778
305%ZE505%
Above 50 years old 399
50B%A £
By geographical region® Mainland China 6,211
i@ E 0o R B A i
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 291
of China
FREE MR R RITTI R
Vietnam 38,883
fitdEa)
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Monthly employee
turnover rate

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region(? (Unit: %)
BEBIMRKEEZR
B1.2 &5l - FHHBIREEE S E TRk R0 (BE{y © %)
Total employee turnover rate 2.31
BTI&RALEE
By gender Male 2.85
= RIE D S
Female 1.93
i
By age group Below 30 years old 2.88
REFBREREI D 30BRA T
30 to 50 years old 1.63
3055 2505%
Above 50 years old 2.05
50BRA £
By geographical region‘ Mainland China 1.95
=i Bl D0 FEI A
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China 1.12
AR R R TIE
Vietnam 2.37
i
B2 Health and Safety B2 @EEHETS
Number of Rate of
work-related work-related
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in fatalities fatalities
each of the past three years (Unit: person) (Unit: %o)
HIEERKN HIEERN
B2.1 BE=FEITHHAB K LR T AB(EMN: A) FRTHR(EN : %o)
Fiscal 2022 - -
202281 4F
Fiscal 2021 - -
2021814
Fiscal 2020 - -
202081 4F
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B2.2 Lost days due to work injury

B22 EI{EEATI/ERE

Total
#et

B3 Development and Training''?

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and

employee level

B3.1 RMFIRERBRBSWZIETES L

By gender
MRIE D

By employment level
RETBARAE S

Male

B

Female

pegi

Senior management
RREEE

Middle management
FRERE

Rank and file
LTBAB

B3 RRERIZ2

Percentage of
employees trained
(Unit: %)
FIETHSLE
(MY : %)

38.17

61.83

0.18

25.40

74.42

Lost days due to
work injury

(Unit: day)
ET{EEKN
TEHB(EN : X)

2,506

Number of
employees trained
(Unit: person)
ZIETAH

(BBfx : A)

17,270
27,980

82
11,493

33,675
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Average
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by training hours Training hours
gender and employee level (Unit: hours/person) (Unit: hours)
19 3R & =3I
B3.2 RMFIRERERE S - BAEITH N FITREE (BEf : IEEA) (BE{y : /NEF)
Average training hours of 18.06 819,779
employees
BT FHZIRE
By gender Male 17.47 299,417
= RIE D S
Female 18.42 520,362
i
By employment level Senior management 4.22 811
RETHAE S SRERE
Middle management 16.08 191,538
FARERE
Rank and file 18.85 627,430
TmAR
B5 Supply Chain Management!('3 B5 (HAEfEEEE3)
Percentage of the Number of
Total Number Suppliers
(Unit: %) (Unit: supplier)
fh#8LE HEFEE
(BB : %) (BE{¥ @ X)
Total 100.00 1,013
e
Mainland China 63.67 645
AR RE
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions 18.46 187
AREN R
Southeast Asia regions 11.55 117
R
Europe and US regions 2.96 30
HESz
Japan and South Korea regions 2.86 29
A vE &
Others 0.50 5
E b=
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B6 Product Responsibility

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons

B6.1 EERCEXERAEHE

B6 EREMF

Percentage of
products sold or
shipped subject to
recalls for safety
and health reasons
(measured at

number)

(Unit: %)
Hz2EEREEH
mARKNEE
(REERX)ERN
B (U#Es)

Number of
products subject
to recalls for
safety and
health reasons
(Unit: piece)

ERZZERREER
MmARWERNHE

ZRHEEREEMMARWRNE D
Total
e
Shenzhen factories
Y[R
Vietnam factories
Number of
products
B6.2 Number of products and related
services related complaints complaints
received and how they are dealt received
with (Unit: piece)
EEENER
B6.2 HEEBENEMK IR B
RIS IRER BB & EE 75 3 (v : #)
Total 16
EoH
Shenzhen factories 2
sl
Vietnam factories 14

7L e R [

Number of
services related
complaints
received

(Unit: piece)
EEBE N RE
IR B

(BEfu @ )

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

(BT : %)

Average
response time
for customer
complaints!’3
(Unit: minute)
EERFTS
B FE B R 02
(EEfy : 28E)

99.31
60.00

120.00

(Bfx : #)

Resolution rate
of customers
complaint
(Unit: %)
EFRF

iR R

(BB : %)

100

100

100
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B7

Anti-corruption

B7 KES

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Group or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the

cases

B7.1 REBRPAHAEERRE TR
WEBENWETHRARGNEE RFAER
Total

wet

B7.3 Anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff

B7.3 mEERE T RHNRETEI
Total

st

B8

Community Investment

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area

B8.2 EEXERERE HER
Total
#et

Notes for Social KPls:

8)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

186

Unless otherwise expressed, the statistics on the number of workforce
encompass all employees of the Group’s Shenzhen factories, Vietnam
factories, and functional departments in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's staff are full-time employees.

Turnover rate is calculated by dividing the number of employees who
left in Fiscal 2022 by the sum of the number of employees who left
and number of employees at the end of the Reporting Period. Monthly
turnover rate is calculated by dividing annual turnover rate by 12.

Unless otherwise expressed, the number of workforce by geographical
region is counted according to staff’s actual working place.

The training statistics encompass all employees of the Group’s Shenzhen
factories, Vietnam factories and functional departments in Hong Kong.

The average response time for customer complaints is the number of
the products and services related complaints of Shenzhen and Vietnam
factories and average response time of products and services related
complaints at respective factories dividing by the total number of products
and services related complaints received.

B8

Number of cases
(Unit: case)
REHAE

(BE{v : )

Training hours
(Unit: hour)
boE 53

(BEfy : /DEF)

1,626

HERE

Cash donation

(Unit: HK$'000)
BEER

(BBfy : B%T )
3,949.00

M B RIRARIRIRHA

8

(12)

(13)

BRI - B TA#GBEA/REERY
BE ~ BEEE R E BRI AR T -

WEHE AEEETHRAERET -

% 5 7 2 b 5 AR5 202284 4 B B B T 5 I
SRR B T BB R B TR I
B o BT L RIS O 2k b IR B 123
Tt -

BRI - IR EISME TABIRIRET
BER TR RETTARE

BIXJI#EATSERAEERIIME - B
FARE R BB R P ART -

B PR T B R R ARYIF R TR E
G0 0 AR 65 AR B4R 7 2 2 ER % TR 2E R R AR TS
FER R AR B0 15 8 8 5 8 O SR AR R DA B O 2
MR AR A M SR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 194 to
283, comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

BYRHERE

R K 18
BEVIRBER(ER)ERATARRE
(RHSESEMAZINERAR)

EZR

EMPEETTHNAR

BB () BR AR (A TEREIER
A RHEMBARATHBI EEE ) 5IH
RE194E283E MR A B HRE - B

o 202263 A3NHMGABERRBR
HEZBILFENGERER
HEZB I FENGATEWEEE
o HEZBILFEMNGAEEEHEK

e HEZRULFENGEARSMRER
)52

REMBmERWME  BRI2EHHK
BREAGAER -
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BYRHENRE

OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision for
inventories.

ERw

EPHWER

BMRE  ZERAVBREERERSS
AN A BMARCEBMIEREELNDEE M
FEMRET BHEER2022F3A31HH
AR REREZA L FENGEAH
BRBEMFERERE  WEBREA(AR
IV B8 45 T 2 A o

RRHOER

BPERETESHAGROHC(ERET
BEADEITER - RIEZFEATAENR
FEEARSRBEN A E A MBS IwRA
EOREIR D P IEE— SRt -

HFIRE - BHFIMESNEGEETE R
EE SR FINETE R RHER -

B

RIEEE GRS RMAA(EE DTSR
SADCATERE PR - HABZR &F
C WEEITTAIFEMBEREREE -

FREEITEER

RESFEERERMNEXHE - BR
BAHMGAVBREANBEARREENS
H o BERHEAERMETBEBRAMBR
REHABRBETRIEN  HATSYHE
LEREHEBFNESR -

BAEREFPREANBEREAFRATE
tRERE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Key Audit Matter

BYRHERE

FERETEE )

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HMREIER

Provision for inventories

FERHE

Refer to Note 18 “Inventories” and Note 4(a) “Critical
Accounting estimates and judgements” to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2022, the Group held inventories of
HK$1,571,612,000 and the provision for obsolete
or slow moving inventories was HK$2,951,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management assesses the provision for obsolete or
slow moving inventories at each period end based
on their consideration of obsolescence and the net
realisable value of inventories. The determination of
estimated selling price less cost to sell requires the
use of significant judgement and estimates, including
consideration of condition of products, latest selling
price, expectation of future sales orders and market
trends and customer demands.

S A RS HREM 18 & R A E B R
5 R A -

20223 A31H - BEEBEIFANTFEAEK1,571,612,000
TC » BRE SN S A7 152,951,0007T © TF SR K
AT IR R EM A ERER R A SRR IR

EEEEANHFERERERAMERFENZE NS
HIHRERERB B ENBREETIE - WERAEE
BIHER AT ZEREBARAE MG - BREREERMNR
RITHIEE  RRHEEFTENTEY  mBBBREFFR
HEE

AN ES N AEREBRRENSE

Our key procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventory included:

- Understanding, evaluating and validating the
key controls over management’s estimation
of provision for inventories and assessing
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors;

- Assessing the reasonableness of provision for
inventories and evaluating the key assumptions
and estimates applied by management for
making such provision;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the net realisable
value of selected inventory items, by comparing
the carrying amount of inventory items against
its selling price during the year and subsequent
to the year end to identify inventories with
net realisable value lower than their carrying
amount;

BB ETE B URESOFH T ERBAIER SR ITRRR

BFef:

- TR FEERRERHEEREEMATERBNRER
IR - WRBE B T REEENRE R
BEA R E =K - FHEEARSERERAREA R

- MEFERENSEMLFEERERHEREA
PTERA B = B R R AR

- REAMETABLEEREMNREEEZEARFAR
FRENERE  BMEFERBEWAIERFEET
AR - ARSI #RFEENERTENFE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYRHENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) Eﬁﬁ%%‘l‘%ﬁ(%)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAREEE RANET MR EERETEE
We focused on this area due to the significance of ~ TesTing, on ? Sam.ple. basis, .the accurapy of the
the balance, significant management judgement and ageing profile of individual inventory items by
estimates involved in determining the provision for checking to the supporting documents such as
obsolete or slow moving inventories. goods receipt notes; and

- Testing, on a sample basis, long aged inventory
for subsequent sales or usage after year
end and reperforming the calculation for the
provision.

In addition, we discussed with management
regarding the latest sales pattern in relation to price
and quantity for potential orders, and other factors,
including the market trends and customer demands.

We found that management’s assessment of the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventory was
supported by the available audit evidence.

BMFINLBEIHREHREARBERESFHEEFE —  FAWMESAHERFER B REER A EEIE
BRI RERNEE B A ANMER - TR - TARBERERKESEEAN &

- RAMETAHERRENTFENFRRIFEIER
EITHE - WEHFTEERYE o

AN - AP ERE IR B 5 i B BB FER] BB BB M
HERAUREMAR - BEMEEZREFPFK -

BRI E IR B R E SO T S R R A G
BT -

OTHER INFORMATION Hih5E

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other ERREFAHEMELSEE - AtEREE
information. The other information comprises all of the information BEMANMERER - BTRESEVER
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial TR EEMEZEA SRS

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not BMEGEMBRENERLNREEME
cover the other information and we do not express any form of B RMA T EZEEMEREREAER
assurance conclusion thereon. B EEFE AL o

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial HEERMEREMBRENTS - BRMOE
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, FREEEMESR  CUBEP - ZEHEM
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially FEERGHEEVBERRIBRMETARE
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our FETT BEER T EENEE S EUTFE
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be BASERRMAER o

materially misstated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

BYRHERE

HEEwm

ERBEMDHITHOINE - REMRSEAM
ERGFHEERHERRL - BAMIFBHREZE
B EHE - RPN B RRARS -

EERERZEERGEUHK
BRAEAENERE

BERRIEFAARREBEEESIMRSRM
RS E BRI 58 & R R B ECA RHERIDE
BERTHEBEEEMTBENEAMBEHRE -
W HERBRERAMBHRRNBEEIFE
A X B R Sl B AR T 48 2 Y EE K8 BR R P 7R
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HSECEERNER  URERFHELE
REFTER  RFIEFEEL EREBR
HIFILEE - KB EEBEROKEIER -
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T F PO HRRF S BA AR 1T 8 B B RS SRR At
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B iR 8 A& KRBAR A TS IR ATEH K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYRHENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

192 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  # ¥ 1R BIR(

&%%ﬁ%ﬁ% Bt B R &
R

ERRB(EBBIERDETE
o RAERTEETERTEXHE - R
BTHEEEREE - BT

o EAIANEYfl B A HREF Sk £ AR T B B4R
EWBBMERFEERERRANE
B RET RBITEG R AR ST
H C LA R TS B M E R B ETR
ERBRMERBER - AREGE
Twﬁ&%% HwiE BRERE
et - SRR ABIES 2 £ A&
[ N ﬁﬁl U E 0PN
FeR 2t 19 [ B2 = A R B ?F‘ﬁlia%&ﬁ =5

BRUA S K £E BR PRt ) BB

o THRBMEEABA RIS - ARE
EEEBRATHEE m%ﬁ&f EE
WI#T EEE NPT & RE
BERER

o« FEEFARAEHBRAORLEIER
ki R R B AT -

« UEERARAEESHEWNRY
AR 3R - RSB AT IR B A
B RERTFEREENERE
BB E ATRREE N T 8 B
Y BEEHBECLENEEEA
S - RRMRAFEEATES
MBI BB R b IR A
%%Eﬁﬁe%%ﬁﬁ¢WM%ﬁ

 BEABNBRETE - BIRME
BRI EREED BN EH
REREBERE E LA M%ﬁ
BB o AT RRE R R A8
B BEETEREEE -

ZR)ARDE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. \We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ek

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z202263 A318 [ F[E

2022 AOVA
2022F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T IT
Revenue A 5 8,346,728 5,974,290
Cost of sales SHERAR 7 (6,301,288) (4,736,337)
Gross profit EF 2,045,440 1,237,953
Other income HAang A 6 25,861 48,065
Distribution and selling expenses SR IHE R 7 (180,767) (139,494)
General and administrative expenses — MR RITE X 7 (817,699) (630,903)
Research and development costs SR AR 7 (253,003) (199,968)
Other operating expenses Hih& 255 7 (61,085) (49,738)
Operating profit R 758,747 265,915
Finance income EUE AN 9 1,767 1,826
Finance costs R IDWIN 9 (149,135) (123,556)
Finance costs, net SRR AN 5E (147,368) (121,730)
Share of net profit of an associate FRERE AR
accounted for using the equity method —Faﬁﬂéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁj,_i@_ﬁk_lj ___________ 1 7 _______________ 6141 _____________ 2515
Profit before income tax BRET BB ADERI 617,520 146,700
Income tax expenses FriSEifsZ 1 (96,826) (21,185)
Profit for the year attributable to FRAEQATEEA
owners of the Company PEAR T 520,694 125,515
Earnings per share for profit AABEE AELET
attributable to owners of the HEREF
Company (expressed in HK cents (REREWLES)
per share)
— Basic and diluted —BEARNEE 12 425 10.3
The above consolidated income statement should be read in AR e 7= FE EABE P M R — O BORE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & %£202243 318 IF /&

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Profit for the year FREF 520,694 12515115

Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Ht2EKWA (EE) :
Items that have been reclassified or may =& #7548t i )R A 1£

be subsequently reclassified to profit B EEEm
or loss EH
Currency translation differences EEiRE R 188,149 66,633
Exchange reserve released upon disposal H&ME R A& E(E
of subsidiaries HNERE R 35 (649) =
Fair value (loss)/gain on insurance policy {RERENFE
investments (B518) Mz 16 (139) 8,377
Fair value change on trade receivables BAFERFAEMEE
carried at fair value through other W AZIBREE S IR
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") RN EES (19,484) (16,506)
Reclassification of trade receivables at RHEEEFIEATE
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests FAHMEEWAR
and charges upon disposals B SRR
BHOBERENE
NEFH 19,344 17,311
Other comprehensive income for FREMEEBA
the year, net of tax (B HRBIE) 187,221 75,815
Total comprehensive income AATEEAELER
attributable to owners of PNt
the Company 707,915 201,330
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income Filisrs 2R R BRI —(F6IE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARER

As at 31 March 2022 7202243 H31H

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T T T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R MK 13 4,537,707 4,674,481
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 481,586 463,105
Intangible assets B EE 15 37,459 43,663
Insurance policy investments REEIRE 16 201,935 190,359
Investment in an associate R—fEEE R R E 17 14,406 11,715
Deposits and prepayments e R¥ENFIE 20 348,443 111,255
Deferred income tax assets ELEFTSIREE 25 39,260 17,296
5,660,796 5,611,874
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 1,568,661 1,245,629
Trade receivables 2 5 EINERR 19 1,146,208 1,093,022
Deposits, prepayments and other e BARER
receivables H b pE Y 5 E 20 42,765 48,115
Tax recoverable Al [ R IE 3,312 3,510
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHISRITE 21 3,000 6,906
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIREEED 21 995,030 827,980
e eeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeieneeieeeceeieeiceececcececiieeceooo.. SRR 3,758,976 - 3,225,162
Total assets EEHAE 9,419,772 8,737,036
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the Z&2QTHEE AEGER
Company
Share capital A% A 22 95,247 95,247
Reserves L 23 3,541,010 2,975,108
Total equity AR 3,636,257 3,070,355

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in Filitr s BEBEREEBEHT—ORE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARR

As at 31 March 2022 7202263 H31H

2022 2021
20224F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings B 24 3,401,989 3,192,407
Other payables H{th e3R8 27 25,447 24,155
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 86,265 78,165
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEASHEE 25 30,257 22,162
3,543,958 3,316,889
Current liabilities FREBaE
Trade payables B SN 26 536,270 424,758
Accruals and other payables FET & L B pE(~ ThIE 27 683,988 671,267
Lease liabilities HEBE 14 60,740 68,598
Borrowings B 24 862,071 1,176,484
Current income tax liabilities BIHAFTISTHaE 96,488 8,685
. 2,239,557 : 2,349,792
_Total liabilites =~ ff#® 5783515 ! 5,666,681
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHEE 9,419,772 8,737,036

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in bR A EE B SR EAREN M s — FEE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 194 to 283 were F194E 283 B MR A IS RERE 1K 2022456
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2022 and were A2 ESES I EWTREKES -
signed on its behalf.

Hung Yau Lit Antony Yiu
Atk PhEER
Chairman Director
FiE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z202263 A318 [ F[E

Attributable to owners
of the Company
RATER AEML

Share capital
&S

HK$'000
BT T

Reserves

HK$'000
BT

Total
] ot
HK$'000
BT I

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

198

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ iR (IZR)ERA A

As at 1 April 2020 A2020%F481H 2,822,748 2,917,995
Profit for the year FRER - 125,515 125,515
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HMt2EWKWA ~(EiE)
Currency translation differences B E =R - 66,633 66,633
Fair value gain on insurance policy REREN A ERE
investments - 8,377 8,377
Fair value change on trade receivables ZAFEE A LM EL
carried at FVOCI AFERRE 5 FE AR 3R
B A EEE - (16,506) (16,506)
Reclassification of trade receivables at A H &% EIRAT@EE A
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests Hihn2EWANE 5E
and charges upon disposals WERSEBETHES
RIBANENER - 17,311 17,311
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWABT
for the year - 201,330 201,330
Transaction with owners of HAQAREEARS
the Company
Dividends paid (Note 28) B S (FisE28) - (48,970) (48,970)
As at 31 March 2021 A202163H31H 95,247 2,975,108 3,070,355
Balance as at 1 April 2021 M2021F4 818 048 95,247 2,975,108 3,070,355
Profit for the year FRREF - 520,694 520,694
Other comprehensive income/(loss) E2EIA ~(EE)
Currency translation differences B E =5 - 188,149 188,149
Exchange reserve released upon HERH B A A&
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) SR {48 (PR 7E35) - (649) (649)
Fair value loss on insurance policy REREH N FEEIE
investments - (139) (139)
Fair value change on trade receivables &2 A T {EEH A KA 2 EU
carried at FVOCI AP ERR B 5 FE R 3R
A TES - (19,484) (19,484)
Reclassification of trade receivables at A &% ¥R AT EE A
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests HEmz2mBANE SE
and charges upon disposals RN REEETHEE
RIEF B KB - 19,344 19,344
Total comprehensive income FREEBAHLLE
for the year - 707,915 707,915
Transaction with owners of HEAARBEEARS
the Company
Dividends paid (Note 28) BB (F3E28) - (142,013) (142,013)
As at 31 March 2022 M2022%3H31H 95,247 3,541,010 3,636,257
The consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read AR ENR ERREMI M — O REE -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 & %£202243 318 IF /&

Cash flows from operating activities

RETDFERTRE

2022
20224

HK$'000
BT T

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT T

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

Cash generated from operations REZBHERE 29(a) 1,047,670 459,846
Profits tax paid BINT ST (22,576) (15,138)
Net cash generated from operating RESEE TSRS FEE

activities 1,025,094 444,708
Cash flows from investing activities & IEFEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  BELRE

equipment (153,065) (538,558)
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEBYZE - WEX

plant and equipment and intangible BEANELEER

assets TEff 7R (337,033) (87,733)
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WiEEREEE(EE

(Leasehold land and land use rights) Kot FRkE) (63,066) (15,773)
Prepayments for right-of-use assets CRAEEE(EELT R

(Leasehold land and land use rights) 3 s R A ) Y FE A FRIE (186) (16,495)
Purchase of intangible assets BEREE (3,195) (4,467)
Purchase of insurance policy HERERE

investments 16 (11,715) (51,872)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, H&HEBATRAERIE

net of cash disposed HREHERS 35 89,390 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEX

plant and equipment RABFTISRUE 29(b) 10,755 2,356
Investment in an associate, net R—EEE R FH

"B 3,450 (9,200)

Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank SR &H|ER1TFEK

deposits A () 3,906 (6,906)
Interest received BUF 1,767 1,826
Net cash used in investing activities KE TR F5E (458,992) (726,822)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z202263 A318 [ F[E

2022 2021
20224 20214F

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Cash flows from financing activities &S IEFMEESRE

Proceeds from new borrowings I E RSk 29(c) 3,040,982 2,434,385
Repayments of borrowings BEER 29(c) (3,145,813) (1,655,499)
Principal elements of lease payments ~ fE A S 25 29(c) (64,340) (92,766)
Interest paid BFE (149,128) (126,275)
Dividends paid BRE (142,013) (48,970)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mMEEE (R,

financing activities 53R & 558 (460,312) 510,875
Net increase in cash and cash RERREEEYIEM

equivalents pot ] 105,790 228,761
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#IE& KIREEEY

of the year 827,980 587,616
Effects of exchange rate changes on EXEHHREMREF

cash and cash equivalents Bynga 61,260 11,603

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the F£XRIHFE L RIMEEEY
year 21 995,030 827,980

The consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in AR MEREEEMNME—O5E -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 September 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company has its primary listing on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
the Company's registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
intimate wear, sports products, consumer electronics
components, bra pads and moulded products, footwear and
fabric masks.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$'000"), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of trade receivables carried at FVOCI and
insurance policy investments which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
when assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2.1
(a)

202

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amended standards for

the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1

April 2021:

HKFRS 16 (Amendment)  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The adoption of these amended standards did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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2.1
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESTHBER#ME @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)

New and amended standards, improvements, (b) FKEFEFARERB B FETRAENIEZTE
interpretation and accounting guideline not yet adopted A > 3 - 2R 2SS

by the Group

The following new and amended standards, improvements, THIERET RS ET R - B - R
interpretation and accounting guideline have been issued @SB EMG  BEHAREZ

that are not mandatory for financial year ended 31 March
2022 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

2022%3A31 A IEHIBFERbIER -
AN SE B 18 R IR RN

Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 April 2022
(Amendments)
FRBCET (BRI AR) BB EHREERI20185 £20205F 18 HAM 4 5 BuE 202254 A1H
HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 Narrow-scope Amendments 1 April 2022
(Amendments)
ERPHREEREIN  HEGT  KEHEEE] 2022F4R1H
HRE 165 RABGTTHEREITHR
CCHEN)
AG 5 (Revised) Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting 1 April 2022
for Common Control Combinations
BEHE5|E59% (&1EET) KigET e sHiEsl Eom A REEHI a0t E A 2022F4R1H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 April 2023
FRUM B IMELERB1795R REBREH 202354 A1H
HKFRS 17 (Amendment) Amendments to HKFRS 17 1 April 2023
ERPHREENFE175E(EFTAR) BV BIRELRE1TRVERT AR 2023F4A18
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 April 2023
BB GETERIE 1R (BETAR) BEDERRELIENE 2023F4A1H
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 April 2023
Statement 2 (Amendments)
EREHERB VR REENBRE  STBERE 2023F4A18
HRAEBREB 297 (BETAR)
HK Int 5 (2020) Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation 1 April 2023
of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
ERREFE5(20209) FEREEETE (2020F ) U EHRERN 25 — (EFRAY 202354 A1H
HAZREEEXNEHERN S
HKAS 8 (Amendment) Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 April 2023
B et RS8R (BFTR) SEHATER 2023F4A18
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities 1 April 2023
arising from a Single Transaction
BB ERE 125 (18R] A) B-RHEENEE KB BERELRE 2023F4A1H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

BRMBMEEAE10RLEEGET
AR B85 (BR] &)

These standards are not expected to have a material impact

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined

and its Associate or Joint Venture
REERABENTSEELECANEEHETIRA

HETE

TEHIRZ SR RN E BTSRRI E B

on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

TeHAKERAIBARARRRGEL
BEAFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions
provide evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Associate

204

Associate is the entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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2

2.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.2.3 Equity method

2.3

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy in Note
2.10.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

24

25
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

206

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), which is the Company's functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group's entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy), that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

24
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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(iii)

2.6

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building 5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

7% t0 10%

20% to 33%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Office furniture and fixtures

20% to 33%
20%

Computer equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

208

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings and
the costs of plant and machinery, installation testing and
other direct costs. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and are available for the intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.6 above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost represents upfront prepayments made
for the rights to use the land over the lease term of 41 to
45 years. Amortisation of leasehold land is expensed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Leasehold land and land use rights
are presented as right-of-use assets in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software license is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
The computer software acquired is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses if any. These costs are amortised over estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

2.11 Financial assets

(i)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at FVOCI or
through profit or loss, and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment carried at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

2.11
(ii)

(iii)

210

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, which is the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Debt instrument

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated income statement.

2.1
(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FESTBERBEW)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued) 211 eRMEE®)
(iii) Measurement (Continued) (i) FE(E)

Debt instrument (Continued)

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in “finance cost, net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in “other income and other
gains, net”.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
these financial assets, see Note 3.1(c)(ii) and Note 19 for
further details.

For deposits and other receivables from third parties, loss
allowance are measured as either 12-months expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then loss allowance is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

212

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are classified as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The trade receivables with the objective
to collect the contractual cash flows are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group,
whose contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, were factored to reputable financial
institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement
according to the Group’s daily fund management needs.
This trade receivable’s business model is therefore achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling of these
assets. Such trade receivables was therefore classified as
financial assets carried at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

See Note 2.11 for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(c)(ii)
for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in consolidated statement of
cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of
three months or less and bank overdrafts.

2.16 Restricted bank deposits
Restricted bank deposits represent guaranteed deposits
placed at designated bank accounts as reserves for
settling custom duties and cash collateral for the purchase
of certain property, plant and equipment and electricity.
Such restricted bank deposits would be released after full
settlement of the contracts.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade payables and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from consolidated balance sheet
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

214

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

(i)

(ii)

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted substantially enacted at the end
of the reporting date in the countries where the Group
or its associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

2.21
(ii)

(iii)

216

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets
or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts
for such allowances as tax credits, which means that the
allowance reduces income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for unclaimed
tax credits that are carried forward as deferred tax assets.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus entitlements

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on the key performance indicators for employees
and the business performance of the Group. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

2.22
(iv)

2.23

218

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange of these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier or the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells intimate wear, sports
products, consumer electronic components, bra pads
and moulded products, footwear and fabric masks in the
wholesale market. Revenue is recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the wholesaler at a point in time, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the wholesaler’'s acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. No element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with a short credit
term, which is consistent with market practice.

A receivable is recognised when the control of goods is
transferred as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Contract liability is recognised when payments are received
from customers in advance but the relevant performance
obligation has not been performed.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of finance
cost, net. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

2.26

2.27

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
values where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating to
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products are recognised as an
intangible asset when the technical feasibility and intention
of completing the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do so,
costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the
asset that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such development costs are recognised as an asset and
amortised on the straight-line basis to reflect the pattern
in which the related economic benefits are recognised.
Development costs that do not meet the above criteria
are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in
a subsequent period.

2.28 Leases

220

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to consolidated statement
of profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

° any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company'’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.30 Insurance policy investments

222

Insurance policy investments are non-derivative measured
at FVOCI. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose
of it within 12 months of the balance sheet date. When
the investments are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement. The relevant accounting
policy of these assets has been consistently applied.
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3.1

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, refundable deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade
and other payables and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in Note 32.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including cash flow interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge
the risk exposures. Risk management is regularly carried out
by the senior management of the Company under policies
approved by the executive directors of the Company.

Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for bank deposits, which earn low interest income.
The Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings with floating interest rates.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 24.

As at 31 March 2022, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would increase/decrease by
HK$32,660,000 (2021: HK$35,340,000), resulting from the
changes in finance costs of gross bank borrowings, net of
cash and cash equivalents.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Vietnam. Most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, Renminbi
("RMB"), Vietnamese Dong (“VND") and United States
Dollar ("US$"). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily through its sales, purchases and borrowing
transactions denominated in US$. The Group is presently
not using any forward exchange contract to hedge against
foreign exchange risk. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular reviews when
considered necessary and ensures that the net exposure
to foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable level from
time to time.

The directors considered the foreign exchange risk between
HK$ and US$ is minimal as US$ are reasonably stable with
HK$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System.

As at 31 March 2022, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would have
been approximately HK$7,004,000 higher/lower (2021:
HK$3,750,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposits held by the Group’s entities in
the PRC.

As at 31 March 2022, if VND had strengthened/weakened
by 2% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would have
been approximately HK$51,089,000 higher/lower (2021:
HK$51,326,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits and trade and other payables held
by the Group's entities in Vietnam.

3

3.1
(b)

BREREE @)

MBREREERE)

SHEmBE

AKETIBEEFE  PELKMEEE
B BEXRHOEBRS  BERE
BEEEUBE  ARB(TARKE]D)
HEE(BEE ) RET(TET])
B AEBMETBERXTAHENHEE -
REREEXSMAZIINERR - B
FRF 7N % 18] 3 48 {3 PR e SE HRSME & 49
HPNERR - AEBRABRELE
FRBENENEEINERR - WHE
R HMNE R FERFRAER
IKHE o

EER /B EE T 2 RHSNE R
RE - REAREBEEXRSIETET
RABBEERETE -

M2022%F3A318 @ AR IETH
8,/ B 1E5% * MATE HMEHRFR
B A|EZE2022F3A31BILFERN
sa F & ¥ N, R A #9785 #57,004,000 T
(20214 « #h0 "k 2> % # 3,750,000
) EERBEAEERTEEEAN
BEUETENEZRUNERERRE
MEWIE  ReERRSEEWAR
IR FIRITIF A E LU BEm
B o

M202293A318 - W& & IETH
B/ B2{E2% * MATAHMEERET
# o AEE20223A31 B EFERE
Fl& o0, w4974 # 51,089,000 7T
(20214F : & 0,@ 651,326,000
) FEAREASEN UM EE
BB UETTENE S ERERE
Hing 38 RE kB EED -
TREBRITFERARE FREMNER L
Hfth FEAT FREIE K kS IEm E
i °

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #2iREIFR(IZR)ER AT



3.1
(c)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit risk of
the Group mainly arises from cash and cash equivalents
(excluding cash on hand), restricted bank deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables. Management
has policies in place to monitor the exposures to these
credit risks on an on-going basis. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Risk management

As at 31 March 2022, cash and cash equivalents (excluding
cash on hand) and the restricted bank deposits of the
Group are all deposited or traded with major reputable
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Vietnam, which management believes are of high credit
quality. Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these financial institutions. The Group
has no policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with
appropriate credit history. The Group has not determined
any credit limit for customers, however, the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The major trade
debtors have no history of default.

The Group also uses trade receivables factoring facilities to
manage the credit risk of its trade debtors.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables; and
° Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand)
are also subject to the impairment requirement of HKFRS 9,
as all banks are rated with a high credit rating, the identified
impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on nature of customer
accounts, the shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The Group uses two categories for those trade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss allowance is
determined for each of those categories.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

For trade receivables relating to corporate customers,
which are listed entities, the expected credit losses with
satisfactory credit history, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. As at 31 March 2022, the balances
of such individually assessed trade receivables and the
corresponding loss allowance are HK$731,389,000 (2021:
HK$818,699,000) and HK$1,996,000 (2021: HK$3,503,000),
respectively.

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis
Other than those trade receivables which were assessed by
individual basis, expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively assessed for the risk of
default, taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and applying
the expected credit loss rates to the respective gross
carrying amounts of the trade receivables. The expected
credit loss rates are determined based on historical credit
losses and are adjusted by management's assessment
to reflect the current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2021 was determined as follows:

0-30 days

Current  past due

it

0H  0Z308

31 March 2022 HK$'000  HKS$'000
2022538318 A¥Tn  A¥Tn
Gross carrying amount EREE 243,164 82,626
Loss allowance BlakE (1,057)  (1,868)
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31-60 days
past due

31Z60H
HK$'000

BT

21,702

(598)

e RBRRME

BRERERE

MERBEEE)

EEER(E)

THEERE(E)

B ZEWIR (&)

FEREET » B2022F3 8318 K
20213 A3TAEBEREETWT ¢

Over

61-90 days 91-180days 180 days
pastdue  pastdue pastdue Total
612908 91Z180A #8180 @
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BTn  A%Tn  A%Tn  B%Tn
19,542 57,840 3294 428,168
(623) (5,056) (2151)  (11,353)

0-30 days
past due
0£30H
HK$'000

Current

Gl

31 March 2021 HK$'000

20153A318 AT AETR
Gross carrying amount FHEE 205,133 34,105
Loss allowance BEERE (879) (512)

31-60 days
past due
jali
31260H

(345)

Qver

180 days
past due
b
H#iR180H
HK$'000

61-90 days
past due
61290H
HK$'000

91-180 days
past due
91£180H

) ) ] ) JL
16,719 3,956 4423 284,667
(438) (646) (4,021) (6,841)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group.

Loss allowance on trade receivables are presented as net
loss allowance in the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Additions to the loss allowance were HK$3,005,000, relating
to trade receivables, during the year ended 31 March 2022
(For the year ended 31 March 2021: HK$721,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include deposits
and certain other receivables. These financial assets are
considered to be low credit risk primarily because historically
they had no history of default and the debtors had a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term.

The Group has assessed that the expected credit loss rate
of the deposits and other receivables is close to zero under
12 months expected losses method and thus no provision
was made during the year ended 31 March 2022 (For the
year ended 31 March 2021: Nil).

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from its operations and
bank borrowings. The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and have sufficient available
funding through committed credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors believe that the
Group has maintained sufficient general banking facilities
for financing capital commitment in the near future and for
working capital purposes.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$995,030,000 (2021: HK$827,980,000)
and trade receivables of HK$1,146,208,000 (2021:
HK$1,093,022,000) respectively, that are expected to readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The tables below analyse the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The analysis shows the cash outflow based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements, while
interest payments are computed using contractual rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBREEm®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEREBEZRE)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FEELEEE)
Within Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total
—FR —Z@E RELE AENE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BETT BETT BRI AR
As at 31 March 2022 12022%63A31A
Trade payables V) GET 536,270 - - - 536,270
Accruals and other payables EABRRAMENTA 408,558 = = 25,447 434,005
Lease liabilities HERE 59,936 28,494 48,679 30,680 167,789
Borrowings and bank interest payables  f& 3 R R R1THIE 958,662 1,575,299 1,876,130 44,197 4,454,288
1,963,426 1,603,793 1,924,809 100,324 5,592,352
As at 31 March 2021 12021%3A31A
Trade payables BHRNEH 424,758 - - - 424,758
Accruals and other payables [E:ER R EMEMNTE 457,442 - - 24,155 481,597
Lease liahilities HEARE 72,169 50,164 20,168 19,000 161,501
Borrowings and bank interest payables  f& 3% R R R1THIE 1,255,607 2,218,044 988,680 47,588 4,509,919
2,209,976 2,268,208 1,008,848 90,743 5,577,775
3.2 Fair value estimation 3.2 AF{EME
The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments TERIBESEAVE G BN GHERM
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 by level B ASIBEE L DT AEBENR2022F &
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair 2021331 BIZ AT EYENSRT
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a B ZZR ASEBEEATLEELEANS
fair value hierarchy as follows: BUAT=EZER :

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

AETISEAR B EL R ERTR

identical assets or liabilities (level 1). HIARFAREBE(E—R) °

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level o  FE—MIBEHN AREEEE(ED
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either TER) KBS (RERED)
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived BEREPNEELBERASE
from prices) (level 2). (M) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o  WIREEBERTESENEE
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) ok B ER A RS (BT AR
(level 3). AR (E=) °

FEHE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 229



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

3

3.2

230

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of the
Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value:

Level 1
EF—&

HK$’000
BETT

As at 31 March 2022 ®2022%3A31H
Assets BE
Insurance policy investments (REHKE =
Trade receivables carried at AT EFFAEMEE
FVOCI WAFIERRE 5 FEUL
R =

3 HKRRERE@

DHEMGET ()
TER2HNAEMEATEABNEE
REEORATERR

3.2

Total
#Et
HK$'000
BT T

Level 3
E=R
HK$'000
BT T

Level 2
-t
HK$’000
BT T

201,935 201,935

257,731 257,731

Level 1
F—
HK$'000
ST T
As at 31 March 2021 ®202153A31AR
Assets BE
Insurance policy investments (REHKE -
Trade receivables carried at A TEAAEMEE

FVOCI WA EREE 5 IR

B -

Total
5t
HK$'000
BT

Level 3
B=
HK$'000
BT

Level 2
E
HK$'000
BT

- 190,359

190,359

- 253,789 253,789

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between
level 1, level 2 and level 3.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange
or dealer, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

HE 2022 B2021E3A31 B ILE
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3.2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the investment is included in level 3.

For the fair value of insurance policy investments that is
not traded in an active market, the Chief Financial Officer
with the assistance of external valuer determined its fair
value based on the higher of cash surrender value and fair
value determinated by discounted cash flow model. The
significant unobservable inputs that determine the fair value
is cash surrender value, which is contractually agreed upon
entering into the insurance contract.

The fair value of trade receivables carried at FVOCI is
determined using discounted cash flow. Future cash flow is
estimated based on the contractual amount, discounted at
quoted factoring rate with banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2022, if quoted factoring rate had been
50 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, there would have been approximately HK$221,000
(2021: HK$172,000), unfavourably/favourably change on the
fair value of the trade receivables carried at FVOCI.

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HKRRERE@
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 AREMEFT@E)

Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

EZR2HITAE)

Insurance policy investments

RERE

2022 AOVA

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T T T

As at 1 April RA4A1H 190,359 130,110

Additions NE 11,715 51,872
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised to RE b 2 AR

other comprehensive income NFEER), M (139) 8,377

As at 31 March M3A31H 201,935 190,359

Trade receivables carried at FVOCI/

B FIEGTAENM 2 E KA S KA E

SIERSIR

2022 AOVA
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
As at 1 April RA4A1H 253,789 409,268
Additions NE 3,951,145 3,060,929
Disposals HeE (3,947,063) (3,217,213)
Fair value loss recognised to other REA2E AR
comprehensive income NHERE (19,484) (16,506)
Reclassification of trade receivables at A HER IR A FEFT AEAM
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests 2EWARNE 5 FEWBR
and charges upon disposals HEFHEERERNE R
M 19,344 17,311
As at 31 March M3A31H 257,731 253,789
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3.3

3.4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholder and benefits
for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholder, return capital to
shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had a gearing
ratio of 90% and 115%, respectively. This ratio is calculated
as net debts (represented by bank borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The gearing ratios
were as follows:

3

3.3

e RBRRME

BRERERE

EXEREE
AEBERBEANBERRREREE
FELENRD BB RRRE

[l o Jo 23 B4 ) 55 40 BE & B L A
& YRR REERNRBUREER
AR o RERHABRERRE - A%
B FBIRMBRRNKRESE @
BRBREEN  BITHMBRIHEERE
PO AMERS ©

AEBBREEABLRKERER o
202249 % 2021F3A318 » A&EE
BEABLHESBAEIO% K115% ° %
LR B EFE(BNRTEZRIEES &
REEBEYMRARSBENE - BE
aELENT

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Total borrowings (Note 24) feRsasE (MsE24) 4,264,060 4,368,891

Less: )

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) B MREEEY(H:E21) (995,030) (827,980)
Net debt BEFRE 3,269,030 3,540,911

Total equity A 3,636,257 3,070,355
Gearing ratio EESM[EL=E 90% 115%

The decrease in gearing ratio from 115% as at 31 March
2021 to 90% as at 31 March 2022 was primarily due to the
increase in the level of cash and cash equivalents held as at
the end of the year.

The Group has complied with all the relevant covenants
under the terms of borrowing facilities throughout the year
(2021: same).

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to

offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or

similar agreements as at 31 March 2022 (2021: same).
FE®E2021/22

EEABBENFH2021F3A3TEN
115% & ZE20229F3A31HHI90% -
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YKL o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

(a)

(b)

234

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less cost to sell.
These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. Write-downs of inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses these
estimates at each reporting date.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the loss allowances
for trade receivables based on the assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation which is based on the customer’s
past settlement pattern, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 3.1(c)(ii).

4
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(c)

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Vietnam. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different from previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

236

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM") that are used to make strategic decisions.
The CODM is identified as the Executive Directors of the
Company.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group on a
regular basis and reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment results, including
gross profit of the operating segments. Information relating
to segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as such
information is not regularly reported to the CODM. Other
information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner
consistent with that as adopted for the consolidated financial
statements contained herein.

Since 1 April 2021, the CODM assessed the performance
of the Group by reviewing the results of six reportable
segments, namely intimate wear, sports products,
consumer electronics components, bra pads and moulded
products, footwear, and fabric masks. This is different
from the segment composition in the year ended 31 March
2021. Such a change is to align with the updated internal
management and reporting structure. The outbreak of the
coronavirus disease 2019 has increased awareness of sports
and the growing popularity of the “work from home"” model,
resulting in continuous and resilient growth for consumer
electronics components and footwear.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

From 1 April 2021, the CODM reviews the Group’s financial
performance and allocates resources for two additional
reportable segments, for which the consumer electronics
components and footwear have been separated out from
the reportable segments identified in previous financial
year. The segment information of the comparative period
has been restated to conform to the current period
categorisation and presentation.

(i) Intimate wear — manufacturing and trading of bras, bra
tops, panties, shapewear and swimwear.

(i) Sports products — manufacturing and trading of sports
bras, sports leggings, sports shorts and sports tops.

(i)  Consumer electronics components — production and
trading of virtual reality (VR) headsets, keyboards,
laptops and tablet PC accessories.

(iv) Bra pads and moulded products — manufacturing and
trading of bra pads and other moulded products for
further processing.

(v)  Footwear — manufacturing and trading of shoes.

(vi)  Fabric masks — development, manufacturing, and
trading of fabric sports masks.

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group's chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SHER@
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2022 are HE2022F3A31BIEFER DB FEE
as follows: I

Year ended 31 March 2022
BE202E38NHLER

Bra pads
Consumer and

Intimate Sports electronics  moulded Fabric
wear  products components  products  Footwear masks Total
HE BRR
R E9ER ETRE BBER 85 HOE a3t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
E¥Tn BRI AT BRI EETn  A¥Tn BRTx

Total segment revenue AEHERA

[Recognised at a (ME-BEED)

point in time) 4,715,950 2,190,683 496,162 416,855 363,001 164,077 8,346,728
Gross profit/segment results  EF|/7 S8 1,189,190 513,923 125,033 97,866 83,316 36,112 2,045,440
Other income HflA 25,861
Distribution and selling PERHERT

expenses (180,767)
General and administrative  —#RTHES

expenses (817,699)
Research and development  FIEEA

costs (253,003)
Other operating expenses  EfiE 2R % (61,085)
Finance income BBMA 1,767
Finance costs BBA (149,135)

Share of net profit of an BRESEARN
associate accounted for fElE—fd

using equity method NS ] 6141
Profit before income tax BETER AR 617,520
Income tax expenses FERRT (96,826)
Profit for the period Ehyel 520,694
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 Z2EMER @
Other segment item included in the consolidated income FIAEZE2022F3A31 B IEFEMNGE
statement for the year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows: WEHRREM D LEE AT ¢

Year ended 31 March 2022
BEN2E3BNALER

Bra pads
Consumer and

Intimate Sports  electronics  moulded Fabric
wear  products components  products  Footwear masks Total
HE BfR
IR E9ER ETRA BEER BE #nE a3t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
BRI BETT BB BRI BYTT EETR BRI

Depreciation for property, st ABERANNE -
plantand equipmentand  ERRENER
right-of-use assets included  FHEEERE

in cost of sales 206,307 97,7198 38,181 28,390 16,604 7,865 395,145
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment and right-of- ME  BMELRBEULRTHEESR
use assets of HK$395,145,000 has been charged in “cost B T E B 5 395,145,000 T - B &
of sales”, HK$142,374,000 has been charged in “general 142,374,000 & 74 #521,477,0007C 2
and administrative expenses” and HK$21,477,000 has SRIEFATSEERA | - [— R EITEE
been charged in “research and development expenses” YRS -

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEER@
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2021 are HE2021F3A31BIEFER DB FEE
as follows: I

Year ended 31 March 2021 (As restated)
HE01F3A31H LERE (BE5)

Consumer Bra pads and
Intimate Sports  electronics moulded Fabric
wear products  components products  Footwear masks

HE
B MK EIER ETRH RBEy 2] Mg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK i HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00
‘ i ARTL T BETT BB T
(Unaudited i Unaudited)  (Unaudited) naudited)  (Unaudited
) ) ) ) ) 1)

Al

Total segment revenue AEHERA

(Recognised at a (RE-BEED)

point in time) 2886,006 1,596,354 291,392 264,379 286,543 649,616 5,974,290
Gross profit/segment results 7|/ A 5% 612602 298,885 69,664 58,651 60,747 137404 1,237,953
Other income EfhA 48,065
Distribution and selling PERBERT

expenses (139,494)
General and administrative ~ —fRR{TEF X

expenses (630,903)
Research and development  FFEEA

costs (199,968)
Other operating expenses ~ EftAA4EY (49,738)
Finance income BBIA 1,826
Finance costs BB (123,556)

Share of netprofitofan  EREFHENED
associate accounted for fElE—fd

using equity method N 2515
Profit before income tax BETEH AR 146,700
Income tax expenses FRHRR (21,185
Profit for the period il 125,515

240 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #%iREIR(EMR)E R A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 Z2EMER @
Other segment item included in the consolidated income FIAEZE2021F3A31 B IEFEMGZE
statement for the year ended 31 March 2021 is as follows: WEHRREM D LEE AT ¢

Year ended 31 March 2021 (As restated)
22021438315 1LE

Consumer Bra pads and
Intimate Sports  electronics moulded Fabric
wear products  components products  Footwear masks

g 1
B AR &g ETRA FER g8 Ik
HK$'000 i HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BT T T BETTL
naudited) naudited)  (Unaudited) audited)  (Unaudited)
5\ 3\ ) - 7

Z %)
Depreciation for property, i ARERAHNE -

plantand equipmentand  FRERRENRE

right-of-use assets included  FREEENE

in cost of sales 167,549 92,637 34,403 24,929 30,458 39,927 389,903
During the year ended 31 March 2021, depreciation for HE2021F3A3THLEFE M -
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of MEMEREARFEREEETESE
HK$389,903,000 has been charged in “cost of sales”, 389,903,000 7T * 7 # 134,992,000 7T
HK$134,992,000 has been charged in “general and K #17,381,0000t 2 0 BIET Al 5 E
administrative expenses” and HK$17,381,000 has been B T =R RATERF X | M [ B 38 5
charged in “research and development expenses” *]o

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

D ERE R ()

242

Revenue from external customers based on the destination
of the customers are as follows:

RIEES B A0 E 5 BNBES KA
o -

2022 AOVA

20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

United States = 4,324,706 2,753,532
The People’s Republic of China hEAREME([FE])

("The PRC") 1,354,181 979,214
Europe BOM 980,709 737,399
Japan B 493,467 573,585
South-east Asia (Note a) REgos(M5Ta) 267,801 280,382
South Asia (Note b) EEEE)) 138,528 47,461
Hong Kong ) 184,442 167,685
Korea B2 90,687 90,307
Other countries/regions (Note c) HEMmER R (M) 512,207 344,725

8,346,728 5,974,290

Note a: Includes Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, Philippines, Vietnam
and Thailand.

Note b: Includes Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and India.

Note c: Includes Canada, Taiwan, Australia and others.

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the Executive
Directors.

Non-current assets, other than deposits, deferred tax assets
and insurance policy investments, of the Group are located
in the following geographical areas:

Mitta: ®FESKAE - EBIERAEE - #i0

B JFEE - BEREH -
fiztb : BE&NA - HEWRREOE -

Midtc: ®EMEKR - B&  RMNREMD -
BRI EEHARTERREDHME
ESNHEENER  BMILEZ25D
MEES DR BRENDNT

AEEGERBEE (RS - BEHR
HAERREREINCRIAT IR R
i3 -

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

The PRC h 980,850 822,463
Hong Kong BB 59,473 60,050
Vietnam o] 4,369,826 4,416,360
5,410,149 5,298,873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s major customers, each of which
accounts for 10% or more of the Group's external revenue, is
as follows:

Customer Location Segments

EF g pik!

e RBRRME

DEBER ()

EBMHAREE10%3EA MR A
AEEETBEFOMMT -

2022 2021
2022 20216
HK$'000 HK$'000

Customer A ZEFA United States Intimate wear, sports
products and fabric

masks

Customer B EFB Japan = Intimate wear and sports

products

BETR BETT

=t
ERRAOE

1,514,810 762,487

BHRKR
EPFER 900,428 971,416

As a practical expedient, no disclosure was made for the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2022 (2021: Same), because
such performance obligations are part of contracts having an
original expected duration of one year or less.

OTHER INCOME

EERERAT ARNERBROEER
REBEHER —FHIATEHN—
o BUR202263 A3 A ES B E
WAREIT (R EARET) BROEE
M S BRI REE (20214 : 48

2021
20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Scrap sales income EERHEE WA 13,568 9,703
Government grants (Note)  BfF#Bh (KiEE) 9,366 35,131
Others Hih 2,927 3,231
25,861 48,065

Note: PRE -

The government grants obtained mainly represent technical innovation
subsidies from the PRC Government. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or other contingencies attaching to these grants.

P15 BT 4 B) = B I P BT R AU &
Bh o B BIX M B R R BT IR IT S A 2R
M-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BRMEBEIIHRX
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T T IT
Amortisation of intangible M EERE(MEE15)
assets (Note 15) 9,928 9,887
Auditor’s remuneration TZEETEN &
— Audit services —ZH R 3,255 3,015
— Non-audit services — RS 4,661 1,145
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEN
equipment (Note 13) RETE(FIFE13) 484,782 446,881
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEE
assets (Note 14) WeE(FFE14) 74,214 95,395
Bank charges RITE A 5,296 3,068
Consumables FEM 262,525 199,862
Cost of inventories sold (Note 18) BEEFEKA(H:E18) 3,050,049 2,140,905
Loss allowance of trade receivables B HRERIRR
(Note 19) B a4 (5E19) 3,005 721
Donations B 1,918 716
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) BB Y (HEs) 2,895,092 2,323,279
Restructuring costs (Note) EHAMKA(FFE) 61,085 49,738
Freight and transportation expenses BiENERMAYT 102,663 67,831
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HEYZE - E KX
equipment, net BAEERFE 5,808 1,857
Gain on modification and disposal of EELHEGHESE
right-of-use assets (Buildings) (EF) e (3,369) (1,622)

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HE&FHEEE
(Leasehold land and land use rights) (HELH X

T b AR ) s - (691)
Expense relating to short-term leases ARG HIHEH
(Note 14) FsZ (PisE14) 21,522 10,034
Utilities NARS 193,776 150,461
Others Eb 437,632 253,958
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEKA » DIERHEERS
selling expenses, general and —MRITERFAS « AR
administrative expenses, research LA R HL 45 v Al S 4B 88
and development costs and other
operating expenses 7,613,842 5,756,440
Note: The restructuring costs primarily include write-off of fixed assets Mz : SAKAEZRIEETEEMRLNBYE
of approximately HK$61,085,000 (2021: HK$9,640,000) and 61,085,0007T(20214F : 7#%9,640,000
termination benefits of HK$Nil (2021: HK$40,098,000) paid to LRI FRENGRBESEEY
employees and as a result of the reallocation of production capacity =0 (20214F : %% 40,098,0007T) -
and human resources between the PRC and Vietnam for the BT ERREE 20223 A31 HILFEH
year ended 31 March 2022 and are included in “other operating B R MiE Nt EE R A N EREH D
expenses” in the consolidated income statement. B WEt AfRE ez e [ b 48 & 5
]
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8

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8 EERABXX(EBRESH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) £)
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T SR IT
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T & - %% - JE4T o204 2,511,014 2,003,216
Retirement benefit costs — defined RIRR R —
contribution schemes (Note (a)) FEBRME B (M 5E () 252,959 211,893
Staff welfare and benefits BTRF &A= 131,119 108,170
2,895,092 2,323,279
Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution (a) EBARBEARAE—EFEERKETE
schemes
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to TEELHEREREREZ2 MBI R
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Bestal([EEesE]) BB
Scheme"), a defined contribution scheme managed by an ZRBBEIEFEATENERMKG
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group gl - RIFRESE - AEEREE
and its employees make monthly contributions to the BEXATAKREEB AR (EER®HE
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under AHEEEF)5% AT EVEL R o &
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group's SEREESENEARRLERAE
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap of #1,5007C @ BHZE e ERHRAS
HK$1,500 on monthly basis and thereafter contributions are YEE FEMEHR -
voluntary.
The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC and Vietnam are RN FIR ARB R PR A RIS
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme B BT 2B R B R B IR IR RE R A
operated by the local governments. The Group contributes EIMKE - NEBENBARIEES
a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’ EH—TFEENLHER  BRFEEHK
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual SN BERER I RARES IENRE
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the BRNAB#E—FEMT BREEENK
annual contributions. The state-managed retirement plans HEEEMRNEEN2HMRINE -

are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

Five highest paid individuals (b) BEHZESHFAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest FRAAEEREHEaHFALTBIERS
in the Group for the year include five (2021: five) directors (20215 : AB)ESE - HFHMRMHE
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in AR DT R BR -

Note 34.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

9 FINANCE COSTS, NET 9 BIEAAFERE
2022 AOVA
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T T IT
Finance income 0 TN
— interest income on bank deposits —RITIFF B WA 1,643 1,761
— other interest income —HFBUA 124 65
1,767 1,826
Finance costs BT AR
— interest expense on bank borrowings —R1T{EFF B X (122,970) (100,393)
- factoring interests and charges —REFERER (19,344) (17,311)
— interest expense on lease liabilites ~ —FEAEFE
(Note 14) Fs (PisE14) (6,538) (8,282)
— unwinding interest — [ F & (283) (289)
(149,135) (126,275)
Less: interest expenses capitalised on i : &@BKREERNERLH]
qualifying assets (Note) B (EE) = 2,719
__________________________________ (149,135) (123,556)
Finance costs, net BA TSR AN H 5B (147,368) (121,730)
Note: MizE -
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs REEERTERNMCERKNAEEHNERL
to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the ERFNANEEEFTEBOMETHFR X -
Group's borrowings during the year. For the year ended 31 March 2021, BZE2021F3A3BLFE  EXMLRREF
the capitalisation rate was 2.1% per annum. For the year ended 31 March 2.1% ° REE2022F 3 A31 B ILFEMEE AR
2022, no interest expense has been capitalised. LR B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 SUBSIDIARIES

10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2022:

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

AR S 3t B K
ERERRE

Registered
capital/issued
and fully paid

share capital

afEs
ERTRARRE

e RBRRME

B S 2 =]

TRAN2022F3A31HNEBHEA
E—_l :

Effective
interest
held (%)
JiEsd 1

i
(B2L)

Principal activities and
place of operation

BB

Directly held by the Company

ARAREERE

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited

HURBIR(ER)BERRA

Indirectly held by the Company

AAREERE

Regina Miracle International
(Group) Limited

HURER(GE)ERRA

Regina Miracle International
Limited
Y RBEIRAR DT

Honour First (Hong Kong) Limited
ER(EE)BRAR

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited
BRAZEARORYDER AT

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

ERERHS
BREERH

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

EB BREERARA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

ER BREMEARA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
EE  BREERA

The PRC, limited liability
company
FE - BREEAT

US$100
100%E7T

HK$5,000,000
#5,000,0007T

HK$100
#E1007T

HK$10,000
#10,0007C

HK$300,000,000
#£300,000,0007T

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

100%  Investment holding in the
100% British Virgin Islands
RRBEZEHSETREER
100%  Trading of brassieres and
100% panties, and sports
products in Hong Kong
REEBEERE R
MR R BB iR E
100%  Trading of bra pads and
100% moulded products in
Hong Kong
REZBEERN RIEEER
100%  Provision of sales agency
100% and information
technology services in
Hong Kong
REBREHERER
1= BRI AR
100%  Manufacturing of brassieres
100% and panties, and

functional sports products
in the PRC

FAFR B A EE O B R AR A R
Tt ER RE D

247



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

10 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

LA Lt 2
EEERRR

10

Registered
capital/issued
and fully paid

share capital

amER
BRTRARERE

B B A Bl ()

Effective
interest
held (%)
PRt B

i
(Bot)

Principal activities and
place of operation

BB

Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Limited
BORNRORINBERRA

Shenzhen Regina Miracle Medical
Technology Co., Ltd.
RYTHDRERRRBRAF

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited

EY R () AR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited

EY R () AR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd.

Regina Miracle International
HungYen Co., Ltd.

Regina Miracle Management
Limited
BY R ERERAT

248

The PRC, limited liability

company
HE - BREFAT

The PRC, limited liability

company
HE - BREFAT

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RBRLES -
BREERT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&% BREERAH

Vietnam, limited liability
company
- AREEAR

Vietnam, limited liability
company
M AREAEAR

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
R ABREAEATF

HK$20,000,000
7820,000,0007T

HK$10,660,500
78%10,660,5007T

US$1

[E

HK$10,000

#110,0007C

US$828,930,105
828,930,105% 7T

US$58,810,190
58,810,190% 7T

HK$1
BEIT

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ iR (IZR)ERA A

Manufacturing of bra pads
and moulded products in
the PRC

e B A EE AR R AR R E

Manufacturing of fabric
masks in the PRC
R BEERAE

Investment holding in the
British Virgin Islands
RRBRLZHSETIRERR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBETREER

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties, bra pads
and sports products in
Vietnam

R EE & A
it RS EEm

Manufacturing of semi-
finished goods in Vietnam

RUBRE LR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBETRERER



11

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2022, the Group
is eligible to nominate one Hong Kong incorporated entity
in the Group to be chargeable at the two-tiered profits
tax rates, whereby profits tax will be chargeable on the
first HK$2 million of assessable profits at 8.25% and
assessable profits above this threshold will be subject to a
rate of 16.5%. Hong Kong profits tax for other Hong Kong
incorporated entities in the Group has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 25% (2021: 25%) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau
of the PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises
engaged in research and development activities are entitled
to claim ranging from 150% to 175% of the research
and development expenses so incurred in a period as tax
deductible expenses in determining its tax assessable
profits for that period (“Super Deduction”). Certain PRC
subsidiaries have applied such Super Deduction during the
year.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2021:
20%). In accordance with the applicable tax regulations,
preferential tax rates and tax holidays will be granted to new
investment projects based on regulated encouraged sectors,
encouraged locations, and size of the projects.

Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. is subject
to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive years,
commencing from the first year of making revenue. In
addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full exemption from
corporate income tax for the first four years from the earlier
of (i) the year when profit is generated for the first time or
(ii) the fourth year of making revenue; and a 50% reduction
in corporate income tax for the next nine years, which is
offered by the Vietham Government and is stipulated in the
subsidiary’s investment license. The financial year ended 31
March 2018 was the first year of the full exemption period.
Starting from the current year ended 31 March 2022, Regina
Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd will be paying the
corporate income tax at a 5% reduced rate (with a 50%
reduction to its original 10% rate).

Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd. is entitled
to full exemption from corporate income tax for the first two
years from the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated
for the first time or (ii) the fourth year of making revenue;
and a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next
four years, which is offered by the Vietham Government
and is stipulated in the subsidiary’s investment license. The
current financial year ended 31 March 2022 is the first year
of the full exemption period.

e RBRRME

11 FISHAX

HE2021F K2022F3A31 HIEF
B AEERAEAEBRAEF R
BB AL B B IR FI 15 B0 /AR ) 1
oo mBEAE2BE BT E R R A
JHIEB.25% B R B FISH - HBiBZ
IR B FE ER T Vi ) 75 42 16.5% Ft
F o AEEBREMEBTMELELR
BB S I 1S B B IR (5 51 FE BR B0 4 1) LA
16.5% 81 Kt He s o

HE2022F3A3THILFE @ £&EH
FR IR B A B BE LR 525% (2021
& 25%) o

RAE P BB R A% 42 F P8 5 52008
FRAEMN—IBERE  REWHRES
By (b 3G M TE B T HARE B SR A BB
15z BB EENFERAZ N T150% 2
175% 3 [E R AR AR F0F R S ([
BIEIN]) - ETHEMBRARERNE
{5 R % R RB AT o

RBR RIBE OB R RZAR20%
(20214 : 20% ) M KGR DR FAIF
B RIBERMBER  BTHERE
BEMEEREREHBIRERE
EENTE  XEEMERIERREE
)—\'_‘E o

W RER (BmE)BRARIBEER
ABFREETAFEREREI10%
B o bON 0 BOESRF EFR)E
FEIW A ENEF (IR REEBE) B
BUFER > ZHBRAREEZERE
BMTEMSHR  TREBNLFAZE
EL0%EMBRESE  ZEIFHE
MUERFST  TRZWE QR
EFTAIFENETIH - 12201843 H31
BIEVMBREEAZHARPNEF -
AE 2202293 A31 B L FERE -
HERER (BE)BRARBIRESR
REB% N HEMBR(RRABE10%
TRERMER FRA50%) °

BOEESNEFHNEERAEN
F(UABREEARME)BEMT  Regina
Miracle International Hung Yen Co.,
Lid. B HBHARBADEMEN - &K
BINFRNFEBL0%LEMEBRRE
ZEEVEHBEABRNG T @ WRZ
MEABIMIRERT AT NRT A - K&
20223 A31 B LM BFRE RAEHEH
RHMESF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 11 FISFHRX e

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income ERFERERTPINRNTHEESEN
statement represents: T

2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$'000
BT

HK$'000
BT T

250

Current income tax BNERRTIS
— Hong Kong profits tax — EBEMNER 91,947 5,138
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EER 13,561 11,531
— Overseas income tax —BINTISRR 4,860 -
Over-provision in prior years PIBT EEBRERAE (107) (3,272)
Deferred income tax (Note 25) IEFEFTSHL (M FE25) (13,435) 7,788
Income tax expenses FTiSFiR 96,826 21,185

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group
companies as follows:

7N £% B R P A5 75% A1 ) B 50 7R £ 5K R
308 F 7 5 B 2 R M O A0 S 15 TR R
BHAEREENERNT

2022 AOVA
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before income tax Bk EFr 1S 75 B A1) 617,520 146,700
Tax calculated at domestic tax REARNEER AR ETFIR
rate applicable to profits BN EAERTIE
in respective jurisdictions 100,448 11,031
Tax effects of: M E
Income not subject to tax BERBEIA (288) (4,373)
Super deduction FRREH A (31,307) (21,253)
Expenses not deductible for taxation RN
purpose 33,947 30,350
Utilisation of previously SR AR B EE
unrecognised tax losses (4,854) -
Tax losses for which no deferred Wi FERIEEFT ST B EM
income tax asset was recognised HIBEE - 9,117
Tax effect of share of profit of D —REEE R REFE
an associate Bisseg (1,013) (415)
Over-provision in prior years RiBAFEREEE (107) (3,272)
Income tax expenses FrisfiF sz 96,826 21,185
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12
(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SRER
Basic (a) E&
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit SRERNBFIIZA N TEE AEL S
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted TR AF AR BT @A INEF 58
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. =tE o
2022 AOVA
20224 20214
Profit attributable to owners of RAEIHEA AFEMSEF
the Company (HK$'000) (BEEFIT) 520,694 125,515
Weighted average number of BRI R ME T EE(TR)
ordinary shares in issue ('000) 1,224,250 1,224,250
Basic earnings per share FRERZF (LFRBWLZE)
(expressed in HK cents per share) 42.5 10.3
Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March B E2022F 2021 F3A31 B IEF
2022 and 2021 are the same as the basic earnings per share B BRI EBTEEE S EmAR
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued. WEREERNENGREARRT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

252

13

Leasehold Plantand ~Office furniture  Computer Motor ~ Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  andfixtures  equipment vehicles i progress Total
HORAR

BF HENFEE  BRRAR ke H B it kRIR it
HK§000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
A8 BT AETT AT AT AT T AETT

Year ended 31 March 2021 HENNEIRNALEE
Opening net book amount EERFE 120731 127,141 1,390,468 187597 84,106 1261 44179 4611413
Addtions TE 98304 102,026 110225 21202 125171 1,758 133,306 485448
DisposalsWrite-off e /Hi - (9,609 (3931) [58) (249 - - (13853)
Transfer-nflout] #1/(1) 121,920 133413 1419 18830 3988 - {279,570) -
Depreciation i 69,322) (135,862 (139,586) (72,258) (35,383) [4.490) - (446,881)
Curency translation differences ~ E%AEEE (987) 16473 20,78 746 3 n (120 38,354
Closing net ook amount EREHTE 1407276 1381582 1380317 162,059 65,502 9950 677% 4674481

As at 31 March 2021 HAE3A3NA

Cost R 1507625 2161759 2310582 462,090 233505 41,102 2677% 7074398
Accumulated depreciation Ziths (190,249) (780,177 (930,265) (300,031 (168,003) (31,152) - (239987
Net book amount FmsE 1407276 1381582 1380317 162,059 65,502 9950 %677% 4674481

Year ended 31 March 2022 BEANEIANALER
Opening net book amount EEETE 1407216 1381582 1380317 162,099 65,502 9,950 %779 4674481
Addtions RE 21,193 51,905 163,985 25,384 14,268 4,893 54,583 336,831
DisposalsWite-off HE /i - (66,204) (10,294) (m) (317) (56) = (77,648)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-FIHELR - - - (8] (17) - - (25)
Transfer-nflout] #)/(2) 2393 75,081 4416 10,129 3545 69 (95,633) -
Depreciation i (72,085) (195,398} (146,917) (72,753) (33104) (4525) - (484,782)
Curency ranslation differences  S4#EEE 2,92 2,589 30407 3104 1254 03 3,369 8,850
Closing net book amount EXERRE 1,384,301 1312555 1421914 121138 51,151 10,534 230,114 453101

As at 31 March 2022 H2022853831R

Cost s 1650061 2176316 2459022 499,627 28,767 45,153 20114 7,309,060
Accumulated depreciation gl (265,760) (863,761)  (1,037,108) (372,489) (197,616) (34619) - am3sg
Net book amount e 1,384,301 1312555 1421914 121138 51,151 10,534 230,114 453101

Depreciation expense charged in consolidated income
statement is as follows:

RiFaWERTROFTER T

20224

HK$'000
BT T

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT

Cost of sales SHERA 358,423 327,076
General and administrative expenses —BRITHAX 119,457 113,811
Research and development costs [GiEEID®N 6,902 5,994

484,782 446,881
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

14 LEASES 14 #HE
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) REEEEEEXREIANESE
sheet
Right-of-use assets RAREE
Leasehold
land and
land use
Buildings Equipment rights Total
HELHE
BF Rt LTbERAE wet
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT B¥Tr BT
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ2021%3831H
LEE
Opening net book amount FYRmEFE 118,290 - 348,300 466,590
Additions NE 80,889 13,699 20,267 114,855
Disposals HE (149) - (30,342) (30,491)
Depreciation (Note 7) wEET) (86,442) (304) (8,649) (95,395)
Modification of lease HEZE 34 - - 34
Currency translation differences BEnEEE 6,733 (11) 790 7,512
Closing net book amount FREMFE 119,355 13,384 330,366 463,105
As at 31 March 2021 R202153A318
Cost B 331,830 13,688 367,005 712,523
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (212,475) (304) (36,639) (249,418
Net book amount REFE 119,355 13,384 330,366 463,105
Year ended 31 March 2022 HZ2022F3831A8
LHEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 119,355 13,384 330,366 463,105
Additions NE 90,524 - 81,081 171,605
Disposals of a subsidiary HE—RMEBAR - - (61,062) (61,062)
Disposals HE (26,919) - - (26,919)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (63,881) (930) (9,403) (74,214)
Currency translation differences e = 1,942 234 6,895 9,071
Closing net book amount FREEFE 121,021 12,688 347,877 481,586
As at 31 March 2022 M202253A31H
Cost (D 376,172 13,926 394,628 784,726
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE (255,151) (1,238) (46,751)  (303,140)
Net book amount REFE 121,021 12,688 347,877 481,586
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

14 LEASES (Continued) 14 #HE )
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) REREEEEREIANEHE
sheet (Continued) (%)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) REAELE(E)
Depreciation expense of HK$36,721,000 (2021: PTER B 136,721,0007T (20214 -
HK$62,827,000) has been charged in ‘cost of sales’, 75 #£62,827,0007T) /& #22,918,000
HK$22,918,000 (2021: HK$21,181,000) in ‘general and 7C (20214 @ B #21,181,0007T) &
administrative expenses’ and HK$14,575,000 (2021: 7B #5 14,575,000 7T (2021 £ 55 #E
HK$11,387,000) in ‘research and development expenses’, 11,387,00070) E D RITET SHERK A -
respectively. [ RITBR X RIFERZ IR
Lease liabilities HESE
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R20224 20214
3H31H 3H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current JERED
— Buildings — ¥ 73,763 65,271
- Equipment — i 12,502 12,894
86,265 78,165
Current E
— Buildings —gF 54,547 64,273
— Equipment — R 1,055 706
— Leasehold land and land use rights — M E 4 b e At A A 5,138 3,619
60,740 68,598
147,005 146,763
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

14 LEASES (Continued) 14 HE&E @)
(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) REEREREANSE
statement
Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
BZEUTHHLEFE
202243H31H 202143H31H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt e BT BT IT
Depreciation charge of FEREEENERX
right-of-use assets
Buildings gy 63,881 86,442
Equipment B 930 304
Leasehold land and land use rights  fA& +th &z + it s F4E 9,403 8,649
7 74,214 95,395
Interest expense FMERZ GEATH
(included in finance costs) FA) 9 6,538 8,282
Expense relating to short-term leases ER5EHAFAE AT 7 21,522 10,034
28,060 18,316
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the total cash outflow HZE2022F3A3MHIEFE - AHEE
for leases were HK$85,862,000 (2021: HK$102,800,000). HYIR &7 H 4258 A 7B 185,862,000 7T

(20214 : #%102,800,0007T) °

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (iii) 2EENHEEEBREARAIN
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, factories, equipment AEEHEETHAE BE © &E
and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made in FETEE HEAHN—RRBREAE
accordance to the lease terms. ERRET AL ©

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HEGRTIRERE R EITER - K
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The BEHEENE - HEREILENEN
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than TR HEHEARBEEERS
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by ERERRIN - SHERINE - HE
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for BEMSAERRR

borrowing purposes.
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BREE
Computer
software
E
HK$'000
BT IT
As at 1 April 2020 7A2020F481H
Cost AR 98,427
Accumulated amortisation RETEE Y (50,504)
47,923
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZE2021F3A31HILFEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 47,923
Additions NE 4,467
Amortisation (Note 7) By (FIEE7) (9,887)
Currency translation differences BERBREERS 1,160
Closing net book amount FAREmFE 43,663
As at 31 March 2021 7A202163H31H
Cost [N 105,010
Accumulated amortisation RETE Y (61,347)
43,663
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE2022F3A31BLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 43,663
Additions NE 3,195
Disposals e (89)
Amortisation (Note 7) By (FIEE7) (9,928)
Currency translation differences EHRE =R 618
Closing net book amount FAREmIFE 37,459
As at 31 March 2022 R2022%3H31H
Cost (BN 109,186
Accumulated amortisation SN (71,727)
37,459
Amortisation of intangible assets is included in general B EEBETAGERERN K
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income RATERBAS ©
statement.
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16 INSURANCE POLICY INVESTMENTS

e RBRRME

16 RERE

2022 AOVA
2022F 20214F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Insurance policy investments REEIZE 201,935 190,359
Movement of the insurance policy investments is as follows: REFEMEBT -

2022 2021

2022F 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

As at 1 April ®4A18 190,359 130,110

Additions NE 11,715 51,872
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised to REAM 2 EIM AR A EE

other comprehensive income (E518) hzs (139) 8,377

As at 31 March M3A31H 201,935 190,359

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the insurance policy
investments are measured at fair values, which approximate
to their surrender values (Note 3.2).

The insurance policy investments are denominated in the
following currencies:

R2022F % 2021F3A831H » (REK’
EREEREEERRENATENE
(MF5E3.2) ©

REREATIERTIE -

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Us$ ETT 140,863 132,039
HK$ e 61,072 58,320
201,935 190,359
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e RBRRME

17 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

fEIEEEFE

17 R—EBEQTANRE

2022
20225

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT
11,715

HK$'000
BET T
14,406

The movements of share of net assets during the year are as

follows:

FARIGEEFEZSHNT

2022 AOVA

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

As at 1 April R4A1H 11,715 -
Addition NE - 11,500
Share of net profit of an associate FE(E — D T AT 6,141 2,515
Capital reduction B A (3,450) (2,300)
As at 31 March A3 A31H 14,406 11,715

On 13 May 2021, Regina Miracle Management Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company invested in 23%
equity interest of Harmony Pharmacare Limited (“Harmony")
for a cash consideration of HK$11,500,000.

Harmony is primarily engaged in manufacturing, distribution
and sale of protective equipment in Hong Kong.

18 INVENTORIES

18

R2021%E5/138 * KAARKNEEWE
NRABEREEEGRARUNRERE
75 11,500,000 T R BIEHFIER A
aI([E#EF])BI23% ALAE

BHREMNIZNEBRERE DHR
HEERmES -

&

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
T T

HK$'000
BT T

Raw materials FEA R 722,561 532,031
Work-in-progress ERG 622,259 491,487
Finished goods 2R 226,792 225,001

1,571,612 1,248,519
Less: provision for impairment o R E R (2,951) (2,890)
Inventories, net FEFE 1,568,661 1,245,629

The costs of raw materials recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$3,050,049,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021:
HK$2,140,905,000).
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HZE2022F3A31BIFE - #RAH
A ET S B AN 8 R BB AR K A
##3,050,049,0007T (20214 : B
2,140,905,0007T) °
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FEMBRRMEE

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES 19 EFREWIRA
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables B SRR
— carried at amortised cost — 37 SE A AR T BR 901,826 849,577
— carried at FVOCI — AT EFARMEE
W A58 257,731 253,789
1,159,557 1,103,366
Less: loss allowance of trade B BSREBERRESIERHE
receivables (13,349) (10,344)
1,146,208 1,093,022
The carrying amounts of trade receivables carried at R K ADREE 5 AR R e BR
amortised cost approximate their fair values. HEHEEAFERS -

(a) As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of gross trade (a) M3A31H  BHEEEFAEREE
receivables based on invoice date were as follows: HEFTE MR DTN T ¢

2022 AOVA
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT T
0-30 days 0£30H 570,670 547,475
31-60 days 31£260H 228,956 207,115
61-90 days 61290H 174,250 209,278
Over 90 days HiE90H 185,681 139,498
1,159,557 1,103,366
The credit period granted by the Group is generally 30 to AEERLMNERH—MKAE30E120
120 days. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. H o NREEWEFFEEEMERRIEE
R e
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19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19 EEEH&P‘E%’K(%)

(b) As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of gross trade (b) M3A31H BEEKEREENED
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: BT EEE

2022 2021
20224F 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T T T

us$ T 961,942 964,885
HK$ ok 2,565 4,503
RMB AR 195,005 133,978
Euro B 45 _
1,159,557 1,103,366

(c) As at 31 March 2022, included in the Group's trade (c) 2022238310 - Bt AKEEHZ

receivables were amounts due from related parties of 5 JFE W BE 25 5 e Ui B8 38 75 2k 0 4 B IR
approximately HK$5,175,000 (2021: HK$8,272,000) (Note 5,175.0007% (20214 : ##8 272 000
31(c)). 7o) (Bi7E31(c)) »
(d) Impairment and risk exposure (d) BEERRRE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to NEBERAS SV ERE LD SR
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime B LA STEHREEEIE Aot s
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 3.1 B REWES R ESTEEEIE R
provides details for the calculation of the expected credit o B3 1Bt E s ETE a5
loss and credit risk exposure. BREERBOEE o
Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment loss 202293 318 K%20214E3A31H A
allowance for trade receivables as at 31 March 2022 and 31 EEHIEE FENERNREESE R
March 2021 as follows: BT -
2022 AOVA
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
As at 1 April RA4A1H 10,344 9,623
Increase in loss allowance recognised  ERRIB#ERHEGIE
in profit or loss during the year eyl 3,005 721
As at 31 March M3A31H 13,349 10,344
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20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 S FANREREME
RECEIVABLES W FkIE
2022 AOYA
20224F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BRI
Non-current portion EREIBD
Rental, utilities and other deposits e DERBAHEMIZS 9,452 5,346
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEEWE - = &R ES
plant and equipment TETFIA 337,033 87,733
Prepayments for right-of-use assets EREEEGEET MR i
(leasehold land and land use rights) ) TE R FIE 186 16,495
Other prepayments HATERRIE 1,772 1,687
348,443 111,255
Current portion REBD
Rental, utilities and other deposits e ARARBREMZS 1,834 4,909
Prepayments for materials MBS 208 16,702 11,733
Other prepayments H A T FRIE 18,997 15,779
Other receivables H b pEURE 5,232 15,694
___________________________________________________________________________________ 42,765 48115
391,208 159,370
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables e REMEWFIENREERLA
approximate their fair values. FEMESE -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain Be -~ TR & E i EBGRIBEN T
impaired assets. BREEAEERE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date NG HHAERENR X EERR R
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned ENREMNSHEEWRFIENREE -
above. The Group does not hold collateral as security. AEEVWESFEADIERER -
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayment and other e - AR FRIE A R Y IE 8 R
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: EHEN N E%EE
2022 AOYA
2022 20214F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
US$ EVin 20,471 132
HK$ B 21,907 36,055
RMB AR # 334,931 89,436
VND WA 13,899 33,747
391,208 159,370
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21
(a)

(b)

262

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and cash equivalents

21
(a)

RERMITAERR
RERRSEEY

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT I

HK$'000
BT T

Cash at bank RITIRE 994,666 827,308
Cash on hand FERE 364 672
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHEEEEY 995,030 827,980

Note:

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$194,277,000 (2021: HK$218,939,000)
and HK$20,914,000 (2021: HK$46,633,000) are held in the PRC and
Vietnam, respectively as at 31 March 2022. They are subject to local
exchange control regulations, which provide for restrictions on remitting
capital from the country concerned, other than through normal dividends.

Restricted bank deposits

As at 31 March 2022, restricted deposits of HK$3,000,000
(2021: HK$6,906,000) are held at bank accounts as reserves
for settling custom duties and cash collateral for the
purchase of certain property, plant and equipment.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
deposits are denominated in the following currencies:

(b)

Wi

M202263A31H B kB SEMEY
194,277,000 7T ( 2021 & : 7% # 218,939,000
JT ) R 78 % 20,914,000 7T (2021 4 ¢ B #
46,633,0007T) A RIFEF B R FEIEE © 250
B R EHINEE BHRGIRE - ZFEHINE
EHEOBENRAEBERELESNRS -
SEHIBIBIEE DALEITRR S o

ZRHEIRITER

1202293 A318 » RIBTTIEH IR
17 5 3,000,0007T (20214 + A
6,906,000 ) EAEEBHNFEES
FBEETHE  BELIENED
IR -

AEENRE MRS EBYMARZR
BIERITEFRIAT I EEEHE -

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T AT IT

RMB AREE 196,186 224,393
HK$ T 347,133 145,433
Uss E7T 436,298 414,787
VND A 18,154 42,816
EUR BT 254 7,451
Others Em 5 6
998,030 834,886
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22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 RRA
Number of
shares  Share capital
IR EE [
(thousands) HK$'000
(FA%) BT IT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each HRREEO.01FETH E AR
As at 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 R2020F4 818 ~ 20215 &
and 2022 202293 H31H 50,000,000 3,875,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each FAEEO.01 =T L AL
As at 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021 M2020F4 818 ~ 20215 &
and 2022 202293 A31H 1,224,250 95,247
23 RESERVES 23 f#&

Statutory Trade  Insurance

surplus  receivables policy
Share reserve  atFVOCI investments  Exchange  Retained
premium (Note) reserve reserve reserve  earnings

BATE

AR
EERBE  2EUAN
LA L RE
(W) BARE RERRE AERR  REEW
00 ' HK$ 000 0 HKS$000

] . BT AETn %o T A%t AMTr
As at 31 March 2020 2020538318 1,705,96 73,968 (1,157) 7,259 (303%7) 1,340,666 2,822,748
Profit for the year ERiaf] - - - - - 126515 125515
Currency translation differences EHnEEE - - - - 66,633 - 66,633
Fairvalue gain on insurance policy ~ RERAHATELE
investments - - - 8377 - - 8377
Fair value change on trade receivables & ATE AE2EMA
carried at FVOCI SIERAE SRR 3hAY
NTEEY - - (16,506) - - . (16,506)

Reclassification of trade receivables at A E# BEATEA
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests — Efi2EWARNE 5E

and charges upon disposals WS ERENIEE
RANERER - - 1731 - - - 17311
Transfer to statutory reserve ERDITRE - 6,067 - - - (6,067) -
Dividends &) - - - - - 48,970) (48,970)
As at 31 March 2021 H2021£3A31R 1,705,969 80,035 (352) 15,636 (237.324) 1411144 2975108
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23

264

RESERVES (Continued)

Statutory

surplus

Share reserve
premium (Note)

23

Trade
receivables
at Fvocl
reserve
ROVE
AR

bt )

Insurance

policy
investments  Exchange  Retained
reserve reserve  earnings

EERS  2ERAK
fif  EAEK RE
R EE (W) RREE  RERE REE7
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A% AMTr  AETn  EETn . AT B
Profit for the year FERET - - - - - 520694 520,694
Currency translation differences ERAEEE - - - - 188149 - 188149
Exchange reserve released upon HENBARERR
disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) ShERR(HE3s) - - - - (649) - (649)
Fairvalue loss oninsurance policy ~~ RERAMATEEIE
investments - - - (139) - - (139)
Fair value change on trade receivables  RAT R A2 ERA
carried at FVOCI SR E SIS
NHERS - - (19,484) - - - (19,484)
Reclassification of trade receivables at A\t &1 A TEE A
FVOC reserve to factoring interests 2 ENANE 5
and charges upon disposals WEFRRENIEE
RENERER - - 19,344 - - - 19,344
Transfer to statutory reserve BRZITHE - 191 - - - (11.941) -
Dividends RE = = - - - (142,013) (142,013
As at 31 March 2022 R2022£3831R 1,705,969 91,976 (492) 15,497 (49,824) 1,777,884 3,541,010
Note: S

The balance mainly represents statutory surplus reserve. In accordance
with articles of association of certain subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC,
the subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards to the statutory
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
Such reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred and to increase
share capital.

EHE RIEAT BREE o REF T BEEMAK
SUHETHBARNAKRERAR - WEAR
ARRETREHERRENBTIR DT 10%
BEELTHRE  E2EHRETMRAN0%
Rk o ZFEE RERERATE L AEERR
FALASE AR A
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24 BORROWINGS 24 B

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Bank borrowings IRITER
Non-current JETEH 3,401,989 3,192,407
Current binE2)] 862,071 1,176,484
4,264,060 4,368,891
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRI

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Non-current FERE)
Portion of term loans due for P E2F R HEER
repayment between 1 and 2 years EEEFEBD 1,501,343 2,173,492
Portion of term loans due for R2EbF R HEER
repayment between 2 and 5 years EEEFEBD 1,856,724 971,880
Portion of term loans due for BB EHIERN
repayment over 5 years TFHEFHD 43,922 47,035
3,401,989 3,192,407
Current JE.
Portion of term loans due for RIFEREEEERN
repayment within 1 year TFHERED 417,170 645,001
Short-term bank loans FERIRITE R 444,901 531,483
__________________________________________________________________________________ 862,071 1,176,484
4,264,060 4,368,891

As at 31 March 2022, bank borrowing of HK$60,813,000
(2021: HK$64,266,000) were secured by the Group's certain
insurance policy investments of HK$67,468,000 (2021:
HK$66,724,000). Other bank borrowings were secured by
corporate guarantees given by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2022, total undrawn banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$2,371,020,000 (2021:
HK$2,391,132,000).

M2022F 38318 - RBITHERE
# 60,813,000 jT ( 2021 F : & ¥&
64,266,0007T ) B A& EE TREH
& 5 #67,468,0007T (20214 : B
66,724,0007T ) EHE A o EMERITERK
HARARARRE THBRRREME
B AR R VEIR IR o

R2022F3A31H » KRIRERITRIE
48 B 4 A 2 371,020,000 7T (2021
F : $812,391,132,0007T) ©
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24

25

266

BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

24 BR@

RITEFOREERA TSR E

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT T

HKS ok 3,796,800 3,921,325
us$ T 467,260 447,566
4,264,060 4,368,891

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's borrowings bore floating
rates and the effective interest rate per annum was 2.5%
(2021: 2.1%)).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The net movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) is as follows:

25

202293 A318 » REEWE IR
FEF KR MEBERFENER25%
(20214 : 2.1%) °

IESE PS8

BEFGHEE /(BB ZFFHEN
T

2022 AOVA

20224 20214F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

At beginning of the year REY) (4,866) 2,309
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated 3t A/ (F18 ))érA s E

income statement (Note 11) (PFF&ET1) 13,435 (7,788)

Currency translation differences B E RS 434 613

At end of the year RER 9,003 (4,866)
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 25 EZEFTEBw)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when BB AT Al of I E 1T E F H AT Uk el B
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income HPSHEEN B E T B BT - B
tax recoverable against current income tax liabilities and BEFSEHMEERBEER — B
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to FAMZERTT EER A ERTTEE
income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either BWHOMEHRER  BEEBEEEZ
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is CREE AL e o B BYIREFT
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset SHEEEAE - METFEMT -

amounts are as follows:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deferred income tax assets FEEFTISTHEE 39,260 17,296
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFTSH A E (30,257) (22,162)

Deferred income tax assets/(liabilities), ELEFTEMREE,(BE) %%

net 9,003 (4,866)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be settled BEMSHAEAERABENREIRB121EA
after more than 12 months. BER -

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and FRN-REMSHEERBEEEN
liabilities during the year without taking into consideration SE)(WART RRFE—BU FLERERR A
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction SRR ) 0T -

are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities: EIEFBHREAE .

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IEFIETE

HK$'000

BB T T

As at 1 April 2020 7K2020F481H 5,483
Charged to the consolidated income statement negelisk 17,887
Currency translation differences BERRmE =T (15)
As at 31 March 2021 202193 A31H 23,355
As at 1 April 2021 K2021F4/81H 23,355
Charged to the consolidated income statement neseliss 8,337
Currency translation differences BERRME =T (23)
As at 31 March 2022 1202263 A31H 31,669
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

25 EIEFRBH (a0
ELERBHREE -

Deferred income tax assets:

Loss
allowance
of trade Lease
receivables liabilities Tax losses
BEZER
BiE HEEE BIEEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T T
As at 1 April 2020 720204 A1 H 1,409 940 5,443 7,792
Credited/(charged) to the 5t A/ (#18)&ZE
consolidated income U s &R
statement (215) (351) 10,665 10,099
Currency translation BB E s
differences - - 598 598
As at 31 March 2021 #202143 8318 1,194 589 16,706 18,489
As at 1 April 2021 7K2021F4 711 1,194 589 16,706 18,489
Credited/(charged) to the 3 A (31854
consolidated income U s 2R
statement 221 (280) 21,831 21,772
Currency translation IR EEE
differences - - 411 411
As at 31 March 2022 #202243H318 1,415 309 38,948 40,672

FEATRE B A AR R IER PG FI SR G
MIEFZMS @ AeREEHEER
HWRELEFMSHEE - A5EWER
] 4 PR HA 45 88 LUK 85 5K SR IE R AR M A
/8518 78 1 38,800,000 7T (2021 4F : &

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
HK$6,402,000 (2021: HK$11,256,000) in respect of losses

268

amounting to HK$38,800,000 (2021: HK$68,221,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income
indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2022, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$34,845,000 (2021: HK$31,823,000) have
not been provided for the withholding taxation that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$696,901,000 (2021:
HK$636,457,000), as the directors considered that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences
can be controlled and the related temporary difference will
not be reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable
future.

#68,221,0007T ) ERELFTERE
E 75 ¥6,402,000 7T (2021 4F « B
11,256,0007T) °

MN2022F3A31H HRNEERA
BEOEETREEENRMA T
BIMEEEEEEEETeRNT R
HREE BTG RB - BEFEH
B 15 4978 34,845,000 7T (2021 £F -
75 #5 31,823,000 7T ) I oK gk A B B
B A RREE L &R EA AR OE
# 696,901,000 7T ( 2021 F : & &
636,457,0007T ) fEH B4 o
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26 TRADE PAYABLES

As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade payables based

on invoice date were as follows:

B 5 EBNIRMR

M3A31R - BHEMEFIZER AL
SERRE DT

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT

0-30 days 0%E30H 362,038 208,148
31-60 days 31E60H 115,868 157,668
61-90 days 61Z90H 42,892 39,950
Over 90 days BiB90H 15,472 18,992
536,270 424,758

As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

M3A31A - BHREMNRKAREE A

THNEEFHE

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT

HK$ ot 36,308 54,397
USs$ e 328,246 212,497
RMB AREE 70,274 40,906
VND HMEE 90,452 101,684
EUR BT 10,990 14,133
Others Eh = 1,141
536,270 424,758

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their

fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

27 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27 EtERAREMEMNRIE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Non-current portion FRHAE o
Deposits b 1,480 1,479
Other payables H A fEATRUE 23,967 22,676
25,447 24,155
Current portion BPEAER &
Accruals for wages, salaries, staff TE ¢ BIRMK
welfare and other related costs H A HERER A A ERTE 260,212 217,708
Payable for purchase of property, plant B Z¥%% - lE&
and equipment HlEIE IR 17,036 31,772
Payable for construction in progress TEEIIRENTIE 214,949 294,954
Other payables Hib e IE 59,349 52,321
Accrued factory overheads and et IEmEEERAN
operating expenses R 132,442 74,512
683,988 671,267
709,435 695,422
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are FERTE A R E b FEA FRIB R BRE(E LA
denominated in the following currencies: T3 EHEHE -
2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
HK$ eotecd 75,883 60,844
RMB AR 152,455 108,316
Us$ EV 36,223 36,123
VND WA 441,654 486,632
JPY H 3,220 3,507
709,435 695,422
The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables FERHE A K B R < RRIB B0 AR T B
approximate their fair values. HAFEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 DIVIDENDS
(a)

Dividends recognized during the reporting period (a)

Special dividend, paid of HK1.5 cents of B2f#Z202143831H 1+
per ordinary share for the year ended  FE4 IR EFR L BAY
31 March 2021 (For the year ended 1.578(L (B Z=20205F

28

e RBRRME

B
REEHEARRHRE

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

31 March 2020: Nil) SANALFE : &) 18,364 -
Interim dividend, paid of HK6.8 cents per Zt&ZE202149H30H It
ordinary share for the period ended 30 HRfS AR HARE B AR T AR
September 2021 (For the period ended 6.8l (#,£20204
30 September 2020: Nil) 9A30R IHHAM - fE) 83,249 =
Final dividend, paid of HK3.3 cents per 2 t&Z%E202143A31H It
ordinary share for the year ended FERPRESRZ B
31 March 2021 (For the year ended 3.3 (B =20204F
31 March 2020: HK4.0 cents) SA3TBIEFE : 4.0801) 40,400 48,970
142,013 48,970

(b) Dividends not yet recognized during the (b)
reporting period

At a meeting held on 29 June 2022, a final dividend of

HK7.2 cents per ordinary share of the Company, totalling
approximately HK$88,146,000 (2021: a final dividend
totalling HK$40,400,000 and a special dividend totalling
HK$18,364,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
proposed. These consolidated financial statements do not

reflect these dividend payables.

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

RS R R E R ER RS

MR2022F6 A29B 81T S £
IENEZE2022F3A31 B IEFEARAF
FRHAR B SRR L @mAR 7. 278l - &4
#9578 %88,146,0007T (20214 : KHA
fi% B 4 £ 7 # 40,400,000 7T M 45 Bl A%
BAHE%18,364,0007T) ° ZHLHA
B RERANTERRZEEMERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29 REEKMBEE
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net (a) BRFEHRANENESEEIEFE
cash generated from operations R FENHER
2022 AOVA
20224 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Profit before income tax KR P13 AL AT F 617,520 146,700
Adjustments for: LEFEE
Amortisation of intangible assets | A ERE 9,928 9,887
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMERETE
equipment 484,782 446,881
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (FREEETE 74,214 95,395
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - WE KZEEE
and equipment, net R 5,808 1,857
Loss on write-off of fixed assets EE & EMEER 61,085 9,640
Gain on disposal and modification of HEREEFAEEE
right-of-use assets (Buildings) (BF) Kl (3,369) (1,622)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets & FREEE (RS
(Leasehold land and land use rights) T - tbff FR#E) B 2 - (691)
Share of net profit of an associate FEAG — B A AR A (6,141) (2,5615)
Loss allowance of trade receivables E 5 BRI E R R 3,005 721
Finance income BRI A (1,767) (1,826)
Finance costs SR AR 149,128 123,556
1,394,193 827,983
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Inventories 8 (302,922) (131,193)
Trade receivables =) G (39,685) (365,503)
Deposits, prepayments and other B BREREMD
receivables FEW IR (15,765) (4,276)
Trade payables Z S EMER 107,763 36,654
Accruals and other payables fEETE R R H A EN R (95,914) 96,181
Cash generated from operations BEEGEERS 1,047,670 459,846
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29 REEBMBRE @)
(Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEYE BMERREWRER
equipment b ]
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REERERERT  HEWE K
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: BN RIENFTSFUERIE ¢

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Net book amount of property, plant BEHE R -

and equipment disposed and R I 35 RO BREFHE

written-off (Note 13) (FF5E13) 77,648 13,853
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEIREER

and equipment, net (Note 7) FEE(MEE7) (5,808) (1,857)
Loss on write-off of fixed assets ElE B EMEEE

(Note 7) (PFF&E7) (61,085) (9,640)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HE REED
plant and equipment TS 18 10,755 2,356

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METDHEEZAGBEHR
activities

2022 AOVA

20224 20214F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BB T T

Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY 995,030 827,980

Lease liabilities HEBE (147,005) (146,763)
Bank borrowings with variable B EGHRAIRTTRER

interest rates (4,264,060) (4,368,891)

Liabilities arising from financing BEEHELEZER
activities (3,416,035) (3,687,674)
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REMBRRMEE

29

(c)

274

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29
(Continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c)

activities (Continued)

Liabilities arising from

20204 A1HMA

(0]4,1:1¢

assets —

cash and cash
equivalents

R EE -

BER
RESED
HK$'000
BT

Lease
liabilities

HESE
HK$'000

BETT

REEBEIMBEE W)

BREEHEL 2EEHIR(E)

Bank
borrowings

RITERK
HK$'000
BT

financing activities as REEBEL A

at 1 April 2020 587,616 (162,830) (3,590,005)
Cash flows REME 228,761 92,766 (778,886)
Lease additions HERE - (94,588) -
Lease disposals HERE - 26,676 -
Lease modification HEES - 1,597 -
Foreign exchange NG F 2

adjustment 11,603 (10,384) -
Liabilities arising from R2021F3A31HH

financing activities as A EBELECAE

at 31 March 2021 827,980 (146,763) (4,368,891)
Cash flows REME 105,790 64,340 104,831
Lease additions HERE - (95,662) -
Lease disposals HERE - 33,908 -
Foreign exchange SN 8 2

adjustment 61,260 (2,828) -
Liabilities arising from 7202293 A31HMHA

financing activities as A EBELECAE

at 31 March 2022 995,030 (147,005) (4,264,060)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 COMMITMENTS

31

Capital commitments

e RBRRME

30 AEiE
BRI

2022
20224

2021
20214
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Contracted but not provided for BRIAERIEREDZE -
Property, plant and equipment and = KRR LA K
right-of-use assets FEREEE

370,613 683,235

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
under control of the close family members of the Group's
controlling shareholder.

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited (incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands) owns 52.93% of the Company's
shares as at 31 March 2022 (2021: 57.83%) and is wholly
owned and controlled by Mr. Hung Yau Lit. In addition,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit directly holds 15.36% of the Company's
shares as at 31 March 2022 (2021: same). The remaining
shares are widely held. The ultimate controlling party of the
Group is Mr. Hung Yau Lit.

Name of related parties

RES A

31 BMELRS

=TT BRE N ERKMEEIES =77
KE B —IHERM B R EERRAR
EXFEN  AETHRELREH
& o TS T RAREH R ASE
I8 42 B A SR A0S RRAK B - B TRAR
BRBRE-

202243 A31H - Regent Marvel
Investment Holdings Limited ( %
BRAZBEESFMA L) EEARRA
52.93% (2021 € : 57.83% ) I& 7 -
W ANFBAERERB RIZEH o 1t
Hh 0 1A2022F3A318 - HNELAEE
BIEFEARA15.36% %1% (20214 -
MR - R TIRNDAIBZ T#HE - A%
B AR T RN R ST A o

Relationship with the Company
ERAR A B) AR

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

BEEH5(BB)ERAR

Faxun Clothing (Shanghai) Co., LTD

EAREN (8 BRAR]

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory
(Shenzhen) Limited

AREERBRBORIDERAT

Float Limited

Harmony Pharmacare Limited

BHNBRAT]

FEERE2021/22 ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

Common controlling shareholder
HEERARR
Common controlling shareholder
HEERARR
Common controlling shareholder

HEERARR

Under control of a close family member
of the of the controlling shareholder

SRR AR R BT R A B 5

Associate of a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cContinued) 31 BEARF @)

BEMBHRREMEHAREEI
REEEEETET IR

(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a)
statements, the Group has the following transactions with

related parties:

2022
20225

HK$'000
BT T

Sales of goods to related parties HEEMTEERS
- Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) —#RBS(HE)BRAT
Limited (Note) (HfIE) 34,345 27,031
— Faxun Clothing (Shanghai) Co., LTD  —&ARER( -8)GR AT 1,020 -
— Float Limited —Float Limited 1,883 498
37,248 27,529
Addition of right-of-use assets RECAEEE
— Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad  —4T 212 E igtam CEYI)
Factory (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) BRRAE (F5E) = 47,813

st - WERSHMEBIEAEELEET R
EREERIBHRETE

Note: The pricing of these transactions was determined based on mutual
negotiation and agreement between the Group and the related
parties.

(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEEH

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T & - #% - JE41 K28, 30,479 27,511
Retirement benefits costs R FIRA
- defined contribution scheme — FREHREE 356 341
30,835 27,852
(c) Year-end balances with related parties (c) ERRBEFMEREER

2022
20224

HK$'000
BET T

FEU T HIALH) B 5 U AR

Trade receivables due from (Note):

(f7E) -
- Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) —BEE 5 (BEB)ERAR]
Limited (Note) (FF5E) 4,646 8,167
— Faxun Clothing (Shanghai) Co., LTD  —%iERER( L8 ) BRRAF] 125 -
— Float Limited —Float Limited 404 105
5,175 8,272

Note: The trade receivables due from related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and with credit terms of 90 days.

MiEE - EAREE T B Z R A BT
REREEHROAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 BEHISENETMIA

As at 31 March, the Group held the following financial M3A3H AEEEE TSI
instruments: A

\
/

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT

Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets carried at FVOCI BAFEGAEMEE
WATIR & E

— Trade receivables — B SRR 19 256,855 252,946
Financial assets carried at RSN ARSI BRA & Bl
amortised cost BiE
— Trade receivables — B SRR 19 889,353 840,076
— Deposits and other receivables —iZe hEMEWTIE 20 16,519 25,970
— Restricted bank deposits — ZREIRI TR 21 3,000 6,906
— Cash and cash equivalents — B RESEEY 21 995,030 827,980
2,160,757 1,953,878
Financial liabilities - Y=Ni
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  1Z# R AT EH S F
afE
— Borrowings — &3 24 4,264,060 4,368,891
— Trade payables — B SEMER 26 536,270 424,758
- Accruals and other payables —JERTE A R H M ER
FRIE 27 434,005 481,597
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 14 147,005 146,763
5,381,340 5,422,009
The Group's exposure to various risks associated with REEEAZESRT AEMANZIE
the financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.2. The B A TS 2P 55 - RBEHREA
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting AENGAEERRA L SESR
period is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets EEMIKRAE -

mentioned above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 3B AP EEEBERKHESE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY SE)
Balance sheet of the Company AATREERER
2022 2021
20224F 20214
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset REBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—EMB AR AR 510,724 510,724
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other &4 813018 R E A
receivables FEU R IE 220 299
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG B/ 1,420,832 1,357,618
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESZEEY 355 294
oo een e eeeeeiiieeeieieieeieieieieieeeeeo.o... 1421407 | 1,368,211
Total assets EEHRE 1,932,131 1,868,935
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of 72 R#HA A E(GHER
the Company
Share capital [N 95,247 95,247
Reserves B (a) 1,830,479 1,771,968
Total equity EREE 1,925,726 1,867,215
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E M FRIB 6,226 1,618
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTISTR B & 179 102
R, 6405 . 1,720
Totalliabilites  e@mew 6405 1720
Total equity and liabilities EnkaEEE 1,932,131 1,868,935
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserve movement of the Company

33

(a)

e RBRRME

ARFEERBEREHERE

B85

AATRERE

Share premium Retained

(Note) earnings Total

B EE
(Bft=E) BB et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT IT
As at 31 March 2020 720203 A318 1,705,969 54,664 1,760,633
Profit for the year F A% | - 60,305 60,305
Dividends (Note 28) i S (FfiEE28) - (48,970) (48,970)
As at 31 March 2021 "202163H31H 1,705,969 65,999 1,771,968
Profit for the year FREHN - 200,524 200,524
Dividends (Note 28) fig 2 (F5E28) - (142,013) (142,013
As at 31 March 2022 R2022%3A31H 1,705,969 124,510 1,830,479

Note: Ff5E

The share premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

BEBRIEH R HAEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBRRMEE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 EEFNERER

(a)

280

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (a) EBSRSHEEENHE

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HZE2022F3A31HILFEGREER
for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below: R THA BB EHES 0T ¢

Name of Director

£33

Executive directors HTES
Hung Yau Lit (also knownas YY  EHE( X4
Hung) (Chief Executive Officer) 2%

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HEBALRAEEZ(FRATARNAENBARNRE) EAERNHE

Employer's
contribution
Discretionary Housing to retirement

Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
0

#e e MtEA EERK HE [ a3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT

(BREHITE) - 9,100 - - 54 9,154
Yiu Kar Chun Antony phzse - 3,552 - - 36 3,588
Sze Shui Ling i - 2,806 - - 36 2,842
Liu Zhengiang 28 - 3,684 - - 4 3,731
Chen Zhiping RET - 2,976 - - 4 3,023
Independent BIFGTES
non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai g’ 399 - - - - 399
Tam Lai Man EEY 336 - - - - 336
To Wong Wing Yue Annie BT K 336 - - - - 336
1,071 22,118 - - 220 23,409
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 EEFERER®

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (a) EERSAEEEBNME (&)

(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HZE2021F3A31HILFEGREER
for the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below: SERITERA B HENE S 0T ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
SAEBATREES(TRARARFENBLREE) ENREK#HE
Employer's
contribution

Discretionary Housing  to retirement
Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
EERIK
LA s §e  BEEL REEN  HBMS it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  B%TR RBTR #%Tx BETR BN

Executive directors HTES
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY R (X4
Hung (Chief Executive Officer) — HEHZE)

(BEHTE) - 8,260 - - 54 8314
Yiu Kar Chun Antony =% - 2,842 - - 36 2,878
Sze Shui Ling idiissd - 2,165 - - 36 2,201
Liu Zhengiang fIEn - 2,858 - - 29 2,887
Chen Zhiping BREE - 2,224 - - 29 2,253
Independent BUFHUTES
non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai g’ 359 - - - - 359
Tam Lai Man EEX 302 - - - - 302
To Wong Wing Yue Annie BTKE 302 - - - - 302
93 18349 - - 184 19,49
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REMBRRMEE

34

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

282

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the directors
of the Company waived any emoluments paid or payable
by the Group during the year (2021: Nil) and there were
no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the
directors received or will receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits during the financial year (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

As at 31 March 2022, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, no
director of the Company had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was or is a party that subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the current and prior year (2021:
Nil).

34 EEFIEZRER @)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

ESrEREEENME ()

HZE2022F3A31HIEFE - BER
AR EEREWEBAE BN F R
SERE I B & (20214F « &) + ifn
AEENEAEE N REMNE
EABEREMAREE LN INAR
S ER ) SZ BN Sk BB A 1R 12 (2021 4F -
) o

EERMENRBERER

HZE2022F3A3HILFE @ eSS
AN B IR 4R Ui B B % U BR A ] 3R R
BRI BB (20214F : £E) o

REMEERBELTFE=ZFTNR
(]

HE2022F3A31HIEFE + AR
ERRHEERBATAE =
RIBE (20214 : £8) -

DES  ZSESHZEGEA
EENZZEHNEBESZRZANE
M BUERREMCEENESR

7202238318  HHENES -
EEMNZEAEABERZIESES
AESHEANER BUEREREME
FLH (20214 : 48) o

ESRRS  ZHEREWPNE
Kz

BB mRREMEHAREEIN -
ARBEEHER AN B RELXBPT
RIS SR 3k B AT K b — S E AT
RIDAFENENEARS  ZHR
BHPEERREEREEEA (2021
FE)

i&t
I8

foi

i
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35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 12 November 2021, the Group entered into an
agreement with Mr. Hung Yau Lit, the chairman of the
Board, chief executive officer, an Executive Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company to dispose of
100% of the equity interest of Regina Miracle International
Technology Limited (“RMIT"”) and its subsidiaries at a
consideration of HK$120,000,000 (the “disposal”) to Mr.
Hung Yau Lit. RMIT and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in investment holding. The disposal was completed
on the same date of the agreement.

35

e RBRRME

HEMRBEAR

M2021F11 128 REFEARQ
AEEEEF  BFHNTE  WMTE
= 3R 170 AR A% B AL RS IR O A k1) Rk R R
% 4 & Regina Miracle International
Technology Limited ([ RMIT |) & E K
BRRIMEIRAT LE - REA
75 #120,000,000 T ([ HEEE]) ©
RMITREWB AR ETERFRERE
f% - BEFHERHERBTK °

HK$'000
BT T

Considerations RfE 120,000
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (120,000)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of S M B R Bl B [ HMNE R 18

subsidiaries (Note 23) (Mf7£23) (649)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR (649)
Cashflows: REME
Considerations received BHRIE 120,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHERe MNREEEY (30,610)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, L EH B AR EHRIE -

net of cash disposed HBEHERS 89,390

36 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36 HmEHEBSBH

On 25 January 2022, Regina Miracle Fung Ying Limited (“RM
Fung Ying”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a joint venture implementation agreement
("Agreement”) with ASLA US Holdings LLC and Victoria's
Secret & Co. (collectively, the “sellers”) where the sellers
agreed to sell 49% of VSCO Holdings ("VSCO") equity
interest for a cash consideration of US$45 million.

The transaction was completed on 6 April 2022. According
to the Agreement, the Group will appoint two out of five
directors in the Board of VSCO and accordingly, VSCO is
treated as an associate of the Company.
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M202241A258 - AXATEENE
NABDREERERAR([#L]
@2 ]) #ASLA US Holdings LLC &
Victoria's Secret & Co. (& ZE H 1)
e EBEmpE([zZhEl) &
b BARBEUNESRESEEET
HHEVSCO Holdings([VSCO ) #949%
[t o

RS BRN2022F4 A6 HTK » RIEZ
Wik - EVSCOEEEMRBESH -
REBAZEMBES - VSCOWIR
BAIATMEEAF] o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
ABENBE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the NEERARE TS EERRART A EM
Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set HWEENEHEES  EERBGEHZHT
out herein, is set out below: PERN

Year ended 31 March
BE3ANMHLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

20225 20214 20204 20194 201845
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT BETT  BETx  BETr  BET

Results £
Revenue WA 8,346,728 5,974,290 6,341,010 6,263,280 5,868,048
Gross profit EF 2,045,440 1,237,953 1,440,731 1,341,945 1,233,923
Profit attributable to owner of AR FHHE A
the Company FE{G R A 520,694 125,515 289,953 282,438 240,188
Adjusted net profit for the FAERHRAF| R
year&2 581,779 175,253 289,953 282,438 240,188
Gross profit margin (%) ERE (%) 24.5% 20.7% 22.7% 21.4% 21.0%
Net profit margin (%) LT (%) 6.2% 2.1% 4.6% 45% 4.1%
Adjusted net profit AR AR AT FI| 2R (9% ) 22
margin (%)1&@ 7.0% 2.9% 4.6% 4.5% 4.1%
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets EEBE 9,419,772 8,737,036 7,735,028 6,954,505 6,024,210
Total liabilities BESE (5,783,515) (5,666,681) (4,817,033) (4,030,332) (3,154,628)
Total equity b g 3,636,257 3,070,355 2,917,995 2,924,173 2,869,582

Notes: Bf5E

(1) Adjusted net profit for the year is derived by adding restructuring costs on (1) FREFHBMFTEBNENGERIMABER
the net profit for the year. REHESE -

(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that is (2 WIFLRETRAUNNMBEESBETHBEE
not required by, or presented in accordance with HKFRSs and is therefore 512 - BEMBREERNLES K - FEER
referred to as a “non-GAAP" financial measure. It is not a measurement REBUMBIREERZ25] - Bt - FLERE
of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and should not [FEARGFTRA INMBE SRR o BIRFFR
be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any other BEASVBREEGEAEBUBRANS
performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an 5 TEGIERRBRE B BHREELEENL
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the SN E e EMEMRRAOERIER - S
Group's liquidity. EEPRERENERERIEEAEE R

AEMIER -
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